
1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
If you wish to address the City Council, please wait for the Mayor to open the floor for public comment on that agenda item 
and then approach the podium. Before speaking, please state your name and address. Each speaker is limited to five (5) 
minutes per agenda item and is expected to refrain from the use of profane, obscene, or slanderous language. The above 
Zoom link does not allow for participation in the meeting. It is for viewing only. 
 
 

1.0) ROLL CALL 
 

2.0) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3.0) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

4.0) MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE FOLLOWING MEETINGS: 
 

4.1) MARCH 14, 2022 – REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

5.0) PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 
 

6.0) PROCLAMATIONS: NONE 
 

7.0) OLD BUSINESS:  
 

7.1) DOWNTOWN FAÇADE PROJECT UPDATE. (Derek Lumsden) 
1. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 22  

 
7.2) PROJECT STATUS UPDATE FROM SNYDER AND ASSOCIATES (Lindsay 

Beaman, Tim Wallace) 
1. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT AMENDMENT FOR THE HWY151 GRADE SEPARATION 
– OLD DUBUQUE ROAD EXTENSION. 

2. RESOLUTION 2022-19 AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF REAL 
PROPERTY FOR THE HWY151 GRADE SEPARATION – OLD DUBUQUE 
ROAD EXTENSION. ROLL VOTE. 

3. RESOLUTION 2022-20 AUTHORIZING EASEMENT AGREEMENTS FOR 
THE HWY151 GRADE SEPARATION – OLD DUBUQUE ROAD 
EXTENSION. ROLL VOTE. 

 
7.3) PROJECT STATUS UPDATE FROM HR GREEN (Andrew Marsh, Josh Scanlon,  

Jeremy Kaemmer)  

CITY OF ANAMOSA 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA – REGULAR SESSION 
 

MONDAY, MARCH 28, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 
ANAMOSA LIBRARY & LEARNING CENTER  

600 EAST 1ST STREET, ANAMOSA, IA 52205 

Zoom Meeting Link    Join by Telephone  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89995905189 +1 312 626 6799 
Meeting ID:  899 9590 5189  Meeting ID:  899 9590 5189 
Passcode: Anamosa   Passcode 4142305 



2 
 

1. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT AMENDMENT FOR THE SYCAMORE STREET PROJECT. 

2. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT FOR ANAMOSA 3RD STREET SIDEWALK EXTENSION. 

3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT FOR ANAMOSA 2022 SIDEWALK PROGRAM. 

4. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT FOR SEWER REPLACEMENT BETWEEN FORD ST. AND 
N. HUBER ST. FROM WEBSTER STREET TO NORTH OF MAIN STREET. 

 
7.4) RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR/CLERK AND SETTING INTERIM SALARY. ROLL VOTE. 
 

7.5) RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM POLICE 
LIEUTENANT AND SETTING INTERIM SALARY. ROLL VOTE. 

 
7.6) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION CITY ADMINISTRATOR/CLERK 

SEARCH. PRESENTATION FROM MIDWEST MUNICIPAL CONSULTING, LLC 
(Elizabeth Hansen) WRITTEN PROPOSALS FROM LAST MEETINGS 
PRESENTATIONS FROM NEXT MOVE GROUP AND HINSON CONSULTING 
LLC.  

 
8.0) NEW BUSINESS 

 
8.1) INTRODUCTION OF ERIN RUSH, LIBRARY DIRECTOR 

1. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON PLACEMENT OF STATUTE 
TO BE PURCHASED BY THE FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY ON THE 
LIBRARY GROUNDS. 

 
8.2) RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING AND SETTING SALARY FOR PARK 

AND REC DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT FOR FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING JUNE 30, 2022. ROLL VOTE. 
 

8.3) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE PURCHASE OF A FIELD 
GROOMER FOR THE PARK AND REC DEPARTMENT. (Bruce Miell) 
 

8.4) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF APPLICATION OF JOSIAH SIMS TO JOIN THE 
ANAMMOSA VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT. 
 

8.5) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
SHIVE-HATTERY FOR THE FIRE STATION ADDITION PROJECT. (Ron Hinds) 

 
8.6) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PAY APPLICATION NO. 3 TO BOOMERANG 

CORP IN THE AMOUNT OF $104,321.90 FOR THE WELL NO. 6 – BID PACKAGE 
2. 

 
8.7) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CURRENT BILLS 

 
9.0) CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  

 
10.0) MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS: 

 
10.1) MAYOR’S REPORT 

 
10.2) COUNCIL REPORTS 



3 
 

 
11.0) PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
12.0) ADJOURNMENT 



Page 1 of 4 

STATEMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
March 14, 2022 

 
The City Council of the City of Anamosa met in Regular Session March14, 2022 at the 
Anamosa Library and Learning Center and via Zoom at 6:00 p.m. with Mayor Rod Smith 
presiding. The following Council Members were present: Rich Crump, Jeff Stout, Kay Smith, 
Teresa Tuetken and Brooke Gombert. Absent: Alan Zumbach. Also present were Beth Brincks, 
City Administrator/Clerk, Dana Laidig, Deputy City Clerk, Shane Brown, Street 
Superintendent, Steve Agnitsch, Utilities Superintendent, Rob Young, Assistant Utilities 
Superintendent, and Jeremiah Hoyt, Police Chief. Iowa Code Chapter 21, as interpreted, 
permits public meetings to be held electronically.  
 
Mayor Rod Smith called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  Roll call was taken with a quorum 
present.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Motion by Crump, second by Gombert to approve the agenda. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion 
carried.   
 
Motion by Crump, second by Smith to approve the minutes of the February 28, 2022 Regular 
City Council meeting. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing on the proposed annual budget for fiscal year 2023 and 
setting levy rates at 6:02 pm. There were no verbal or written comments were received prior to 
the meeting. The Mayor asked if any member of the public or City Council had any comments 
and none were given. With there being no further comment, Crump made a motion, second by 
Smith to close the public hearing.  Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. Hearing closed at 
6:03 pm 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Crump to approve Resolution 2022-13 adopting the fiscal year 
2023 annual budget and setting levy rates. Roll vote. Ayes: Crump, Stout, Smith, Tuetken, 
Gombert. Nays: none. Absent: Zumbach. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Smith to approve Resolution 2022-14 approving the FY23 
budgeted transfers. Roll vote. Ayes: Crump, Stout, Smith, Tuetken, Gombert. Nays: none. 
Absent: Zumbach. Motion carried. 
 
Brent Hinson (Hinson Consulting, LLC) and Alex Metzger (Next Move Group, LLC) gave a 
presentation on their proposal for a City Administrator/City Clerk search.  Elizabeth Hansen 
(Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC) could not make it to the meeting but submitted her 
proposal.  Motion by Stout, second by Crump to table this decision until Brent Hinson submits 
a proposal with an estimated cost. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Nate Miller (Origin Design) gave a FEMA Gabion Wall and Division Street Bridge project 
update to the Council.  
 
Motion by Crump, second by Smith to approve the proposal from Origin Design for the Dillion 
Military Bridge contingent upon Jones County’s decision to fund a portion of the project.  
Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 



Page 2 of 4 

 
 
The City Attorney advised that new appointments will need to be made in order to be in 
compliance with gender balance laws.  Stout agreed to step down and Smith agreed to replace 
him.  Motion by Crump, second by Gombert to approve the removal of Stout from the Fire 
Department Board and to appointment of Smith.  Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Smith to approve the Change Order No. 2 for the Jordan Well 
No. 6 Project – Bid Package 2. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Crump to approve the Change Order No. 2 for the Jordan Well 
No. 6 Project – Bid Package 1.  Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Stout to approve Pay Application No. 2 to Boomerang Corp. in 
the amount of $152,018.96 for the Well No. 6 Project – Bid Package 2. Ayes: all. Nays: none. 
Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Crump to approve Resolution 2022-15 hiring and setting salary for 
a Community Service Officer for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Roll vote. Ayes: Crump, 
Stout, Smith, Tuetken, Gombert. Nays: none. Absent: Zumbach. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Smith to approve Resolution 2022-16 hiring and setting salary for 
a Utilities Operator for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Roll vote. Ayes: Crump, Stout, Smith, 
Tuetken, Gombert. Nays: none. Absent: Zumbach. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Tuetken to approve Resolution 2022-17 authorizing the 
placement of funds in various depositories. Roll vote. Ayes: Crump, Stout, Smith, Tuetken, 
Gombert. Nays: none. Absent: Zumbach. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Crump to approve Resolution 2022-18 authorizing users and 
administrators for the City of Anamosa, Iowa Vendor Account. Roll vote. Ayes: Crump, Stout, 
Smith, Tuetken, Gombert. Nays: none. Absent: Zumbach. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Smith to approve sludge removal services from Midwest 
Injection, Cascade, Iowa.  Ayes: Crump, Smith, Tuetken, and Gombert. Nays: Stout. Motion 
carried. 
 
Motion by Gombert, second by Stout to approve the purchase of three (3) Bobcat lawn mowers 
for the Utilities, Street, and Park Departments.  Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Crump to approve the purchase of a New Holland skid loader to 
replace current loader for the Street Department.  Ayes: Crump, Smith, Tuetken Gombert. 
Nays: Stout.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Smith to approve the purchase of a New Holland skid loader to 
replace current loader for the Utilities Department.  Ayes: Crump, Smith, Tuetken.  Nays: 
Stout, Gombert.  Motion carried. 
 



Page 3 of 4 

Motion by Crump, second by Stout to approve the Professional Services Agreement 
Amendment with Martin Gardner Architecture, P.C. for the Police Station Project.  Ayes: all. 
Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Crump to approve the contract for Community Development 
Block Grant Services Amendment with East Central Iowa Council of Governments for the 
CDBG Downtown Façade Project. Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Smith, second by Stout to approve the Professional Service Agreement Amendment 
with Martin Gardner Architecture, P.C. for the CDBG Downtown Façade Project. Ayes: all. 
Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Stout to approve holding the City Wide Clean Up on April 23, 
2022 from 7:00 AM to Noon.  Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Tuetken to approve the liquor license renewal for Wal-Mart.  
Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Crump, second by Smith to approve the current bills.  Ayes: all. Nays: none. Motion 
carried. 
 

Vendor Name Payable Description Total 
Payments 

941 TAX EFT PAYMENT SOCIAL SECURITY TAX 12783.53 
ACCESS SYSTEMS LEASING COPIER TRANSITIONAL BILLING 559.47 
ALLIANT ENERGY ELECTRIC 28846.07 
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES VORTEX OPTICS 111.47 
AT&T MOBILITY CELL PHONES 611.79 
ATLANTIC COCA-COLA LCC DISPENSER - BEVERAGES 378.75 
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY BRAKE PAD SET 1096.74 
BLACK HILLS ENERGY GAS SERVICES 10872.29 
BOOMERANG WELL #6 BID PKG #2 152018.96 
BSN SPORTS BASKETBALLS - FLOOR TAPE 616 
CHEMSEARCH ECOSTORM PROGRAM 165 
CITY OF ANAMOSA FLEX - MEDICAL 157.38 
CR LC SOLID WASTE AGENCY DEBRIS DISPOSAL 73.92 
DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF IOWA DELTA DENTAL INSURANCE 1029.76 
DIGITAL ALLEY, INC FVHD DVR EXCHANGE 245 
ECICOG CDBG DTR ADMIN 4125 
EMPLOYEE GROUP SERVICES LTD SELF FUND INSURANCE DRAW 278.27 
FAREWAY STORES, INC. FATHER/DAUGHTER EVENT 539.7 
FRAZIER/SPENCER PHONE REIMBURSE 20 
HENKE MANUFACTURING 
CORPORATION 

V PLOW WEAR KIT 1851.52 

HOME DECORATING CENTER PAINT SUPPLIES 71.63 
HOWARD R GREEN WELL #6 CONST PHASE 11900.14 
IOWA PARK & RECREATION CPO CLASS 480 
IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES UNIFORM SHIRTS EMBROIDERY 897.02 
IPERS COLLECTIONS IPERS 9190.48 
JONES COUNTY ENGINEER FUEL 3094.62 
JONES COUNTY RECORDER RECORDING FEE 12 
KIECK'S UNIFORMS 392 
KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY AMMO 269.93 
KRAY/JEFF PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 20 
KUNKEL/DEREK TRAINING REIMBURSEMENT 312 
LEAF COPIER SYSTEM 49.99 
LODE/ERIC PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 20 



Page 4 of 4 

MARTIN GARDNER ARCHITECTURE DOWNTOWN FACADE PHASE 2 11262 
MEDIACOM ONLINE SERVICE 79.49 
MONTICELLO SPORTS SHIRTS - SOCCER 41.7 
MUNICIPAL SUPPLY, INC. RADIO READ TOWER INSTALL 15844 
NYEMASTER GOODE, P.C. INTERNAL INVESTIGATION 8536.74 
PINNEY/PAUL REFUND - OVERPYMNT UTILITY 

BILL 
332.6 

PUSH PEDAL PULL EQUIPMENT SERVICE 2659.14 
REDS TOWING/PETRO STOP, INC VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1785.13 
SADLER POWER TRAIN AIR FILTER 243.5 
SECRETARY OF STATE RENEWAL - NOTARY 30 
SHADA/TIM PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 20 
SHAFFER PLBG & HTG BATHROOM PARTITIONS 8938.19 
SNYDER & ASSOCIATES INC. 2ND ST LIFT PHASE 2 20250 
ST LUKES WORK COMP 244 
TAPKEN'S CONVENIENCE PLUS FUEL 296.45 
TECHNICOM, INC. YRLY PHONE SYSTEM MAINT 461.37 
THE HARTFORD LTD 633.32 
TREASURER STATE OF IOWA STATE TAX 2031.95 
TRUCK COUNTRY HOSE 151.2 
U.S. CELLULAR CELL PHONES 262.38 
UMB BANK, N.A. INTEREST  GO 2021 600 
US POSTMASTER POSTAGE - UTILITY BILLS 731.82 
VSP Insurance Co VSP INSURANCE 309.84 
WALMART COMMUNITY CARD FATHER-DAUGHTER EVENT 1332.43 
WAPSI WASTE SERVICE, INC. WASTE REMOVAL - RECYCLING 447 
WELAND CLINCAL LABS DRUG SCREEN 127 
WELLMARK BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIEL ALLIANCE HEALTH INSURANCE 20907.78 
WELTER STORAGE EQUIPMENT CO. LATERAL FILE 295 
WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA ADS 1142.56 
Total  343087.02 

 
Beth Brincks, City Administrator/City Clerk presented her City Administrator’s report. 

Mayor and Council Reports: The Mayor had no report. Councilmember Tuetken reported that 
the Father/Daughter dance at the LLC was a success, they are continuing to update the racket 
ball courts, and holding a vendor fair soon.  Councilmember Crump said that the Tourism 
Board will be having a meeting at Camp Courageous on March 22, 2022 from 5:00-7:00 pm. 
 
Public Comments:  Tom Durgin, Nancy Shaffer, and Chris Nelson offered public comment. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council the meeting adjourned at 8:06 pm.  
     
 
             
        Rod Smith, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________ 
Dana Laidig, Deputy Clerk 





 

 
 

V:\Projects\2022\122.0008.08\Projects\EngineersReport\MEMO_2022-03-28_EngReport.docx 

Memorandum 

To: City of Anamosa 

 

Date: March 28, 2022 

From: Snyder & Associates 

 

RE: Engineers’ Report 

 

 

CITY PROJECTS 

 

WWTP Flow Equalization Basin 

We are working on getting plans ready for a 60% submittal to the DNR.  We are planning to meet with 

Steve within the next couple of weeks to go over the plans and 60% submittal.     

 

2nd Street Lift Station – Phase 2 

We met with Public Works on March 1st and are working through their comments. We have been in contact 

with the consultant preparing the bridge plans to help minimize design conflicts. 

 

Old Dubuque Road Extension and Roundabout 

All acquisition documents have been received. Construction permits have been received for sanitary and 

water. The project is on track for the April 19th letting date.

 



























































Old Dubuque Road Extension and Roundabout  120.0620.08 

EXHIBIT A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT requested reduction in services to remove the design and construction of the 2-
span bridge over US 151; the reinforced concrete box culvert in an unnamed stream; and connecting 
roadways west of the roundabout to just west of an unnamed stream and east of the roundabout 
connecting to 130th Street; and  
 
WHEREAS, preliminary planning and design of each of the bridge, box culvert, and west/east connecting 
roadways were conducted to the extent necessary to set the elevations and alignments of the 4-legged 
roundabout; and 
 
WHEREAS, final plans and specifications of the Old Dubuque Road Extension north and south, including 
the 4-legged roundabout, have been prepared and submitted to DOT for approval for a scheduled April 
19, 2022 letting and construction is scheduled for June 2022 through 2023; 
 
This amendment has been prepared to reconcile the work that has been completed and compensated 
for to date, and to clarify the remaining scope and fee, and generally includes the following: 
 
 
SCOPE OF WORK COMPLETED TO DATE 

 
1.0 Project Administration 
The PROFESSIONAL performed general project administration including scheduling, invoicing, project 
coordination, and assignment of personnel. 

 
2.0 Granting and Funding Applications 
The PROFESSIONAL developed and submitted funding applications for Revitalize Iowa’s Sound Economy 
(RISE) and the Federal-aid SWAP Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG-SWAP). Funding in the amount 
of $1,326,000 was received for the project. 

 
3.0 Survey 
The PROFESSIONAL completed survey on the entirety of the project to collect topographic information 
needed to design the project. This data will continue to be applicable for final design of the remaining 
elements, however this does not preclude the need for additional survey as existing conditions may 
change over time.  
 
4.0 Structural Design 
The PROFESSIONAL completed the preliminary design and draft situation plan for the future bridge 
spanning over US 151 and site plan was developed noting bridge type, size, and location (TS&L). This 
preliminary design included the assumptions that the State of Iowa intends to realign the southbound 
lanes of US 151 which impacts placement of bridge piers.   
 
 



Old Dubuque Road Extension and Roundabout  120.0620.08 

5.0 Hydraulic Design and Permitting 
The PROFESSIONAL completed the hydrologic and hydraulic design for the culvert crossings over the 
unnamed creeks at the west end of the site.  A draft wetland and stream delineation report and a cultural 
resource analysis was completed in accordance with the original agreement. This data will continue to be 
applicable for final design of the remaining elements, however this does not preclude the need for 
additional study and design elements and conditions may change over time. 
 
6.0 Geotechnical Investigation 
The PROFESSIONAL completed the geotechnical investigations needed for planning and design of the 
entire project limits, as outlined in the original agreement. 
 
7.0 Roadway Design 
The PROFESSIONAL completed the design of the Old Dubuque Road Extension including the single lane 4-
legged roundabout, the connecting roadway south of the roundabout to Old Dubuque Road, north of the 
roundabout to Parham Drive, related planning and design of storm sewer, water main extension, sanitary 
sewer extension, and trail. 
 
8.0 ROW Services 
The PROFESSIONAL prepared the acquisition documents and negotiated permanent and temporary 
property acquisitions as outlined in the original agreement. 
 
 
SCOPE OF REMAINING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
The remaining Scope of Services to be performed by the PROFESSIONAL is hereby restated and/or 
amended to include the following tasks: 
 
1.0 Construction Administration 
 
1.1 Preconstruction Conference  

The PROFESSIONAL shall schedule and hold a pre-construction meeting to review the contract 
requirements, details of construction, utility conflicts and work schedule prior to construction. The 
PROFESSIONAL shall be responsible for the meeting notices, facilitating the meeting, and meeting 
minutes.  
 

1.2 Contractor Payment Requests  
The PROFESSIONAL shall prepare and review the requests of the contractor for progress payments 
and shall approve a request, based on site observations, which recommends payments and is a 
declaration that the contractor's work has progressed to the point indicated. 
 

1.3 Reimbursement Claims  
The PROFESSIONAL shall prepare claims for CLIENT reimbursement by the Iowa DOT in accordance 
with the executed Funding Agreement dated January 24, 2022. 
 

1.4 Shop Drawings  
The PROFESSIONAL shall review shop drawings and other submissions of the Contractor for general 
compliance with the construction contract. 



Old Dubuque Road Extension and Roundabout  120.0620.08 

 
1.5 Change Orders  

The PROFESSIONAL shall negotiate and prepare change orders for approval by the CLIENT. 
 

1.6 General Coordination 
The PROFESSIONAL shall assist with property owner coordination and organize, schedule, and attend 
bi-weekly construction meetings throughout the duration of the construction. 
 

1.7 Substantially Complete and Final Site Observation  
The PROFESSIONAL shall perform a site observation alongside CLIENT and Iowa DOT representatives 
to determine if the Project is substantially complete according to the plans and specifications and 
make a recommendation on final payment. This shall include the development of a punch list of 
items to be completed by the contractor for completion along with subsequent site review and 
correspondence.  
 

1.8 Completion Period  
If the Contractor does not meet the completion period requirements, or if change orders or Project 
additions require additional construction time, the PROFESSIONAL will be compensated for any 
additional administration, construction observation, and staking services when authorized by the 
CLIENT. 
 

1.9 Final Acceptance  
It is understood that the CLIENT will accept any portion of a Project only after recommendation by 
the PROFESSIONAL. Final acceptance of a Project by the CLIENT shall not release the Contractor from 
responsibility that the work is free of defects in materials and workmanship. 
 

1.10 Record Drawings 
The PROFESSIONAL shall furnish reproducible “red-line” record drawings for the PROJECT. Such 
record drawings may contain a waiver of liability phrase regarding unknown changes made by the 
Contractor without CLIENT/CONSULTANT approval. The record drawings may include new water 
main fittings and valve locations and elevations, new storm sewer pipe flowline elevations and 
slopes, and new sanitary sewer main flowline elevations and slopes. 
 

2.0  Construction Staking 
The PROFESSIONAL shall be responsible for providing construction staking for the Project. The 
construction documents will contain a provision that the PROFESSIONAL will provide one set of stakes for 
each construction operation of the Project. Any staking that is destroyed due to construction will be 
replaced at the Contractor's expense. 
 
2.1 Reestablishment of Monuments  

After completion of construction, the PROFESSIONAL shall perform field survey as required to verify 
which monuments found during the original survey and identified in the construction plans, if any, 
were disturbed or removed during construction. All disturbed or missing monuments shall be reset 
at their original location and a Monumentation Preservation Certificate in accordance with Iowa 
Code Section 355.6A shall be prepared and filed with the Jones County Recorder. 
 
 



Old Dubuque Road Extension and Roundabout  120.0620.08 

3.0 Construction Observation 
The PROFESSIONAL will provide periodic site observation for the Project during the Construction Phase. 
The time spent on site is dependent upon the Contractor’s schedule, rate of progress, and type of work. 
It is estimated that full-time observation services will be provided. If a Contractor requests a waiver of any 
provisions of the plans and specifications, the PROFESSIONAL will make a recommendation to the CLIENT 
on the request. The PROFESSIONAL will give guidance to the Project during the construction period, 
including the following: 
 
3.1 Observation 
 Observation of the work for general compliance with plans and specifications. 
 
3.2 Record/Log 

Keep a record of Contractor's activities throughout construction, including notation on the nature 
and cost of any extra work or changes ordered during construction. 
 

3.3 Resident Construction Services  
Provide the CLIENT with representation at the job site during the Construction Phase of the Project, 
which results in an increase in the probability that the Project will be constructed in substantial 
compliance with the plans and specifications. However, such Resident Services do not guarantee the 
Contractor's performance. Nor do such Resident Services include responsibility for construction 
means, techniques, procedures or safety used in constructing the work described in this agreement. 
 

3.4 Testing/Monitoring 
The PROFESSIONAL will coordinate the acceptance testing and monitoring according to the 
specifications, including the services provided by an independent testing laboratory. Testing services 
by an independent laboratory may be performed on behalf of the PROFESSIONAL and included with 
subsequent invoices. The PROFESSIONAL shall provide PCC air, slump testing and strength (if 
maturity is not utilized), certified plant monitoring, and aggregate testing. It is anticipated that the 
Contractor will be responsible for compaction, moisture and density, and special compaction testing. 
 

  



Old Dubuque Road Extension and Roundabout  120.0620.08 

AMENDED COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
The CLIENT shall compensate the PROFESSIONAL in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. Fees will be based on the then current hourly rates and fixed expenses (current CONSULTANT 
Fee Schedule is included). Total fees shall not exceed the following unless Additional Services are added 
by a written change order, amendment, or supplemental agreement signed by both parties. The table 
below provides an amended estimated budget summary.  

 
 

TASK ORIGINAL 
FEE 

AMENDED 
FEE 

CHANGE 

Project Administration: $36,000 $36,000 $  - 
Grant and Funding 

Applications: 
$20,000 $20,000 $  - 

Survey: $33,000 $33,000 $  - 
Structural Design (Bridge): $129,800 $19,100 $(110,700) 

Structure Design (RCB 
Culvert): 

$23,000 $  - $(23,000) 

Hydraulic Design and 
Permitting: 

$13, 300 $13,300 $  - 

Geotechnical Investigation: $25,300 $25,300 $  - 
Preliminary Road Design: $45,000 $45,000 $  - 

Final Road Design: $70,000 $55,000 $(15,000) 
Sewer/Water PER:  $20,000 $  - $(20,000) 

Utility Design: $14,000 $14,000 $  - 
ROW Services: $10,300 $10,300 $  - 

Construction Services: $260,300 $250,000 $(10,300) 
Project Total: $700,000 $516,000 $(179,000) 

 



 
1 of 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-19 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF REAL PROPERTY  
DONATED TO THE CITY OF ANAMOSA, IOWA, 

BY BULLNOSE, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, Bullnose, LLC desires to donate the real property (“Property”) described in 
exhibit A – Right-of-way Acquisition Plat, to the City of Anamosa, Iowa, for public use: 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Anamosa, Iowa, desires to accept the donation 
of the Property from Bullnose, LLC. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ANAMOSA, IOWA: 
 

SECTION 1:  Acceptance of the donation and title to the Property is declared to be in the 
best interest of the City of Anamosa, Iowa, and its residents. 

 
SECTION 2:  The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

enter into an Agreement to Donate Real Property with Bullnose, LLC; to accept title to the Property 
from Bullnose, LLC on behalf of the City of Anamosa, Iowa; and to take such further actions as 
may be necessary to effectuate acceptance the above-described donation. 
 
Councilmember _____________ introduced the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-19 and moved for 
its adoption.  Councilmember _____________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called 
and the following indicates the result of the vote. 
  

COUNCILMEMBER AYES  NAYS ABSENT ABSTAIN 
         
CRUMP     
SMITH                   
TUETKEN     
ZUMBACH     
STOUT     
GOMBERT     

 
PASSED and APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Anamosa, Iowa, 

on this 28th day of March 2022. 

______________________________ 
Rod Smith, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Beth Brinks, City Clerk 



� 
@ 

�I t� 

f 
l 

�i 

_,, 
�I 

� 

i: 
�I

,. 

INDEX LEGEND 
SURVEYOR'S NAME/ RETURN TO: 

WALTER HURLBUTT 
SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

5005 BOWLING ST. SW SUITE A 
CEDAR RAPIDS, !OWA 52404 
319-362-9394 
whurlbutt[@,snyder-assoclates.com 

SERVICE P�OV!DED BY: 
SNYDER & AS SOCIA TES, INC. 

SURVEY LOCATED: 
PARCEL2010-10D 

REQUESTED BY: 
CITY OF ANAMOSA 

PREPARED FOB, 
CITY OF ANAMOSA 

OLD DUBUQUE ROAD 
EXTENSION AND ROUNDABOUT 

DATE OF SURVEY 
8-17-2020 

DEED HOLDER 
BULLNOSE LLC 
P.O. BOX 106 
ANAMOSA, IA 52205 

LEGEND 
Survey 
1/2" Rebor, Yellow Cop �22020 

n •. 'nless Otherwise No tedl 
Section Corner, os Not,:,d 
R.O.W. RAIL 
516" Iron Rod, Alumint.,m Cop Slomp,td lowo DOT 
112" Iron Rod. YeTiow Cop "9647 
518" \;on Rod, Yellow Cop "6581 
Plotkd Distoncc 
Measured Beoring !I, Distance 
Recorded As 
Deed Oistonce 
Coleuloted Distonce 
Centerline 
Acquisition 

Found 
• 

' 
M 

R 

D 

C 

A 
B 

.2§_ 
0 

h,;;,_;;i{k>"· <) 

RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION PLAT 
LiillJ�l'I : 

DESCRIPTION 
THAT PART OF PARCEL2010-100 ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SURVEY 
RECORDED !N PLAT BOOKT, PAGE 196 AT THE JONES COUNTY 
RECORDER'S OFFICE, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AS A PO!NT OF REFERENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 85 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST OF 
THE 5 "' P.M., JONES COUNTY, lOWA; 

THENCE NORTH 88 ° 46' 37" EAST 631.04 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE 
OF SA!D PARCEL 201MOO TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 88" 46' 37'' EAST 107.TT FEET ALONG SAID 
NORTH LINE TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 2010-100; 

THENCE SOUTH 32 ° 00' 51" WEST 277.41 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE 
OF SAID PARCEL 2010-100; 
THENCE NORTH 57° 59' 09" WEST 80.00 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY WHOSE RADIUS IS 543.DO FEET, WHOSE ARC 
LENGTH IS 302.00 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS SOUTH 74 ° 17' 34" 
WEST 298.13 FEET; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY WHOSE 
RADIUS IS 477,00 FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 283.42 FEET AND 
WHOSE CHORD BEARS SOUTH 73 ° 12' 16" WEST 27927 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH so· 31' 25" WEST 67.45 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 39° 12' 21" WEST 67 .45 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 28° 48' 14" WEST 38.37 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 19° 19' 06" WEST 38.37 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 05 ° 05' 24" WEST 69.09 FEET: 

THENCE SOUTH 47° 53' 31" EAST 65.48 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 78° 14' 01" EAST 54.16 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 11 ° 45' 59" WEST 72.47 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 89° 01' 51� WEST 71.82 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 68" 17' 01"WEST 112.79 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 12" 47' 11" WEST 49.43 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY WHOSE 
RADIUS JS4n.oo FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 26921 FEET AND 
WHOSE CHORD BEARS SOUTH 04 ° 22' 24" EAST 265.65 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 20" 32' 30" EAST 162.08 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY WHOSE 
RADIUS IS 543.00 FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 213.68 FEET AND 
WHOSE CHORD BEARS SOUTH 09° 16' 06" EAST 212.30 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 02 ° 00' 17" WEST 34.20 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID PARCEL 2010-100; 

THENCE SOUTH 34" 14' 58" WEST 0.27 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE; 

THENCE SOUTH 34" 23' 12" WEST 296.33 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE 
TO THE EAST LINE OF PARCEL 2012-146 (PLAT OF SURVEY RECORDED 
IN PLAT BOOK U, PAGE 88 AT THE JONES COUNTY RECORDER'S 
OFFICE); 

THENCE NORTH 26" 46' 43" EAST 119.66 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE 
OF PARCEL 2012-146; 

DESCRIPTION CONTINUED 
THENCE NORTH 11" 1S 19" EAST 110.31 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE 
OF PARCEL 2012-146; 
THENCE SOUTH 79 ° 32' 32" EAST 20.02 FEET; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY WHOSE 
RADIUS IS4n.oo FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 258.08 FEET AND 
WHOSE CHORD BEARS NORTH 05" 02' 31� WEST 254.94 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 20" 32' 30" WEST 162.08 FEET; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY WHOSE 
RADIUS !S 543 .00 FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 195.02 FEET AND 
WHOSE CHORD BEARS NORTH 10• 15' 10"WEST 193.97 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH oo· 02' 09" EAST 228.97 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 44• 57" 51" WEST 53.39 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 84" 02' 25" WEST 52.64 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 01° 58' 51" EAST74.45 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 86° 10' 31" EAST 151.47 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 52" 08' 03� EAST 41.49 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 25 ° 34' 39" EAST 92.56 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 35• 06' 48" EAST 55.55 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 44" 38' 58" EAST 27.78 FEET; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE 
SOUTHEASTERLY WHOSE RADIUS IS 543.00 FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH 
IS 431.94 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS NORTH 67° 26' 16" EAST 

420 .64 FEET; 

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY WHOSE 
RADIUS IS4n.oo FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 461.98 FEET AND 
WHOSE CHORD BEARS NORTH 62" 28' 48" EAST 444.14 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 4.46 ACRES (194,261 SQUARE 
FEET) MORE OR LESS. 

H++hllj! lI I I I 1�1 � "'· o. 

�· 
0 
co 

< "' '2 8 -
t. 

� �ii 
8 ��} 
IB ��} z ,.� .... 

� @«! 
< .,13;:t 
§ §�� < C 

" a 

<..> 

z 

<( u
C-l 
z _J 

en 
w 
I
<( 

<..> 

0 
en 

en 

<C 

c::i w 
<( 0 ti) 
oo::o 
O:: c z 
wz:::l 
:::, <( :::, 
Oz en. 
::io . 
co- 00 
:::, en -l 
czw 

�-----,-----------1:l� li1
t hereby eortlty than this land suNO';i"fl document Q � <t

ccS 
� 
w 
Cl 
>
z 
en 

�\::v· �'...1owP...-,,._A 
-

;:rtt.=�; �
d

:�r:�y �:= p��:s £l.
�Upur.oslon �rid that I am a duly llco"""d Pr<1!o�onal I.and S!Jr,oyc,r undor the lawo, or tru, Slll!&oflowa. .. :\�!•-� 

WallorT. Hurlbutt, P.LS. 
License Number 22020 

1@/_;2022 

�-

My l.lcansa R.Mewnl Dato 1s D-0eomber 31. � 
P,,gos or sh<>ets covcre<J �Y mts seal: 
Sheel$1 and 2 of 2. 

5 
SNYDER 

&ASSOCIATES 

Project Noc 1200620 
Sheet 1 of 2 

Exhibit A





 
1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-20 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE FAIR MARKET VALUE AND AUTHORIZING 
THE ACQUISITION OF EASEMENTS THROUGH CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF ANAMOSA, IOWA 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Anamosa “City” intends to acquire permanent and temporary 
easements “Property” through certain real property as shown on Permanent Easement Exhibit A 
with Bullnose, LLC, Temporary Easement Exhibit B with Bullnose, LLC, Temporary Easement 
Exhibit C with Lonie R. Hinrichsen Trust, Temporary Easement Exhibit D with Thomas and Jan 
Dole, Temporary Easement Exhibit E with John and Jackie White, Temporary Easement Exhibit 
F with Jones County, and Temporary Easement Exhibit G with the Anamosa Community School 
District attached hereto for the purpose of constructing an extension of Old Dubuque Road for 
public use; and 

 
WHEREAS, City has caused an appraisal of the easements to be made and the following 

compensation is requested: Bullnose, LLC waived compensation, Lonie R. Hinrichsen Trust 
$150.00, Thomas and Jan Dole $250.00, John and Jackie White $75.00, Jones County waived 
compensation, and the Anamosa Community School District waived compensation; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Anamosa, Iowa, desires to accept and execute 
the permanent and temporary easements. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ANAMOSA, IOWA: 
 

SECTION 1:  Acceptance of the permanent and temporary easements through the Property 
is declared to be in the best interest of the City of Anamosa, Iowa, and its residents. 

 
SECTION 2:  The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

enter into permanent and temporary easements on behalf of the City of Anamosa, Iowa; and to 
take such further actions as may be necessary to effectuate acceptance the above-described 
agreements. 
 
Councilmember _____________ introduced the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-20 and moved for 
its adoption.  Councilmember _____________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called 
and the following indicates the result of the vote. 
  

COUNCILMEMBER AYES  NAYS ABSENT ABSTAIN 
         
CRUMP     
SMITH                   
TUETKEN     
ZUMBACH     
STOUT     
GOMBERT     



 
2 of 2 

 

 
PASSED and APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Anamosa, Iowa, 

on this 28th day of March 2022. 

______________________________ 
Rod Smith, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Beth Brinks, City Clerk 



INDEX LEGEND 

SURVEYOR'S NAME/ RETURN TO: 
WALTER HURLBUTT 
SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

t 
5005 BOWLING ST. SW SUITE A 
CEDAR RAPIDS, lOWA 52404 
319-362-9394 
whur!butt�snrider-associates.com 

SERVICE p av OED BY: 
SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

SURVEY LOCATED: 
PARCEL2010-100 

REQUESTED BY: 
Cl"TY OF ANAMOSA 

PREPARED FOR 
CITY OF ANAMOSA 

OLD DUBUQUE ROAD 
EXTENSION AND ROUNDABOUT 

DATE OF SURVEY 
8-17-2020 

� DEED HOLDER 
BULLNOSE LLC 
P.O. BOX 106 
ANAMOSA. IA 52205 

LEGEND 

� Survey 
I 1/2 R�bor. Yellow Cop �22020 

�
(Unless Otherwise Nctecl) 

Section Ccrrcr. cz Noted 
R.O.W. RAIL 
5/B' Iron Red, Al�minwm Ccp 

, Stc,..,p�d lowo DOT 

� 1/2"' Iron Roe. Yellow Cop �9647 
510·· Iron Roe. Yellow Cop �sss· 
Plotted Distonco 
Measured Becri�g & l)istoncc 

j
Recorded As 
Oeed o;stonce 
Calc�lcted Distance 

i Centerline 
l 

r!r 
Eose;,sent 

;�

Found .§!il. 
• 0 

A 

p 
' 
e 
0 
C -·- --------

l_i!%?'k1t«£it�lf±ittJZ�

PERMANENT DRAINAGE EASEMENT EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION - DRAINAGE EASEMENT 'A' 
A PERMANENT DRAINAGE EASEMENT ON THAT PART OF PARCEL 2010-100 
ACCORDING TO THE P[JI.T OF SURVEY RECORDED IN PLAT BOOKT, PAGE 196 AT 
THE JONES COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE. DESCRIBED A$ FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 85 NORTH. RANGE 4 WEST OF THE s· P.M •. JONES COUNTY, 
IOWA; 
THENCE NORTH 88° 46' 37" EAST631.04 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
PARCEL2010-100; 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY WHOSE RADIUS 
IS 477.00 FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 299.54 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS 
SOUTH 52" 43' 25"WEST 294.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING: 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY WHOSE RADIUS 
JS 477.00 FEET. WHOSE ARC LENGTI-l !S 20.00 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS 
SOUTH 71" 54' 52" WEST 20.00 FEET TO REFERENCE POINT 'A'; 
THENCE NORTH 18° 05' 08" WEST 35.00 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 71" 54' 52" EAST 20.00 FEET: 
THENCE SOUTI-118° 05' 08" EAST 35.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 
CONTAINING 701 SQUARE FEET MORE OR LESS. 
AND 

DESCRIPTION - DRAINAGE EASEMENT 'B' 
COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT SA!D REFERENCE POINT 'A'; 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY WHOSE RADIUS 
IS 477.00 FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 142.44 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS 
SOUTH 81 ° 40' 15" WEST 141.92 FEET: 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHERLY WHOSE RADIUS 
IS 543.00 FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 431.94 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS 
SOUTH 6r 26' 16"WEST 420.64 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 44• 38' 58" WEST27.78 FEET: 
THENCE SOUTH 35• 06' 48" WEST 55.55 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 25° 34' 39" WEST 9.19 FEET TO REFERENCE POINT "B', SAID POINT 
ALSO BEING THE PO!NT OF BEGINNING: 
THENCE SOUTI-l 25° 34' 39" WEST 20.01 FEET TO REFERENCE POINT •c'; 
THENCE NORTH 62" 29' 42" WEST 54.51 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 27° 31' 21" EAST20.00 FEET: 
THENCE SOUTH 62° 29' 42" EAST 53.83 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING ANO 
CONTAINING 1,083 SQUARE FEET MORE OR LESS. 
AND 

DESCRIPTION - DRAINAGE EASEMENT 'C' 
COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT SAID REFERENCE POINT 'B': 
THENCE SOUTH 62° 29' 42" EAST 53.83 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING: 
THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 62" 29' 42' EAST27.78 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 26" 42' OT" WEST 20.00 FEET: 
THENCE NORTH 26" 42' 07'' WEST 26.33 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 19" 19' 06" EAST 1328 FEET: 
THENCE NORTH 28" 48' 14" EAST 6.85 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 
CONTAINING 549 SQUARE FEET MORE OR LESS. 
AND 

DESCRIPTION - DRAINAGE EASEMENT 'D' 
COMMENCING AS A PO!NT OF REFERENCE AT SAID REFERENCE POINT 'C'; 
THENCE SOUTH 25° 34' 39' WEST 63.36 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 52" 08' 03"WEST 41.49 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 86° 10' 31"WEST 107.35 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE SOUTH 86° 10' 31"WEST 20.01 FEET TO REFERENCE POINT ·o·; 
THENCE NORTH 02" 30' 29" WEST 26.48 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 87" 29' 31" EAST 20.00 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 02° 30' 29" EAST 26.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 
CONTAINING 525 SQUARE FEET MORE OR LESS. 
AND 

DESCRIPTION - DRAINAGE EASEMENT 'E' 
COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT SAJD REFERENCE POINT 'D'; 
THENCE SOUTH 86° 10' 31"WEST24.12 FEET 
THENCE SOUTH 01" 58" 51" WEST74.45 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 84" 02' 25" EAST 52.64 FEET: 
THENCE SOUTH 44• 57' 51" EAST 53.39 FEET: 
THENCE SOUTH oo· 02' 09" WEST 228.97 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY WHOSE RADIUS !S 
543.00 FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTI-l IS 195.02 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS 
SOUTH 10° 15' 10" EAST 193.97 FEET: 
THENCE SOUTH 20" 32' 30" EAST 32.20 FEET TO THE PO!NT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE SOUTH 20" 32' 30" EAST 20.00 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 69" 27' 30" WEST 32.00 FEET: 
THENCE NORTH 20" 32' 30" WEST 20.00 FEET: 
THENCE NORTH 69° 27' 30" EAST 32.00 FEET TO THE PO!NT OF BEGINNING AND 
CONTAINING 640 SQUARE FEET MORE OR LESS. 

� lf,_�<>.� ¼o� 
§'f/ WALTERT \\ �� . "' .., 

ii,9·m �� Ys�"'f 

w¼�#� 

I horoby c,irtny that this land sul"V<l)llng dC>CUmom 
wah prop,an,d and th& relotod •urvey worl< wa& 
performed by me or under rrry dlrecl: persona! �"I>'""'""'" "'1d th�! I am� d,;ly !,� 
f>rofeSt;IOnsl land 5'J""')'Or """"' 11'1<, l;r,,s of the 
Stat� of low-cl. --� 1/312022 
WolterT. Hu�bun_ P.L.$ '"' 

L,c,inso Numbor -
My Lleer,se Re"""'al 0""' •s O&O>mbor 31. 2023 

Pogtta or she..ts oo•ored oy 11!1$ ""�t 
Sheflts 1 and 2 of 2. 

' 

� 8 � 0 

�� t z -

1 ; .. .. 
' 

r-�, 
§ � e 

I:q i 
�1 
• 

�- � 'I i
� :} l '

�
Q ' 

!:

111 
0 
V 

�
% 
'l 
.,
0 i�! 0 �

� �< 
% 
< 

-
-

(.) 

:z 
-

-

0 en 

Ill w 

<( u
<( C-' 

z-' -
c::::> (.) w 
<(0 ti) 0

00:: 0 en

o::c z en

wz -' 
<( -' 

::::><( ::::> 
Oz lll �
::::>o ' 

ct:
Ill- co 

w::::> (/) -' 
cZ w C

c� u 

:z
-'X <( ow C. 

en 

s 
SNYDER 

&ASSOC::!ATES 

f'rojo<tNn: t:?00620 

Sheet 1 of 2 































































 

 

 

  

 

HRGRE E N.COM  

 

 
 

To: 
Beth Brincks, City of Anamosa 
 

From: HR Green 
 

Subject: Anamosa Project Status 
 

Date: March 21, 2022 

 

1. Sycamore Street Rehabilitation 

• Awarded to Eastern Iowa for construction   

• Fully executed agreement with insurance complete 

 

Action Items: Preconstruction meeting scheduled this week 

 

2. Jordan Well No. 6 

• Bid Packages 1 and 2 have been Awarded to Gingerich and Boomerang, respectively.  

• Construction underway 

• Well drilling complete 

 

Action Items: Council approved contractor change order for Gingerich to acidize the well.  Fully 

executed change order has been sent to Gingerich.  Gingerich to proceed with the work.  Work on 

the well house and piping will proceed with the improved, spring weather. 

 

3. Well 7 siting study 

• Submitted draft report with pros, cons and costs of 3 potential well 7 locations. 

• Met with school district employees 

• School district suggested a somewhat different location 

• Sent school district revised proposed well location 

• Offered to present the proposed well location to the school district board 

 

Action Items: Will need to present/discuss during future school district meeting.   

 

4. Booth Street Improvement Project 

• Draft plans submitted for City staff review February 8, 2022 

• Met with City staff to review the draft plans & gather feedback 

 

Action Items: HR Green finalizing plans and specs based on City staff feedback   

 

5. Disinfection Alternatives Analysis 

• HR Green developed a draft report  

 

 



 

  
Anamosa Project Status 

February 14, 2022 

 

   

Page 2 

 

 

Action Items: HR Green draft engineering report summarizing pros, cons and costs of alternatives, 

namely gaseous chlorine (with needed repairs to existing system), on-site chlorine generation and 

liquid chlorine (bleach) will be submitted soon. 

 

6. City GIS 

• New Subdivision by Chamber Dr Data Collection. 

o Inspect and update information on Stormwater Assets and Sanitary Manholes. Still On 

Hold for now still ongoing. 

• Cemetery Head Stone Mapping Project 

o Mike talked with Beth about the plot digitizing for the cemetery.  Ginger provided plot 

dimensions based on different lots and HR Green will continue to use those dimensions 

to draw in the remaining plots. 

o Mike to create new Water Distribution Map for Water Department. 

 

7. ASP pretreatment agreement 

• Summarized waste stream characteristics from the ASP.   

• Met with ASP representatives and City staff. 

• Discussed changes in ASP manufacturing impacting wastewater 

• Agreed to a monitoring period on ASP wastewater  

• Have not seen the anticipated drop in some constituents with the changes in ASP 

manufacturing.   

• Ongoing monitoring of ASP flow and loading to City’s POTW 

 

Action Items: Coordination with IDNR to remove categorical limits and need for IDNR’s 

involvement moving forward.  Recommend renewing the agreement between the City and the IDNR 

considering the flows and loading.   

 



 
 
 
 
 

Version2.0 12172018 

 

HR GREEN, INC. 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 2 

 
THIS AMENDMENT, made this 28th day of March, 2022 by and between, City of Anamosa the 
CLIENT, and HR GREEN, INC. (hereafter "COMPANY"), for professional services concerning: 
 

Sycamore Street from Davis to Williams 
 
hereby amends the original Professional Services Agreement dated February 15th,2021 as follows: 
 
The CLIENT and COMPANY agree to amend the Scope of Services of the original Professional 
Services Agreement and previous amendments as follows: 
 

Additional construction observation service task to include: 
 

H.1 Preconstruction Meeting 
The COMPANY will send one (1) additional staff to the Preconstruction Meeting, estimated four 
(4) hours 
 

H.4 Partial Pay Estimates 
Additional four (4) hours added for resident construction engineer to review and manage pay 
estimates. 
 

H.5 Plan Interpretation/Extra Work Orders 
Additional eight (8) hours added for resident construction engineer to direct contractor and issue 
work orders. 
 

H.6 Final Inspection  
Additional two (2) Hours added for resident construction engineer to perform final inspection. 
 

H.7 Project Close-Out 
Additional four (4) hours for the construction engineer to complete documentation. 
 

H.8 As-Built Plans 
Additional four (4) hours estimated for the construction engineer to review drawings. 
 

H.9 Project Startup 
The COMPANY will complete a preconstruction video of the proposed construction area to 
document the existing conditions prior to the start of construction. The COMPANY will also 
utilize this time to prepare its filing system. The project startup also allows the COMPANY time 
to review the plans and specifications prior to the start of the project, become familiar with the 
phasing and scopes of work, conduct on-site field reviews and begin documentation of items to 
be removed. 
 
The COMPANY expects the construction engineer to spend twelve (12) hours completing this 
task.  Additional support by COMPANY administrative staff is estimated at eight (8) hours. 
 

H.10 Resident Engineering 
The work to be performed by the COMPANY under Resident Engineering shall include on-site 
observation of the construction. This phase consists of observing construction methods and 
preparing written reports that document compliance or non-compliance of the construction 
methods and materials in accordance with the project specifications. 



Amendment 1 to Professional Services Agreement 
 Sycamore Street from Davis to Williams 

201647 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

Version1.0 07012017  

 
This scope of services assumes “part-time” Resident Engineering representing one (1) part-time 
staff with an average of 16 hours of individual staff time per week the COMPANY is on site. The 
project involves construction activities beginning as early as April 1, 2022 and a completion date 
of September 9, 2022. For budget purposes, the estimated construction duration is 
approximately twelve (12) weeks. A supplemental agreement may be required to account for 
additional Resident Engineering services resulting from the Contractor working time in excess of 
the assumptions listed herein. An adjustment in Resident Engineering Services may result from 
a difference in anticipated work duration, modification to the construction contract time specified 
by change order, or delays in the construction caused by the Contractor’s delay in completing 
the work. 
 
When the COMPANY provides on-site observation personnel as part of services during 
construction under this Agreement, the on-site observation personnel will make reasonable 
efforts to guard the Owner against defects and deficiencies in the work of the Contractor(s), and 
to help determine if the provisions of the Contract Documents are being fulfilled. The 
COMPANY may disapprove of or reject the Contractor’s work while it is in progress if the 
COMPANY believes that such work will not produce a completed Project that conforms 
generally to the Plans or that it will prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the Project as 
reflected in the Plans. The COMPANY’s day-to-day observations will not, however cause the 
COMPANY to be responsible for those duties and responsibilities which belong to the 

construction Contractor(s), including but not limited to, full responsibility for the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, and progress of construction, and the safety precautions 
incidental thereto, and for performing the construction work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents.   
 

 
COMPANY Project Number: 201647 
 
The CLIENT and COMPANY agree to amend other provisions of the original Professional Services 
Agreement and previous amendments as follows: 

N/A 
 
In consideration for these services, the CLIENT AGREES to adjust the payment for services performed 
by COMPANY on the following basis:  
 

 Per current rate schedule with a maximum fee to be increased by thirty-three thousand and five-
hundred Dollars ($ 32,500) 

 
THIS AMENDMENT is subject to all provisions of the original Professional Services Agreement. 
 
THIS AMENDMENT, together with the original Professional Services Agreement and all previous 
amendments represents the entire and integrated AGREEMENT between the CLIENT and COMPANY. 
 
THIS AMENDMENT executed the day and year written above. 
 

CITY OF ANAMOSA  HR GREEN, INC. 
   

   

By:    By: 
Andrew Marsh, P.E. 
Vice President 

 



   
 

Version 2.3  03/09/2022 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
For 

 
Anamosa 3rd ST Sidewalk Extension 

Schematic Design & Funding Assistance 
Shaw Rd to Deerwood Dr 

 
 

 
Beth Brincks, City Administrator 

City of Anamosa 
107 S Ford St 

Anamosa, Iowa, 52205 
(319) 462-6055 

 
 
 
 

Jeremy Kaemmer, PE, AICP – Project Engineer 
HR Green, Inc.  

8710 Earhart Lane SW 
Cedar Rapids, IA  52404 

P# 220390 
 
 
 
 

March 9,2022 
 
 
 



 
 

Version2.3  03/09/2022  

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
1.0 PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
3.0 DELIVERABLES AND SCHEDULES INCLUDED IN THIS AGREEMENT  
 
4.0 ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN AGREEMENT/SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES  
 
5.0 SERVICES BY OTHERS  
 
6.0 CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
7.0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FEE 
 
8.0 TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 1 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is between The City of Anamosa (hereafter “CLIENT”) and HR GREEN, INC. 
(hereafter "COMPANY"). 
 

1.0 Project Understanding 

1.1 General Understanding 

 
This scope of work involves Concept, cost estimate, and funding assistance for a sidewalk 
extension project along 3rd Street, between Shaw Rd and Deerwood Dr, across the I-380 
highway. 
 
The Consultant Team will provide the following services: 
HR Green, Inc. (Consultant) 

• Project Management and Administration 

• Stakeholder Coordination/Public Engagement 

• Concept Design 

• Funding Alternatives Analysis & Application Assistance 
 
1.2 Design Criteria/Assumptions 

Design shall follow SUDAS standards and specifications for accessible sidewalk design. 
The Consultant will also refer to Iowa DOT guidance for pedestrian facilities within DOT 
right of way. The sidewalk design will not specifically accommodate bicycle traffic, but it 
may be considered as part of an alternatives analysis. 

 

2.0 Scope of Services 

The CLIENT agrees to employ COMPANY to perform the following services: 
 

Task A – Project Management and Administration 
The work tasks to be performed under Project Management and Administration shall 
consist of the following: 
 
A.1 Development of Project Instructions, Schedule, and Detailed Work Plan 
Prepare written instructions for project staff.  Provide background, names of contacts, 
communications procedures, responsibilities, schedule and budget information, and other 
important elements for the project.  Establish a graphic project schedule indicating critical 
dates, milestones, and deliverables.  Prepare a detailed work plan with specific staff 
assignments, by task, corresponding to the schedule.  

 
A.2 Project Monitoring and Progress Reports 
Maintain the system for monitoring progress and expenditures to allow monthly tracking 
by task.  Prepare and submit monthly progress reports outlining the following: 

• Activities during the reporting period, 

• Activities planned for the following period, 

• Problems encountered and recommended solutions, and 

• Overall status. 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 2 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

 
It is assumed two (2) reports will be prepared for this contract.  This task includes 
reviewing the project schedule, budget and status with senior management at two (2) 
month intervals. 

 
A.3 Project Management 
The project manager for the Consultant will be responsible for general coordination with 
the Client regarding project activities, meetings, invoicing, and deliverables.  This task 
includes interoffice administration and coordination of the project including periodic 
interoffice meetings, which will be attended by the project manager and task managers, as 
well as general day-to-day administrative tasks.   

• Prepare meeting minutes and action items. 

• Track progress; monitor and maintain monthly project schedules. 

• Distribution of plans and coordination of responses. 

• Notifications as needed. 

• Billing - monthly status reports / billing should include earned value calculations 
showing percent spent, percent completed and scheduled percent completed. 

 
Task B – Stakeholder Coordination/Public Engagement 
 
B.1 Stakeholder Committee Meetings 
The Consultant will conduct two (2) meetings with a stakeholder committee to be selected 
by the Client, that will be attended by two (2) staff members of the Consultant. The 
purpose of the meeting will be to discuss desires, concerns, priorities and specific issues 
of the adjacent property owners and other affected parties. The Client will be responsible 
for reserving an appropriate meeting facility and notifying the committee members of the 
meeting. 
 
B.2 Public Engagement 
The Consultant will conduct one (1) public meeting that will be attended by two (2) staff 
members of the Consultant. The purpose of the meeting will be to provide a brief overview 
of the proposed improvements and a discussion of the conceptual plan, as well as gather 
information on the concerns, priorities and specific issues of the adjacent property owners 
and other affected parties. This task includes preparation of display materials and hand 
out information. The Client will be responsible for reserving an appropriate meeting facility 
and notifying the surrounding property owners and other affected parties of the meeting.  
Also includes reviewing the results of the meeting with the Client’s staff and others. 

 
B.2 Iowa DOT Coordination 
The Consultant will contact the local systems office for the IOWA DOT and communicate 
the project goals and constraints in order to gain buy in from the DOT on the conceptual 
crossing of the interstate portion of the project. 
 
Task C – Concept Design - Schematic Plan Preparation  
The Consultant will perform schematic design services including the preparation of 
schematic design plans.  Plan preparation shall conform to SUDAS procedures. 
Schematic plans will only be submitted to the Client and include: 
 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 3 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

C.1 Title Sheet (A sheet) 
The title sheet will include the following: Index of Sheets, Mileage Summary, Legend, 
Location Map, Project Number, and Design Designation. 
 
C.2 Typical Sections and Details (B sheets) 
Typical sections for each roadway segment and other various detail as needed. 
 
C.3 Estimate of Quantities (C Sheets)  
Determine bid items to be included in the project, along with their appropriate tabulations. 
 
C.4 Plan and Profile (D Sheets)  
Schematic geometry plans for proposed sidewalk improvements. Includes utilizing 
available base mapping information and existing right of way/easements to develop 
proposed sidewalk alignments, proposed drainage structures, adjusted drive entrances, 
side road intersections, and station equation between mainline and side road reference 
line will also be shown. The plans will also identify potential needs for improvements such 
as retaining wall, drainage structures, traffic signal modifications, additional right of way, 
or private landscaping to be affected. 
 
C.5 Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost 
Prepare a schematic Opinion of Probable Construction Cost.  Preliminary construction 
cost opinions shall be based on schematic estimated quantities for major construction 
items.  Detailed quantity takeoffs will not be developed for the preliminary construction 
cost opinion.  Other construction items such as signing, traffic control, mobilization, etc. 
will be estimated based on historical percentages of total construction costs.  Construction 
cost opinions will be submitted with the Schematic Plans. 
 
C.6 Site Visits 
The primary design of this project will be completed using aerial imagery of the highest 
quality available in conjunction with a site visit from the consultant by two (2) staff 
members. The visit to the site will enable the Consultant to better carry out its duties and 
responsibilities during the design phase, and to provide for the Client a greater degree of 
confidence. 

 
Task D – Funding Alternatives Analysis & Application Assistance 
 
D.1 Funding Alternatives Research 
The Consultant will identify potential eligible funding sources and write a memo 
summarizing the available options, match amounts, requirements, and relevant deadlines. 
 
D.2 Preparation of Funding Applications 
The Consultant will assist the city in preparing two (2) funding applications to grant 
programs such as the Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) program and Safe 
Routes to School (SRTS). 
 
 

 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 4 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

3.0 Deliverables and Schedules Included in this Agreement 

 
1) Preliminary Plans 
2) Project Opinion of Cost 
3) Memo summarizing potential funding sources and application details 
4) Two (2) Funding Applications 

 
This schedule was prepared to include reasonable allowances for review and approval 
times required by the CLIENT and public authorities having jurisdiction over the project.  
This schedule shall be equitably adjusted as the project progresses, allowing for changes 
in the scope of the project requested by the CLIENT or for delays or other causes beyond 
the control of COMPANY. 

 

4.0 Items not included in Agreement/Supplemental Services 

The following items are not included as part of this AGREEMENT:   
 

• Project Design/Final Plan Preparation 

• Topographic Survey 

• Real Estate Services (e.g. title searches, appraisals, appraisal reviews, negotiations, 
acquisitions and closings). 

• Eminent Domain/Condemnation Services. 

• Hazardous Materials Investigations and Testing. 

• Soil Management/Mitigation Plans. 

• Private Utility Relocation Design and Plan Preparation. 

• Bidding Assistance 

• Construction Observation 

• Construction Survey 

• Verification Testing Services 

• Environmental and Cultural Resource Services 
 
Supplemental services not included in the AGREEMENT can be provided by COMPANY 
under separate agreement, if desired. 
 

5.0 Services by Others 

N/A 
 

6.0 Client Responsibilities 

The Client/Client shall furnish or obtain from others the following services: 

• Coordinate the appropriate resolutions, public hearings, and notices of intent. 

• Participate in project concept reviews and provide written comments. 

• Provide available topographic, right of way, and aerial imagery information. 

• Provide legal, accounting and insurance counseling services as necessary for the 
project. 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 5 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

• Coordinate/obtain appropriate location/facility for Public Meetings and provide public 
notices. 

 

7.0 Professional Services Fee 

7.1 Fees 

The fee for services will be based on COMPANY standard hourly rates current at the time 
the AGREEMENT is signed. These standard hourly rates are subject to change upon 30 
days’ written notice.  Non-salary expenses directly attributable to the project such as: (1) 
living and traveling expenses of employees when away from the home office on business 
connected with the project; (2) identifiable communication expenses; (3) identifiable 
reproduction costs applicable to the work; and (4) outside services will be charged in 
accordance with the rates current at the time the service is done. 

7.2 Invoices 

Invoices for COMPANY’s services shall be submitted, on a monthly basis.  Invoices shall 
be due and payable upon receipt.  If any invoice is not paid within 30 days, COMPANY may, 
without waiving any claim or right against the CLIENT, and without liability whatsoever to 
the CLIENT, suspend or terminate the performance of services.  The retainer shall be 
credited on the final invoice.  Accounts unpaid 30 days after the invoice date may be subject 
to a monthly service charge of 1.5% (or the maximum legal rate) on the unpaid balance.  In 
the event that any portion of an account remains unpaid 60 days after the billing, COMPANY 
may institute collection action and the CLIENT shall pay all costs of collection, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

7.3 Extra Services   

Any service required but not included as part of this AGREEMENT shall be considered extra 
services.  Extra services will be billed on a Time and Material basis with prior approval of 
the CLIENT. 

7.4 Exclusion   

This fee does not include attendance at any meetings or public hearings other than those 
specifically listed in the Scope of Services. These service items are considered extra and 
are billed separately on an hourly basis. 

7.5 Payment   

The CLIENT AGREES to pay COMPANY on the following basis:  

Time and material basis with a Not to Exceed fee of $19,900. 

 

  



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 6 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

8.0 Terms and Conditions 

The following Terms and Conditions are incorporated into this AGREEMENT and made a part of it. 

8.1 Standard of Care 

Services provided by COMPANY under this AGREEMENT will be performed in a manner consistent with that 
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing at the same 
time and in the same or similar locality. 

8.2 Entire Agreement 

This AGREEMENT and its attachments constitute the entire understanding between CLIENT and COMPANY 
relating to COMPANY’s services.  Any prior or contemporaneous agreements, promises, negotiations, or 
representations not expressly set forth herein are of no effect.  Subsequent modifications or amendments to this 
AGREEMENT shall be in writing and signed by the parties to this AGREEMENT.  If the CLIENT, its officers, 
agents, or employees request COMPANY to perform extra services pursuant to this AGREEMENT, CLIENT will 
pay for the additional services even though an additional written agreement is not issued or signed. 

8.3 Time Limit and Commencement of Services   

This AGREEMENT must be executed within ninety (90) days to be accepted under the terms set forth herein.  
The services will be commenced immediately upon receipt of this signed AGREEMENT. 

8.4 Suspension of Services 

If the Project or the COMPANY’S services are suspended by the CLIENT for more than thirty (30) calendar 
days, consecutive or in the aggregate, over the term of this AGREEMENT, the COMPANY shall be 
compensated for all services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred prior to the receipt of notice of 
suspension. In addition, upon resumption of services, the CLIENT shall compensate the COMPANY for 
expenses incurred as a result of the suspension and resumption of its services, and the COMPANY’S schedule 
and fees for the remainder of the Project shall be equitably adjusted. 

If the COMPANY’S services are suspended for more than ninety (90) days, consecutive or in the aggregate, the 
COMPANY may terminate this AGREEMENT upon giving not less than five (5) calendar days' written notice to 
the CLIENT. 

If the CLIENT is in breach of this AGREEMENT, the COMPANY may suspend performance of services upon 
five (5) calendar days' notice to the CLIENT. The COMPANY shall have no liability to the CLIENT, and the 
CLIENT agrees to make no claim for any delay or damage as a result of such suspension caused by any breach 
of this AGREEMENT by the CLIENT. Upon receipt of payment in full of all outstanding sums due from the 
CLIENT, or curing of such other breach which caused the COMPANY to suspend services, the COMPANY shall 
resume services and there shall be an equitable adjustment to the remaining project schedule and fees as a 
result of the suspension. 

8.5 Books and Accounts 

COMPANY will maintain books and accounts of payroll costs, travel, subsistence, field, and incidental expenses 
for a period of five (5) years.  Said books and accounts will be available at all reasonable times for examination 
by CLIENT at the corporate office of COMPANY during that time. 

8.6 Insurance 

COMPANY will maintain insurance for claims under the Worker's Compensation Laws, and from General 
Liability and Automobile claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage, and Professional Liability insurance 
caused by the negligent performance by COMPANY's employees of the functions and services required under 
this AGREEMENT. 

8.7 Termination or Abandonment 

Either party has the option to terminate this AGREEMENT. In the event of failure by the other party to perform 
in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party, then the obligation to provide 
further services under this AGREEMENT may be terminated upon seven (7) days’ written notice.  If any portion 
of the services is terminated or abandoned by CLIENT, the provisions of this Schedule of Fees and Conditions 
in regard to compensation and payment shall apply insofar as possible to that portion of the services not 
terminated or abandoned.  If said termination occurs prior to completion of any phase of the project, the fee for 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 7 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

services performed during such phase shall be based on COMPANY's reasonable estimate of the portion of 
such phase completed prior to said termination, plus a reasonable amount to reimburse COMPANY for 
termination costs. 

8.8 Waiver 

COMPANY's waiver of any term, condition, or covenant or breach of any term, condition, or covenant, shall not 
constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant, or the breach thereof. 

8.9 Severability 

If any provision of this AGREEMENT is declared invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced by any Court of 
competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining provisions of this AGREEMENT shall nevertheless continue in full 
force and effect, and no provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 

8.10 Successors and Assigns 

All of the terms, conditions, and provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and are binding upon the parties 
hereto, and their respective successors and assigns, provided, however, that no assignment of this 
AGREEMENT shall be made without written consent of the parties to this AGREEMENT. 

8.11 Third-Party Beneficiaries 

Nothing contained in this AGREEMENT shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor 
of a third party against either the CLIENT or the COMPANY.  The COMPANY’s services under this 
AGREEMENT are being performed solely for the CLIENT’s benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any 
claim against the COMPANY because of this AGREEMENT or the performance or nonperformance of services 
hereunder.  The CLIENT and COMPANY agree to require a similar provision in all contracts with contractors, 
subcontractors, sub-consultants, vendors and other entities involved in this project to carry out the intent of this 
provision. 

8.12 Governing Law and Jurisdiction 

The CLIENT and the COMPANY agree that this AGREEMENT and any legal actions concerning its validity, 
interpretation and performance shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa without regard to any conflict 
of law provisions, which may apply the laws of other jurisdictions. 

It is further agreed that any legal action between the CLIENT and the COMPANY arising out of this 
AGREEMENT or the performance of the services shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the 
State of Iowa. 

8.13 Dispute Resolution 

Mediation. In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the design or construction of the project or 
following the completion of the project, the CLIENT and COMPANY agree that all disputes between them arising 
out of or relating to this AGREEMENT shall be submitted to non-binding mediation unless the parties mutually 
agree otherwise. The CLIENT and COMPANY further agree to include a similar mediation provision in all 
agreements with independent contractors and consultants retained for the project and to require all independent 
contractors and consultants also to include a similar mediation provision in all agreements with subcontractors, 
sub-consultants, suppliers or fabricators so retained, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for 
dispute resolution between the parties to those agreements. 

8.14 Attorney’s Fees 

If litigation arises for purposes of collecting fees or expenses due under this AGREEMENT, the Court in such 
litigation shall award reasonable costs and expenses, including attorney fees, to the party justly entitled thereto.  
In awarding attorney fees, the Court shall not be bound by any Court fee schedule, but shall, in the interest of 
justice, award the full amount of costs, expenses, and attorney fees paid or incurred in good faith. 

8.15 Ownership of Instruments of Service 

All reports, plans, specifications, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates and other 
documents including all documents on electronic media prepared by COMPANY as instruments of service shall 
remain the property of COMPANY.  COMPANY shall retain these records for a period of five (5) years following 
completion/submission of the records, during which period they will be made available to the CLIENT at all 
reasonable times. 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 8 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

8.16 Reuse of Documents 

All project documents including, but not limited to, plans and specifications furnished by COMPANY under this 
project are intended for use on this project only.  Any reuse, without specific written verification or adoption by 
COMPANY, shall be at the CLIENT's sole risk, and CLIENT shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
COMPANY from all claims, damages and expenses including attorneys’ fees arising out of or resulting 
therefrom. 

Under no circumstances shall delivery of electronic files for use by the CLIENT be deemed a sale by the 
COMPANY, and the COMPANY makes no warranties, either express or implied, of merchantability and fitness 
for any particular purpose. In no event shall the COMPANY be liable for indirect or consequential damages as 
a result of the CLIENT’s use or reuse of the electronic files. 

8.17 Failure to Abide by Design Documents or To Obtain Guidance 

The CLIENT agrees that it would be unfair to hold COMPANY liable for problems that might occur should 
COMPANY’S plans, specifications or design intents not be followed, or for problems resulting from others' failure 
to obtain and/or follow COMPANY’S guidance with respect to any errors, omissions, inconsistencies, 
ambiguities or conflicts which are detected or alleged to exist in or as a consequence of implementing 
COMPANY’S plans, specifications or other instruments of service.  Accordingly, the CLIENT waives any claim 
against COMPANY, and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold COMPANY harmless from any claim for injury 
or losses that results from failure to follow COMPANY’S plans, specifications or design intent, or for failure to 
obtain and/or follow COMPANY’S guidance with respect to any alleged errors, omissions, inconsistencies, 
ambiguities or conflicts contained within or arising as a result of implementing COMPANY’S plans, specifications 
or other instruments of service.  The CLIENT also agrees to compensate COMPANY for any time spent and 
expenses incurred remedying CLIENT’s failures according to COMPANY’S prevailing fee schedule and 
expense reimbursement policy. 

8.18 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

As part of the Deliverables, COMPANY may submit to the CLIENT an opinion of probable cost required to 
construct work recommended, designed, or specified by COMPANY, if required by CLIENT.  COMPANY is not 
a construction cost estimator or construction contractor, nor should COMPANY’S rendering an opinion of 
probable construction costs be considered equivalent to the nature and extent of service a construction cost 
estimator or construction contractor would provide.  This requires COMPANY to make a number of assumptions 
as to actual conditions that will be encountered on site; the specific decisions of other design professionals 
engaged; the means and methods of construction the contractor will employ; the cost and extent of labor, 
equipment and materials the contractor will employ; contractor's techniques in determining prices and market 
conditions at the time, and other factors over which COMPANY has no control.  Given the assumptions which 
must be made, COMPANY cannot guarantee the accuracy of its opinions of cost, and in recognition of that fact, 
the CLIENT waives any claim against COMPANY relative to the accuracy of COMPANY’S opinion of probable 
construction cost. 

8.19 Design Information in Electronic Form 

Because electronic file information can be easily altered, corrupted, or modified by other parties, either 
intentionally or inadvertently, without notice or indication, COMPANY reserves the right to remove itself from its 
ownership and/or involvement in the material from each electronic medium not held in its possession. CLIENT 
shall retain copies of the work performed by COMPANY in electronic form only for information and use by 
CLIENT for the specific purpose for which COMPANY was engaged. Said material shall not be used by CLIENT 
or transferred to any other party, for use in other projects, additions to this project, or any other purpose for 
which the material was not strictly intended by COMPANY without COMPANY’s express written permission. 
Any unauthorized use or reuse or modifications of this material shall be at CLIENT’S sole risk.  Furthermore, 
the CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY harmless from all claims, injuries, damages, 
losses, expenses, and attorneys’ fees arising out of the modification or reuse of these materials. 

The CLIENT recognizes that designs, plans, and data stored on electronic media including, but not limited to 
computer disk, magnetic tape, or files transferred via email, may be subject to undetectable alteration and/or 
uncontrollable deterioration.  The CLIENT, therefore, agrees that COMPANY shall not be liable for the 
completeness or accuracy of any materials provided on electronic media after a 30-day inspection period, during 
which time COMPANY shall correct any errors detected by the CLIENT to complete the design in accordance 
with the intent of the contract and specifications.  After 40 days, at the request of the CLIENT, COMPANY shall 
submit a final set of sealed drawings, and any additional services to be performed by COMPANY relative to the 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 9 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

submitted electronic materials shall be subject to separate agreement.  The CLIENT is aware that differences 
may exist between the electronic files delivered and the printed hard-copy construction documents.  In the event 
of a conflict between the signed construction documents prepared by the COMPANY and electronic files, the 
signed or sealed hard-copy construction documents shall govern. 

8.20 Information Provided by Others 

The CLIENT shall furnish, at the CLIENT’s expense, all information, requirements, reports, data, surveys and 
instructions required by this AGREEMENT.  The COMPANY may use such information, requirements, reports, 
data, surveys and instructions in performing its services and is entitled to rely upon the accuracy and 
completeness thereof.  The COMPANY shall not be held responsible for any errors or omissions that may arise 
as a result of erroneous or incomplete information provided by the CLIENT and/or the CLIENT’s consultants 
and contractors. 

COMPANY is not responsible for accuracy of any plans, surveys or information of any type including electronic 
media prepared by any other consultants, etc. provided to COMPANY for use in preparation of plans.  The 
CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the COMPANY from any 
damages, liabilities, or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, arising out of or connected 
in any way with the services performed by other consultants engaged by the CLIENT. 

COMPANY is not responsible for accuracy of topographic surveys provided by others.  A field check of a 
topographic survey provided by others will not be done under this AGREEMENT unless indicated in the Scope 
of Services. 

8.21 Force Majeure 

The CLIENT agrees that the COMPANY is not responsible for damages arising directly or indirectly from any 
delays for causes beyond the COMPANY's control. CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY, 
its consultants, agents, and employees harmless from any and all liability, other than that caused by the 
negligent acts, errors, or omissions of COMPANY, arising out of or resulting from the same.  For purposes of 
this AGREEMENT, such causes include, but are not limited to, strikes or other labor disputes; severe weather 
disruptions or other natural disasters or acts of God; fires, riots, war or other emergencies; disease epidemic or 
pandemic; failure of any government agency to act in a timely manner; failure of performance by the CLIENT or 
the CLIENT’S contractors or consultants; or discovery of any hazardous substances or differing site conditions.  
Severe weather disruptions include but are not limited to extensive rain, high winds, snow greater than two (2) 
inches and ice.  In addition, if the delays resulting from any such causes increase the cost or time required by 
the COMPANY to perform its services in an orderly and efficient manner, the COMPANY shall be entitled to a 
reasonable adjustment in schedule and compensation. 

8.22 Job Site Visits and Safety 

Neither the professional activities of COMPANY, nor the presence of COMPANY’S employees and sub-
consultants at a construction site, shall relieve the general contractor and any other entity of their obligations, 
duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques or 
procedures necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of the work of construction in 
accordance with the contract documents and any health or safety precautions required by any regulatory 
agencies.  COMPANY and its personnel have no authority to exercise any control over any construction 
contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with their work or any health or safety precautions.  
The CLIENT agrees that the general contractor is solely responsible for job site safety, and warrants that this 
intent shall be made evident in the CLIENT's AGREEMENT with the general contractor.  The CLIENT also 
agrees that the CLIENT, COMPANY and COMPANY’S consultants shall be indemnified and shall be made 
additional insureds on the general contractor’s and all subcontractor’s general liability policies on a primary and 
non-contributory basis. 

8.23 Hazardous Materials 

CLIENT hereby understands and agrees that COMPANY has not created nor contributed to the creation or 
existence of any or all types of hazardous or toxic wastes, materials, chemical compounds, or substances, or 
any other type of environmental hazard or pollution, whether latent or patent, at CLIENT's premises, or in 
connection with or related to this project with respect to which COMPANY has been retained to provide 
professional services.  The compensation to be paid COMPANY for said professional services is in no way 
commensurate with, and has not been calculated with reference to, the potential risk of injury or loss which may 
be caused by the exposure of persons or property to such substances or conditions.  Therefore, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY, its officers, directors, 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 10 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

employees, and consultants, harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, and expenses, whether 
direct, indirect, or consequential, including, but not limited to, attorney fees and Court costs, arising out of, or 
resulting from the discharge, escape, release, or saturation of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acid, alkalis, toxic 
chemicals, liquids gases, or any other materials, irritants, contaminants, or pollutants in or into the atmosphere, 
or on, onto, upon, in, or into the surface or subsurface of soil, water, or watercourses, objects, or any tangible 
or intangible matter, whether sudden or not. 

It is acknowledged by both parties that COMPANY’S Scope of Services does not include any services related 
to asbestos or hazardous or toxic materials.  In the event COMPANY or any other party encounters asbestos 
or hazardous or toxic materials at the job site, or should it become known in any way that such materials may 
be present at the job site or any adjacent areas that may affect the performance of COMPANY’S services, 
COMPANY may, at its option and without liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance 
of services on the project until the CLIENT retains appropriate specialist consultant(s) or contractor(s) to identify, 
abate and/or remove the asbestos or hazardous or toxic materials, and warrants that the job site is in full 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT shall be construed or interpreted as requiring COMPANY to assume 
the status of a generator, storer, transporter, treater, or disposal facility as those terms appear within the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C.A., §6901 et seq., as amended, or within any State statute 
governing the generation, treatment, storage, and disposal of waste. 

8.24 Certificate of Merit 

The CLIENT shall make no claim for professional negligence, either directly or in a third party claim, against 
COMPANY unless the CLIENT has first provided COMPANY with a written certification executed by an 
independent design professional currently practicing in the same discipline as COMPANY and licensed in the 
State in which the claim arises.  This certification shall:  a) contain the name and license number of the certifier; 
b) specify each and every act or omission that the certifier contends is a violation of the standard of care 
expected of a design professional performing professional services under similar circumstances; and c) state in 
complete detail the basis for the certifier's opinion that each such act or omission constitutes such a violation.  
This certificate shall be provided to COMPANY not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the presentation 
of any claim or the institution of any judicial proceeding. 

8.25 Limitation of Liability 

In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to both the CLIENT and the COMPANY, the risks 
have been allocated such that the CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of 
the COMPANY and COMPANY’S officers, directors, partners, employees, shareholders, owners and sub-
consultants for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from 
any cause or causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs and expert witness fees and costs, so that the total 
aggregate liability of the COMPANY and COMPANY’S officers, directors, partners, employees, shareholders, 
owners and sub-consultants shall not exceed $50,000.00, or the COMPANY’S total fee for services rendered 
on this Project, whichever is greater. It is intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause of 
action however alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

8.26 Environmental Audits/Site Assessments 

Environmental Audit/Site Assessment report(s) are prepared for CLIENT's sole use.  CLIENT agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold COMPANY, its consultants, agents, and employees harmless against all damages, claims, 
expenses, and losses arising out of or resulting from any reuse of the Environmental Audit/Site Assessment 
report(s) without the written authorization of COMPANY. 

8.27 Design Without Construction Observation   

It is agreed that the professional services of COMPANY do not extend to or include the review or site observation 
of the contractor's work or performance and the CLIENT assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the 
contract documents and for construction observation.  It is further agreed that the CLIENT will defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless COMPANY from any claim or suit whatsoever, including but not limited to all payments, 
expenses or costs involved, arising from the contractor's performance or the failure of the contractor's work to 
conform to the design intent and the contract documents.  COMPANY agrees to be responsible for its 
employees’ negligent acts, errors or omissions. 

 



Professional Services Agreement 
3rd St Sidewalk Extension 

220390 
03/09/2022 

Page 11 of 11 
 

Version2.3   03/09/2022 

8.37 Municipal Advisor 

The COMPANY is not a Municipal Advisor registered with the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) as 
defined in the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act.  When the CLIENT is a municipal 
entity as defined by said Act, and the CLIENT requires project financing information for the services performed 
under this AGREEMENT, the CLIENT will provide the COMPANY with a letter detailing who their independent 
registered municipal advisor is and that the CLIENT will rely on the advice of such advisor.  A sample letter can 
be provided to the CLIENT upon request. 

This AGREEMENT is approved and accepted by the CLIENT and COMPANY upon both parties 
signing and dating the AGREEMENT.  Services will not begin until COMPANY receives a signed 
agreement. COMPANY’s services shall be limited to those expressly set forth in this 
AGREEMENT and COMPANY shall have no other obligations or responsibilities for the Project 
except as agreed to in writing.  The effective date of the AGREEMENT shall be the last date 
entered below. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
HR GREEN, INC. 

    

    

Jeremy Kaemmer, PE, 
AICP     

Approved by:    

Printed/Typed Name: James Halverson 

Title: Vice President Date:   

     
City of Anamosa    

Accepted by:    

Printed/Typed Name:  

Title:  Date:   
 
 
 

jhalver
Text Box
3/10/2022



   
 

Version 2.3  03282022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
For 

 
Anamosa – 2022 Sidewalk Program 

 
 

 
Beth Brincks, City Administrator 

City of Anamosa 
107 S Ford St 

Anamosa, Iowa, 52205 
(319) 462-6055 

 
 
 
 

Jeremy Kaemmer, PE, AICP – Project Engineer 
HR Green, Inc.  

8710 Earhart Lane SW 
Cedar Rapids, IA  52404 

Project #: 220501 
 
 
 
 

March 28,2022 
 
 
 



 
 

Version2.3  02052021  

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
1.0 PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
3.0 DELIVERABLES AND SCHEDULES INCLUDED IN THIS AGREEMENT  
 
4.0 ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN AGREEMENT/SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES  
 
5.0 SERVICES BY OTHERS  
 
6.0 CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
7.0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FEE 
 
8.0 TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 1 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is between The City of Anamosa (hereafter “CLIENT”) and HR GREEN, INC. 
(hereafter "COMPANY"). 
 

1.0 Project Understanding 

1.1 GENERAL UNDERSTANDING 

The CLIENT wishes to establish - comprehensive sidewalk repair and accessibility compliance 
programs. 
 
COMPANY understands the CLIENT intends to perform annual compliance inspections and is 
requesting assistance with drafting appropriate city policies and ordinances, creating an 
implementation plan, and issuing program notices for the first year. 
 
GOALS 

1. Develop a City-wide sidewalk policy for implementing new and maintaining existing 
sidewalks throughout the community  

2. Create an implementation plan and schedule based on anticipated construction costs 
and available funding alternatives 

3. Issue program notices for the first year 
 
1.2 DESIGN CRITERIA/ASSUMPTIONS 

Sidewalk compliance and design criteria shall use design guidance from the Statewide Urban 
Design and Specifications (SUDAS), regulatory requirements from the American Disabilities Act 
(ADA), and guidance from Public Right-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines (PROWAG). 
 

2.0 Scope of Services 

The CLIENT agrees to employ COMPANY to perform the following services: 
 

2.1 PROJECT ADMINISTRATION & COORDINATION 

A. Project Monitoring & Progress Reports 
Project Administration and Coordination will involve the management oversight of the 
project which will include the on-going review of the project execution, documentation, 
schedule and budget, contract file management, and general correspondence 
between COMPANY and the CLIENT.  

 
B. Kickoff Meeting: 

COMPANY and the CLIENT will meet to ascertain that the scope of services is clearly 
defined to maintain the project schedule. It is assumed the Kickoff will be attended by 
two (2) staff members of the COMPANY. 

 
C. Council Meetings/Work Sessions: 

COMPANY will meet two (2) times with the City Council, it is assumed two (2) staff of 
the COMPANY will attend, in either a work session or other meeting to discuss the 
proposed policies, ordinances, and implementation plan. 

 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 2 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

2.2 SIDEWALK POLICY & ORDINANCES 

The COMPANY will assist the CLIENT in establishing the policy framework for the proposed 
sidewalk program. 
  

A. Draft Policies & Ordinances: 
COMPANY will create a draft set of sidewalk compliance policies and ordinances for 
the City to review and adopt. Policies and ordinances will address sidewalk criteria, 
notification procedures, and property assessments. 
 

2.3 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  

The COMPANY will outline a strategy for the City to schedule its inspections, plan for ADA ramp 
improvements, and to address sidewalk gaps. 
 

A. Proposed Implementation Plan: 
COMPANY will develop a plan for implementing the proposed sidewalk policies & 
ordinances. This will involve dividing the city into four (4) or more zones, each to be 
inspected by the CLIENT, one (1) zone per year. After the first inspection is complete, 
COMPANY will assist the CLIENT in preparing the program notices for deficient 
sidewalks, an estimated replacement schedule and an estimated overall program cost 
based on number of ramps in the first region and an assumed sidewalk failure rate. 

 
2.4 PROGRAM NOTICES 

The CLIENT will need to inform affected property owners of their sidewalk deficiencies and their 
responsibilities related to its repair, before moving forward with their own repair project to 
address the deficiencies. 
 

A. Issue Notices: 
COMPANY will help draft program notices to the public about the program and issue 
notices to affected property owners regarding their sidewalk deficiencies. The property 
owners will be given a period of time to address those deficiencies themselves or hire 
a contractor to do it.  

 
B. Compliance Tracking: 

COMPANY will track the status of notified property owners using a GIS database and 
spreadsheet. Property owners who fail to remedy their deficient sidewalks, or inform 
the CLIENT they do not intend to, will be recorded and then reported to the CLIENT at 
the end of the response period so they may be added to a sidewalk repair contract.  

 
2.5 REVISED IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

After the given response period for the affected property owners, the COMPANY will re-evaluate 
the Implementation Plan and revise it based on the rate of compliance, estimated program 
costs, and available funding. The revised plan will address the sidewalk repair and accessibility 
compliance programs using the information -during the one year of inspection and compliance 
tracking. This may mean reducing or increasing the scope of the programs for the following 
years or restructuring the proposed inspection zones. The revised Implementation Plan will 
include the proposed accessibility ramp locations and sidewalk compliance projects that should 
be addressed in the following year, as well as an annualized budget. 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 3 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

 

3.0 Deliverables and Schedules Included in this Agreement 

 
1) Proposed Sidewalk Ordinances 
2) Implementation Plan 
3) Program Notices & Tracking 
4) Revised Implementation Plan 

 
Kick off       One (1) weeks from NTP 
First Council Meeting/Work Session    Two (2) weeks from NTP 
Draft Ordinances, Policies, & Improvement Plan Three (3) weeks from NTP 
Second Council Work Session & Council Approval Four (4) weeks from NTP 
Inspection (CLIENT)     Ten (10) weeks from NTP 
Data Evaluation      Twelve (12) weeks from NTP 
Program Notices Issued    Twelve (12) weeks from NTP 
Program Compliance Report    Twenty-six (26) weeks from NTP 
Revised Implementation Plan    Twenty-eight (28) weeks from NTP 

 
This schedule was prepared to include reasonable allowances for review and approval 
times required by the CLIENT and public authorities having jurisdiction over the project.  
This schedule shall be equitably adjusted as the project progresses, allowing for changes 
in the scope of the project requested by the CLIENT or for delays or other causes beyond 
the control of COMPANY. 

 

4.0 Items not included in Agreement/Supplemental Services 

The following items are not included as part of this AGREEMENT:   
 

• Engineering Design Services 

• Plan Preparation 

• Bid Documents 

• Topographic Survey 

• Compliance Inspection 

• Construction Administration 

• Construction Observation 

• Construction Survey 

• Eminent Domain/Condemnation Services. 

• Private Utility Relocation Design and Plan Preparation. 

• Public Engagement 
 
Supplemental services not included in the AGREEMENT can be provided by COMPANY 
under separate agreement, if desired. 
 

5.0 Services by Others 

None 
 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

6.0 Client Responsibilities 

The Client/Client shall furnish or obtain from others the following services: 
 

• Perform annual compliance inspections & identify ramps to be replaced 

• Coordinate appropriate resolutions, public hearings, and notices of intent. 

• Send notifications to affected property owners. 

• Participate in program planning and provide written comments. 

• Provide legal, accounting and insurance counseling services as necessary for the 
project. 

• Coordinate/obtain appropriate location/facility for Public Meetings and provide public 
notices. 

 

7.0 Professional Services Fee 

7.1 Fees 

The fee for services will be based on COMPANY standard hourly rates current at the time 
the AGREEMENT is signed. These standard hourly rates are subject to change upon 30 
days’ written notice.  Non-salary expenses directly attributable to the project such as: (1) 
living and traveling expenses of employees when away from the home office on business 
connected with the project; (2) identifiable communication expenses; (3) identifiable 
reproduction costs applicable to the work; and (4) outside services will be charged in 
accordance with the rates current at the time the service is done. 

7.2 Invoices 

Invoices for COMPANY’s services shall be submitted, on a monthly basis.  Invoices shall 
be due and payable upon receipt.  If any invoice is not paid within 30 days, COMPANY may, 
without waiving any claim or right against the CLIENT, and without liability whatsoever to 
the CLIENT, suspend or terminate the performance of services.  The retainer shall be 
credited on the final invoice.  Accounts unpaid 30 days after the invoice date may be subject 
to a monthly service charge of 1.5% (or the maximum legal rate) on the unpaid balance.  In 
the event that any portion of an account remains unpaid 60 days after the billing, COMPANY 
may institute collection action and the CLIENT shall pay all costs of collection, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

7.3 Extra Services   

Any service required but not included as part of this AGREEMENT shall be considered extra 
services.  Extra services will be billed on a Time and Material basis with prior approval of 
the CLIENT. 

7.4 Exclusion   

This fee does not include attendance at any meetings or public hearings other than those 
specifically listed in the Scope of Services. These service items are considered extra and 
are billed separately on an hourly basis. 

7.5 Payment   

The CLIENT AGREES to pay COMPANY on the following basis:  

Time and material basis with a Not to Exceed fee of $35,000 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 5 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

 

8.0 Terms and Conditions 

The following Terms and Conditions are incorporated into this AGREEMENT and made a part of it. 

8.1 Standard of Care 

Services provided by COMPANY under this AGREEMENT will be performed in a manner consistent with that 
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing at the same 
time and in the same or similar locality. 

8.2 Entire Agreement 

This AGREEMENT and its attachments constitute the entire understanding between CLIENT and COMPANY 
relating to COMPANY’s services.  Any prior or contemporaneous agreements, promises, negotiations, or 
representations not expressly set forth herein are of no effect.  Subsequent modifications or amendments to this 
AGREEMENT shall be in writing and signed by the parties to this AGREEMENT.  If the CLIENT, its officers, 
agents, or employees request COMPANY to perform extra services pursuant to this AGREEMENT, CLIENT will 
pay for the additional services even though an additional written agreement is not issued or signed. 

8.3 Time Limit and Commencement of Services   

This AGREEMENT must be executed within ninety (90) days to be accepted under the terms set forth herein.  
The services will be commenced immediately upon receipt of this signed AGREEMENT. 

8.4 Suspension of Services 

If the Project or the COMPANY’S services are suspended by the CLIENT for more than thirty (30) calendar 
days, consecutive or in the aggregate, over the term of this AGREEMENT, the COMPANY shall be 
compensated for all services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred prior to the receipt of notice of 
suspension. In addition, upon resumption of services, the CLIENT shall compensate the COMPANY for 
expenses incurred as a result of the suspension and resumption of its services, and the COMPANY’S schedule 
and fees for the remainder of the Project shall be equitably adjusted. 

If the COMPANY’S services are suspended for more than ninety (90) days, consecutive or in the aggregate, the 
COMPANY may terminate this AGREEMENT upon giving not less than five (5) calendar days' written notice to 
the CLIENT. 

If the CLIENT is in breach of this AGREEMENT, the COMPANY may suspend performance of services upon 
five (5) calendar days' notice to the CLIENT. The COMPANY shall have no liability to the CLIENT, and the 
CLIENT agrees to make no claim for any delay or damage as a result of such suspension caused by any breach 
of this AGREEMENT by the CLIENT. Upon receipt of payment in full of all outstanding sums due from the 
CLIENT, or curing of such other breach which caused the COMPANY to suspend services, the COMPANY shall 
resume services and there shall be an equitable adjustment to the remaining project schedule and fees as a 
result of the suspension. 

8.5 Books and Accounts 

COMPANY will maintain books and accounts of payroll costs, travel, subsistence, field, and incidental expenses 
for a period of five (5) years.  Said books and accounts will be available at all reasonable times for examination 
by CLIENT at the corporate office of COMPANY during that time. 

8.6 Insurance 

COMPANY will maintain insurance for claims under the Worker's Compensation Laws, and from General 
Liability and Automobile claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage, and Professional Liability insurance 
caused by the negligent performance by COMPANY's employees of the functions and services required under 
this AGREEMENT. 

  



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 6 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

8.7 Termination or Abandonment 

Either party has the option to terminate this AGREEMENT. In the event of failure by the other party to perform 
in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party, then the obligation to provide 
further services under this AGREEMENT may be terminated upon seven (7) days’ written notice.  If any portion 
of the services is terminated or abandoned by CLIENT, the provisions of this Schedule of Fees and Conditions 
in regard to compensation and payment shall apply insofar as possible to that portion of the services not 
terminated or abandoned.  If said termination occurs prior to completion of any phase of the project, the fee for 
services performed during such phase shall be based on COMPANY's reasonable estimate of the portion of 
such phase completed prior to said termination, plus a reasonable amount to reimburse COMPANY for 
termination costs. 

8.8 Waiver 

COMPANY's waiver of any term, condition, or covenant or breach of any term, condition, or covenant, shall not 
constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, or covenant, or the breach thereof. 

8.9 Severability 

If any provision of this AGREEMENT is declared invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced by any Court of 
competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining provisions of this AGREEMENT shall nevertheless continue in full 
force and effect, and no provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 

8.10 Successors and Assigns 

All of the terms, conditions, and provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and are binding upon the parties 
hereto, and their respective successors and assigns, provided, however, that no assignment of this 
AGREEMENT shall be made without written consent of the parties to this AGREEMENT. 

8.11 Third-Party Beneficiaries 

Nothing contained in this AGREEMENT shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor 
of a third party against either the CLIENT or the COMPANY.  The COMPANY’s services under this 
AGREEMENT are being performed solely for the CLIENT’s benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any 
claim against the COMPANY because of this AGREEMENT or the performance or nonperformance of services 
hereunder.  The CLIENT and COMPANY agree to require a similar provision in all contracts with contractors, 
subcontractors, sub-consultants, vendors and other entities involved in this project to carry out the intent of this 
provision. 

8.12 Governing Law and Jurisdiction 

The CLIENT and the COMPANY agree that this AGREEMENT and any legal actions concerning its validity, 
interpretation and performance shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa without regard to any conflict 
of law provisions, which may apply the laws of other jurisdictions. 

It is further agreed that any legal action between the CLIENT and the COMPANY arising out of this 
AGREEMENT or the performance of the services shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the 
State of Iowa. 

8.13 Dispute Resolution 

Mediation. In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the design or construction of the project or 
following the completion of the project, the CLIENT and COMPANY agree that all disputes between them arising 
out of or relating to this AGREEMENT shall be submitted to non-binding mediation unless the parties mutually 
agree otherwise. The CLIENT and COMPANY further agree to include a similar mediation provision in all 
agreements with independent contractors and consultants retained for the project and to require all independent 
contractors and consultants also to include a similar mediation provision in all agreements with subcontractors, 
sub-consultants, suppliers or fabricators so retained, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for 
dispute resolution between the parties to those agreements. 

  



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

8.14 Attorney’s Fees 

If litigation arises for purposes of collecting fees or expenses due under this AGREEMENT, the Court in such 
litigation shall award reasonable costs and expenses, including attorney fees, to the party justly entitled thereto.  
In awarding attorney fees, the Court shall not be bound by any Court fee schedule, but shall, in the interest of 
justice, award the full amount of costs, expenses, and attorney fees paid or incurred in good faith. 

8.15 Ownership of Instruments of Service 

All reports, plans, specifications, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates and other 
documents including all documents on electronic media prepared by COMPANY as instruments of service shall 
remain the property of COMPANY.  COMPANY shall retain these records for a period of five (5) years following 
completion/submission of the records, during which period they will be made available to the CLIENT at all 
reasonable times. 

8.16 Reuse of Documents 

All project documents including, but not limited to, plans and specifications furnished by COMPANY under this 
project are intended for use on this project only.  Any reuse, without specific written verification or adoption by 
COMPANY, shall be at the CLIENT's sole risk, and CLIENT shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
COMPANY from all claims, damages and expenses including attorneys’ fees arising out of or resulting 
therefrom. 

Under no circumstances shall delivery of electronic files for use by the CLIENT be deemed a sale by the 
COMPANY, and the COMPANY makes no warranties, either express or implied, of merchantability and fitness 
for any particular purpose. In no event shall the COMPANY be liable for indirect or consequential damages as 
a result of the CLIENT’s use or reuse of the electronic files. 

8.17 Failure to Abide by Design Documents or To Obtain Guidance 

The CLIENT agrees that it would be unfair to hold COMPANY liable for problems that might occur should 
COMPANY’S plans, specifications or design intents not be followed, or for problems resulting from others' failure 
to obtain and/or follow COMPANY’S guidance with respect to any errors, omissions, inconsistencies, 
ambiguities or conflicts which are detected or alleged to exist in or as a consequence of implementing 
COMPANY’S plans, specifications or other instruments of service.  Accordingly, the CLIENT waives any claim 
against COMPANY, and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold COMPANY harmless from any claim for injury 
or losses that results from failure to follow COMPANY’S plans, specifications or design intent, or for failure to 
obtain and/or follow COMPANY’S guidance with respect to any alleged errors, omissions, inconsistencies, 
ambiguities or conflicts contained within or arising as a result of implementing COMPANY’S plans, specifications 
or other instruments of service.  The CLIENT also agrees to compensate COMPANY for any time spent and 
expenses incurred remedying CLIENT’s failures according to COMPANY’S prevailing fee schedule and 
expense reimbursement policy. 

8.18 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 

As part of the Deliverables, COMPANY may submit to the CLIENT an opinion of probable cost required to 
construct work recommended, designed, or specified by COMPANY, if required by CLIENT.  COMPANY is not 
a construction cost estimator or construction contractor, nor should COMPANY’S rendering an opinion of 
probable construction costs be considered equivalent to the nature and extent of service a construction cost 
estimator or construction contractor would provide.  This requires COMPANY to make a number of assumptions 
as to actual conditions that will be encountered on site; the specific decisions of other design professionals 
engaged; the means and methods of construction the contractor will employ; the cost and extent of labor, 
equipment and materials the contractor will employ; contractor's techniques in determining prices and market 
conditions at the time, and other factors over which COMPANY has no control.  Given the assumptions which 
must be made, COMPANY cannot guarantee the accuracy of its opinions of cost, and in recognition of that fact, 
the CLIENT waives any claim against COMPANY relative to the accuracy of COMPANY’S opinion of probable 
construction cost. 

8.19 Design Information in Electronic Form 

Because electronic file information can be easily altered, corrupted, or modified by other parties, either 
intentionally or inadvertently, without notice or indication, COMPANY reserves the right to remove itself from its 
ownership and/or involvement in the material from each electronic medium not held in its possession. CLIENT 
shall retain copies of the work performed by COMPANY in electronic form only for information and use by 
CLIENT for the specific purpose for which COMPANY was engaged. Said material shall not be used by CLIENT 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

or transferred to any other party, for use in other projects, additions to this project, or any other purpose for 
which the material was not strictly intended by COMPANY without COMPANY’s express written permission. 
Any unauthorized use or reuse or modifications of this material shall be at CLIENT’S sole risk.  Furthermore, 
the CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY harmless from all claims, injuries, damages, 
losses, expenses, and attorneys’ fees arising out of the modification or reuse of these materials. 

The CLIENT recognizes that designs, plans, and data stored on electronic media including, but not limited to 
computer disk, magnetic tape, or files transferred via email, may be subject to undetectable alteration and/or 
uncontrollable deterioration.  The CLIENT, therefore, agrees that COMPANY shall not be liable for the 
completeness or accuracy of any materials provided on electronic media after a 30-day inspection period, during 
which time COMPANY shall correct any errors detected by the CLIENT to complete the design in accordance 
with the intent of the contract and specifications.  After 40 days, at the request of the CLIENT, COMPANY shall 
submit a final set of sealed drawings, and any additional services to be performed by COMPANY relative to the 
submitted electronic materials shall be subject to separate agreement.  The CLIENT is aware that differences 
may exist between the electronic files delivered and the printed hard-copy construction documents.  In the event 
of a conflict between the signed construction documents prepared by the COMPANY and electronic files, the 
signed or sealed hard-copy construction documents shall govern. 

8.20 Information Provided by Others 

The CLIENT shall furnish, at the CLIENT’s expense, all information, requirements, reports, data, surveys and 
instructions required by this AGREEMENT.  The COMPANY may use such information, requirements, reports, 
data, surveys and instructions in performing its services and is entitled to rely upon the accuracy and 
completeness thereof.  The COMPANY shall not be held responsible for any errors or omissions that may arise 
as a result of erroneous or incomplete information provided by the CLIENT and/or the CLIENT’s consultants 
and contractors. 

COMPANY is not responsible for accuracy of any plans, surveys or information of any type including electronic 
media prepared by any other consultants, etc. provided to COMPANY for use in preparation of plans.  The 
CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the COMPANY from any 
damages, liabilities, or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, arising out of or connected 
in any way with the services performed by other consultants engaged by the CLIENT. 

COMPANY is not responsible for accuracy of topographic surveys provided by others.  A field check of a 
topographic survey provided by others will not be done under this AGREEMENT unless indicated in the Scope 
of Services. 

8.21 Force Majeure 

The CLIENT agrees that the COMPANY is not responsible for damages arising directly or indirectly from any 
delays for causes beyond the COMPANY's control. CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY, 
its consultants, agents, and employees harmless from any and all liability, other than that caused by the 
negligent acts, errors, or omissions of COMPANY, arising out of or resulting from the same.  For purposes of 
this AGREEMENT, such causes include, but are not limited to, strikes or other labor disputes; severe weather 
disruptions or other natural disasters or acts of God; fires, riots, war or other emergencies; disease epidemic or 
pandemic; failure of any government agency to act in a timely manner; failure of performance by the CLIENT or 
the CLIENT’S contractors or consultants; or discovery of any hazardous substances or differing site conditions.  
Severe weather disruptions include but are not limited to extensive rain, high winds, snow greater than two (2) 
inches and ice.  In addition, if the delays resulting from any such causes increase the cost or time required by 
the COMPANY to perform its services in an orderly and efficient manner, the COMPANY shall be entitled to a 
reasonable adjustment in schedule and compensation. 

8.22 Job Site Visits and Safety 

Neither the professional activities of COMPANY, nor the presence of COMPANY’S employees and sub-
consultants at a construction site, shall relieve the general contractor and any other entity of their obligations, 
duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques or 
procedures necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of the work of construction in 
accordance with the contract documents and any health or safety precautions required by any regulatory 
agencies.  COMPANY and its personnel have no authority to exercise any control over any construction 
contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with their work or any health or safety precautions.  
The CLIENT agrees that the general contractor is solely responsible for job site safety, and warrants that this 
intent shall be made evident in the CLIENT's AGREEMENT with the general contractor.  The CLIENT also 



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 9 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

agrees that the CLIENT, COMPANY and COMPANY’S consultants shall be indemnified and shall be made 
additional insureds on the general contractor’s and all subcontractor’s general liability policies on a primary and 
non-contributory basis. 

8.23 Hazardous Materials 

CLIENT hereby understands and agrees that COMPANY has not created nor contributed to the creation or 
existence of any or all types of hazardous or toxic wastes, materials, chemical compounds, or substances, or 
any other type of environmental hazard or pollution, whether latent or patent, at CLIENT's premises, or in 
connection with or related to this project with respect to which COMPANY has been retained to provide 
professional services.  The compensation to be paid COMPANY for said professional services is in no way 
commensurate with, and has not been calculated with reference to, the potential risk of injury or loss which may 
be caused by the exposure of persons or property to such substances or conditions.  Therefore, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold COMPANY, its officers, directors, 
employees, and consultants, harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, and expenses, whether 
direct, indirect, or consequential, including, but not limited to, attorney fees and Court costs, arising out of, or 
resulting from the discharge, escape, release, or saturation of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acid, alkalis, toxic 
chemicals, liquids gases, or any other materials, irritants, contaminants, or pollutants in or into the atmosphere, 
or on, onto, upon, in, or into the surface or subsurface of soil, water, or watercourses, objects, or any tangible 
or intangible matter, whether sudden or not. 

It is acknowledged by both parties that COMPANY’S Scope of Services does not include any services related 
to asbestos or hazardous or toxic materials.  In the event COMPANY or any other party encounters asbestos 
or hazardous or toxic materials at the job site, or should it become known in any way that such materials may 
be present at the job site or any adjacent areas that may affect the performance of COMPANY’S services, 
COMPANY may, at its option and without liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance 
of services on the project until the CLIENT retains appropriate specialist consultant(s) or contractor(s) to identify, 
abate and/or remove the asbestos or hazardous or toxic materials, and warrants that the job site is in full 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT shall be construed or interpreted as requiring COMPANY to assume 
the status of a generator, storer, transporter, treater, or disposal facility as those terms appear within the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C.A., §6901 et seq., as amended, or within any State statute 
governing the generation, treatment, storage, and disposal of waste. 

8.24 Certificate of Merit 

The CLIENT shall make no claim for professional negligence, either directly or in a third party claim, against 
COMPANY unless the CLIENT has first provided COMPANY with a written certification executed by an 
independent design professional currently practicing in the same discipline as COMPANY and licensed in the 
State in which the claim arises.  This certification shall:  a) contain the name and license number of the certifier; 
b) specify each and every act or omission that the certifier contends is a violation of the standard of care 
expected of a design professional performing professional services under similar circumstances; and c) state in 
complete detail the basis for the certifier's opinion that each such act or omission constitutes such a violation.  
This certificate shall be provided to COMPANY not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the presentation 
of any claim or the institution of any judicial proceeding. 

8.25 Limitation of Liability 

In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to both the CLIENT and the COMPANY, the risks 
have been allocated such that the CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of 
the COMPANY and COMPANY’S officers, directors, partners, employees, shareholders, owners and sub-
consultants for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from 
any cause or causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs and expert witness fees and costs, so that the total 
aggregate liability of the COMPANY and COMPANY’S officers, directors, partners, employees, shareholders, 
owners and sub-consultants shall not exceed $50,000.00, or the COMPANY’S total fee for services rendered 
on this Project, whichever is greater. It is intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause of 
action however alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

  



Professional Services Agreement 
Sidewalk Program 

220501 
03/28/2022 

Page 10 of 10 
 

Version2.3   03282022 

8.26 Environmental Audits/Site Assessments 

Environmental Audit/Site Assessment report(s) are prepared for CLIENT's sole use.  CLIENT agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold COMPANY, its consultants, agents, and employees harmless against all damages, claims, 
expenses, and losses arising out of or resulting from any reuse of the Environmental Audit/Site Assessment 
report(s) without the written authorization of COMPANY. 

8.27 Design Without Construction Observation   

It is agreed that the professional services of COMPANY do not extend to or include the review or site observation 
of the contractor's work or performance and the CLIENT assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the 
contract documents and for construction observation.  It is further agreed that the CLIENT will defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless COMPANY from any claim or suit whatsoever, including but not limited to all payments, 
expenses or costs involved, arising from the contractor's performance or the failure of the contractor's work to 
conform to the design intent and the contract documents.  COMPANY agrees to be responsible for its 
employees’ negligent acts, errors or omissions. 

 
8.37 Municipal Advisor 

The COMPANY is not a Municipal Advisor registered with the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) as 
defined in the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act.  When the CLIENT is a municipal 
entity as defined by said Act, and the CLIENT requires project financing information for the services performed 
under this AGREEMENT, the CLIENT will provide the COMPANY with a letter detailing who their independent 
registered municipal advisor is and that the CLIENT will rely on the advice of such advisor.  A sample letter can 
be provided to the CLIENT upon request. 

This AGREEMENT is approved and accepted by the CLIENT and COMPANY upon both parties 
signing and dating the AGREEMENT.  Services will not begin until COMPANY receives a signed 
agreement. COMPANY’s services shall be limited to those expressly set forth in this 
AGREEMENT and COMPANY shall have no other obligations or responsibilities for the Project 
except as agreed to in writing.  The effective date of the AGREEMENT shall be the last date 
entered below. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
HR GREEN, INC. 

    

    

Jeremy Kaemmer, PE, AICP    

Approved by:    

Printed/Typed Name: Andrew Marsh, PE 

Title: Vice President Date:   

     
City of Anamosa    

Accepted by:    

Printed/Typed Name:  

Title:  Date:   
 
 
 

March 24, 2022



  8710 Earhart Lane SW   

   Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 

   Main 319.841.4000 + Fax 713.965.0044 

 H R G R E E N . C O M  

 
 

 

March 22, 2022 

Steve Agnitsch, Utility Superintendent 
City of Anamosa 
1205 Walworth Avenue  
Anamosa, Iowa 52205 
 
Re:    Engineering Services Proposal – Sewer Replacement between Ford St. and N. Huber St. from Webster St. 
to North of Main St 
 
Dear Steve, 
 
Thank you for reaching out to HR Green for assistance with the sanitary sewer replacement project outlined here 
within. It is our understanding that the City of Anamosa would like to upsize three segments of sanitary sewer 
located within an alley between Ford St. and N. Huber St. from Webster St. to just North of Main St. 
Approximately 1,300 feet of 4-inch and 6-inch sanitary sewer will be upsized to 8-inch PVC and four manholes will 
be replaced. Much of the sewer is 4 to 5 feet deep and located under a 10-foot-wide asphalt alley drive.  
 
Due to the number of services, a trenchless sewer installation would not be ideal. Furthermore, the sewer is too 
small to be televised using a crawler camera and exact service locations are therefore unknown. A trenched 
sewer installation would allow services to be exposed and reinstated accordingly, whereas a trenchless option 
would fail to reinstate unidentified services. Construction space will be limited with the open-trench method due to 
the narrow working space in the alley. However, the sewer appears to be relatively shallow and a trench box 
could be installed if necessary to keep the excavation area as small as possible.  
 
Assuming a trenched construction method, all paved areas will be restored to their original material (assumed to 
be asphalt in the alleys and E-W road crossings and gravel in the remaining areas). 
 
The Scope of Services is based on the following assumptions: 

▪ The City of Anamosa has permanent easements over the sewer within the project area.  
▪ Disturbed area in construction will be less than one acre so a SWPPP and NPDES Storm Water General 

Permit No. 2 will not be required. 
▪ Depending on the width of the permanent easements, temporary easements may be needed for 

construction. HR Green’s surveying subconsultant will provide written easements for the City of Anamosa 
to present to affected property owners for signature. 

▪ Iowa Statewide Urban Design and Specifications (SUDAS) will be used for technical specifications. 
▪ One construction bid package is associated with this project. 
▪ A separate contract will be prepared by HR Green for construction services (construction administration 

and part-time observation) after the project is permitted and ready to bid. 
▪ This project will not be funded using Clean Water State Revolving Loan Funds (SRF). If funded through 

SRF, the project will have additional administrative requirements such as an Environmental Review and 
requirements for Davis Bacon Wage Rates and Buy American Iron and Steel and the engineering 
services fee will need to be adjusted accordingly. 

 
The Scope of Services will include the following tasks: 

PHASE 1 – DESIGN  

A. PRELIMINARY AND GENERAL WORK  
1. Project Management. Provide on-going project management including budget and schedule 

management for the entire project duration.  





  
City of Anamosa 

Page 2 of 4 

March 22, 2022 

 


 
 

\\hrgreen.com\HRG\Data\2022\220479\Admin\Proposal\sos_Sewer_Replacement_Anamosa.docx 

2. Complete the Self-Assessment Matrix and Work Record Request as required by the IDNR. A 
Facility Plan is not required for this project. 

3. Contact the IDNR and request assignment of a Project Manager. 
4. Project Progress Meetings. HR Green will conduct one status review meeting with the City to 

present 90% plans and specifications to the client. 
5. Topographic Survey, Property Research, and Temporary Easements. Through a 

subcontract, complete a topographic survey for the project location as well as property research 
to establish right-of-way boundaries and existing easements. The survey should be based on 
USGS horizontal and vertical control. Surveying will include one-call for utility locations. 
Temporary easements will be created for the project area unless the permanent easement area 
is adequate for construction. 

 
B. 90% CHECK PLAN PREPARATION. 

1. HR Green shall compile 90% design, contract drawings, and cost estimates for the proposed 
improvements. The work tasks to be performed include the following: 
▪ Finalize title sheets, including sheet index, legends, and location map. 
▪ Prepare final bid items to be included in the Project as well as final quantity tabulations, 

general notes and estimate reference information. 
▪ Finalize right-of-way and easement plan sheets, including permanent and temporary 

easements for construction purposes. 
▪ Finalize location and drafting of private utility relocations on the plan sheets, determined 

from coordination with the utility companies during design. 
▪ Prepare draft specifications, including Notice of Hearing and Letting, Instruction to 

Bidders, Bid Forms, Bond Forms, Agreement Forms, General Conditions of Construction 
Contract, and Supplementary General Conditions. The documents shall be prepared for 
selection of private construction contractors on a competitive bid basis.  The current 
SUDAS Standard Specifications for Public Improvements will be used where appropriate. 

▪ Complete an internal quality assurance quality control (QA/QC) review of the design and 
make recommended changes as needed.   

▪ Update the opinion of probable construction cost for the Project work. 
▪ Prepare final demolition and civil drawings and details. 
▪ Prepare final civil specifications. 

 
2. Check Plan Documents Review.  HR Green will conduct a meeting with the City to review the 

design and resolve any questions. Three (3) copies of the design documents will be provided to 
the City staff prior to the meeting. HR Green will make necessary modifications to plans and 
specifications based on feedback from the City staff. 
 

3. Permits. HR Green will participate in discussions with the IDNR and assist in preparation of 
required Wastewater Construction Permits. HR Green will prepare the permit applications and 
provide technical criteria, written descriptions and design data for the City’s use in filing 
applications for permits. Any fees for construction permits, licenses or other costs associated 
with permits and approvals shall be the responsibility of the City. The schedule for obtaining 
permits from the various regulatory agencies is not within HR Green’s control. 

 
C. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.   

1. HR Green shall compile construction documents and prepare the project for 
advertisement/bidding. Specific activities and deliverables from this task are described below: 
▪ Prepare the final specifications, including Notice of Hearing and Letting, Instruction to 

Bidders, Bid Forms, Bond Forms, Agreement Forms, General Conditions of Construction 





  
City of Anamosa 

Page 3 of 4 

March 22, 2022 

 


 
 

\\hrgreen.com\HRG\Data\2022\220479\Admin\Proposal\sos_Sewer_Replacement_Anamosa.docx 

Contract, and Supplementary General Conditions.  Prepare detailed specifications, 
special provisions and other documents for the proposed construction work and for the 
materials and equipment required.  

▪ Submit two copies of signed plans and specifications to the City for advertisement and 
bid letting. Provide one electronic copy and one set of reproducible originals for 
development of sets of construction documents. 

▪ Finalize the opinion of probable construction cost based on final project quantities with 
description of bid items, estimated quantities, and unit prices reasonable for the scope, 
schedule, and anticipated job site and conditions. 

 

PHASE 2 - BIDDING 

1. HR Green shall assist in the preparation of the formal Notice of Hearing and Notice to Bidders.  
Publication and costs shall be borne by the City. HR Green shall also prepare and disseminate an 
informal notice to contractors concerning the upcoming Project. 

2. HR Green shall print the required number of drawings, specifications, and contract documents for 
distribution to prospective bidders for the project. For budget purposes it is estimated that ten (10) half-
size (11”x17”) plan sets and specifications will be duplicated and assembled for distribution. This task 
also includes dissemination of the contract documents and maintaining a plan holders list during the 
bidding phase. 

3. HR Green shall be available to answer questions from contractors prior to the letting and shall issue 
addenda as appropriate to interpret, clarify, or expand the bidding documents. 

4. HR Green shall have a representative present when the bids and proposals are opened, shall make 
tabulation of bids for the City, shall advise the City on the responsiveness of the bidders, and assist the 
City in making the award of contract. After the awards are made, HR Green shall assist in the preparation 
of the necessary contract documents. 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

The following services are not included in the Scope of Services. Supplemental services be provided by COMPANY 
under separate agreement, if desired. 
 

1. Permits not listed above. 
2. Environmental field studies and preparation of environmental documents. 
3. Funding application preparation and management. 
4. Geotechnical evaluation. 
5. Condemnation services. 
6. Material testing and certification services. 
7. Construction survey and staking. 
8. Additional engineering services related to rebidding or bid protests.  

 

CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 

The City shall furnish or obtain from others the following services: 
 

1. Coordinate the appropriate resolutions, public hearings, and notices of intent. 
2. Prepare for and coordinate condemnation proceedings, if required. 
3. Participate in project design reviews and provide written comments. 
4. Provide available record drawings and other information on existing utilities. 





  
City of Anamosa 

Page 4 of 4 

March 22, 2022 

 


 
 

\\hrgreen.com\HRG\Data\2022\220479\Admin\Proposal\sos_Sewer_Replacement_Anamosa.docx 

5. Provide legal, accounting, and insurance counseling services as necessary for the project. 
6. Secure Special Use or local permits required by the City or the County.  
7. Coordinate with property owners to secure signed temporary easements prior to construction. 

 

DELIVERABLES AND SCHEDULE 

The following schedule includes reasonable allowances for review and approval times required by the City and 
public authorities having jurisdiction over the project. This schedule shall be equitably adjusted as the project 
progresses, allowing for changes in the scope of the project requested by the City or for delays or other causes 
beyond the control of HR Green. The schedule assumes an agreement is obtained by no later than May 1, 2022. 
 
 

Deliverable Estimated Completion Date 

Site Survey June 2022 

Design Development – 90% Design September 2022 

Construction Documents – 100% Design October 2022 

Bidding Assistance November 2022 

Construction TBD 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FEE 

A Lump Sum professional services fee of $35,000 is proposed for engineering design and bidding. The fee will be 
broken down as follows: 
 
Phase 1 – Design Services      $31,000 
Phase 2 – Bidding Services      $4,000 
 
 
Please contact me at 319-841-4304 or hjindrich@hrgreen.com if you have any questions or need any additional 
information. 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
HR GREEN, INC. 
 

 
 
Haley Jindrich, P.E. 
Project Engineer 

mailto:hjindrich@hrgreen.com


Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022- 
 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING INTERIM CITY ADMINISTRATOR/CLERK AND SETTING INTERIM 
SALARY  

 
 WHEREAS, the current City Administrator/Clerk, Beth Brincks has resigned and final day will be 
April 8, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been recommended that the City Council appoint an Interim City Administrator 
until such a time that a new City Administrator is hired and in place. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF ANAMOSA, IOWA, 
authorizes the hiring and setting of interim salary for Jeremiah Hoyt, Police Chief to the position of Interim 
City Administrator/Clerk, effective March 28, 2022 until such a time that a new City Administrator/Clerk is 
hired and in place. 
  

 Position Employee Name Annual Salary 
Interim City Administrator/Clerk Jeremiah Hoyt, Police 

Chief 
$87,000 

 
Councilmember ____________ introduced the foregoing Resolution No. 2022- and moved for its adoption.  
Councilmember ____________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and the following indicates 
the result of the vote. 
 

COUNCILMEMBER AYES NAYS ABSENT ABSTAIN 
         
CRUMP      
SMITH                    
TUETKEN      
ZUMBACH      
STOUT      
GOMBERT      
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2022. 
  
            _______________________  

     ROD SMITH, MAYOR  
 

ATTEST:  
 
     
BETH BRINCKS, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022- 
 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING INTERIM POLICE LIEUTENANT AND SETTING INTERIM SALARY  
 
 WHEREAS, the current City Administrator/Clerk, Beth Brincks, has resigned; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Interim City Administrator/Clerk position will be filled by Police Chief Hoyt; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Interim City Administrator/Clerk will be carrying out the duties of that office as well 
as Police Chief, there is a need to appoint an Interim Police Lieutenant who can assist with the Police Chief 
duties. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF ANAMOSA, IOWA, 
authorizes the hiring and setting of interim salary of Nick Brokaw, Police Sargent to the position of Interim 
Police Lieutenant effective March 28, 2022 until such a time that a new City Administrator/Clerk is hired and 
in place. 
  

 Position Employee Name Hourly Wage 
Interim Police Lieutenant Nick Brokaw, Police 

Sargent 
$33.00/hour 

 
Councilmember __________ introduced the foregoing Resolution No. 2022- and moved for its adoption.  
Councilmember _________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and the following indicates the 
result of the vote. 
 

COUNCILMEMBER AYES NAYS ABSENT ABSTAIN 
        
CRUMP     
SMITH                   
TUETKEN     
ZUMBACH     
STOUT     
GOMBERT     
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2022. 
 
 
       _______________________  

ROD SMITH, MAYOR  
 

ATTEST:  
 
     
BETH BRINCKS, CITY CLERK 



 

 

 

Elizabeth A. Hansen,  
ICMA-CM, SHRM-CP 
 
 

 
 

Contact Information 
 

  1210 NE 29th Street 

  Ankeny, IA  50021 

 

   515-391-9816 
 

 Ehansen.mmc@gmail.com 
 

 

midwestmunicipalconsulting.com 
 

 

“Every community is unique, and we 

strive to provide our clients with 

personal attention and professional 

services to help strengthen their 

organization and focus on the future.” 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Education 

University of South Dakota, Vermillion, South Dakota 

Master of Public Administration  

 

Accreditation 

Credentialed City Manager from the International 

City/County Manager’s Association  

Certified Municipal Clerk in the State of Iowa 

Certified Human Resource Manager from the 

National Society of Human Resource Management 

 

Biography 

Elizabeth Hansen, Founder and President of 

Midwest Municipal Consulting, L.L.C., is 

pursuing her passion to serve clients with 

organizational effectiveness training, short and 

long-term goal setting, strategic and action 

planning.  Hansen and her team will also assist 

with capital improvement and equipment 

replacement planning and a variety of human 

resource needs, including executive professional 

searches filling critical leadership positions.  

 

A native of the Midwest, Ms. Hansen has over 18 

years of experience in local government 

management, including as City Administrator in 

Elk Point, South Dakota as well as Jefferson, 

Nevada, Windsor Heights, and West Liberty, 

Iowa. Her communities benefited from her 

leadership and proficiency in community 

visioning and financial planning.  These skills, 

abilities and experiences are vital tools to promote 

and develop growth in rural and small 

communities throughout the Midwest. 

 

http://www.midwestmunicipalconsulting.com/


 

 

 

Acknowledgements 

In 2020, Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC 

was recognized as a Targeted Small Business 

in Iowa by the Iowa Department of Economic 

Authority. 

 

Hansen was named Manager of the Year in 

2014 by the Iowa City/County Management 

Association, and in 2007 she became the first 

recipient of the organization’s Emerging 

Leader award. 

 

Affiliations 

International City/County Manager’s Assn.  

Past committee and member since 2002 

 

Iowa City/County Manager’s Association  

Past executive board, lecturer and member 

since 2004 

 

Iowa League of Cities 

Past board, committee member, lecturer and 

member since 2004 

 

Iowa Municipal Professional Institute 

Lecturer in 2016, 2017 and 2020 

 

National Society for Professional Human 

Resource Management  

Member since 2018 

 

Central Iowa Human Resource Management  

Member since 2018 

 

 

Ms. Hansen’s history as a City Administrator 

and her connections across the State of Iowa, 
enables her to combine the knowledge of the 
municipal profession to assist clients to help 
strengthen organizations and bring solution 
into focus. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Equipment Revolving
Planning (ERP) 
An Equipment Revolving Plan is a method for the replacement 

of fleet. By directing certain general fund or other special 

revenues into a revolving account, the department is able to 

replace all fleet in each particular department over a period of 

fifteen (15) years. The first year of the Equipment Revolving 

Plan, will be included as part of the budget submitted for City 

Council approval each year. 

Updated Job  Descriptions 
Of all the important tasks that are included in the hiring process, making 

sure that job descriptions are up-to-date may not always be on your radar. 

Outlining and updating job descriptions is an important piece of preparing 

for future hiring objectives, cultivating current employee productivity, and 

ensuring long-term workforce sustainability. 

Executive Recruitment 
We take pride in working with our clients to find the best 

possible fit for your community and organization. We find 

highly talented individuals with a commitment to serve the 

public, and our placements will be some of the best and 

brightest in their fields. We have experience in the placement  

of City Administrator/Manager, Police Chief/Public Safety 

Director, City Clerk, Fire Chief after Public Safety Director, and 

Finance Director, Public Works Director, Parks and Recreation 

Director, and Building and Zoning O�cial.

Board  E�ectiveness Training
Midwest Municipal Consulting works directly with local 

government and community leaders to assess their needs, 

evaluate and improve their e�ectiveness, and build 

teamwork. While internal expertise likely exists, some 

organizations do not have the time or feel comfortable 

having these tense conversations with their own boards. 

Our team can assist with paving the way for improved 

overall organizational e�ectiveness. 

Capital 
Improvements Plan (CIP) 
A CIP serves as an e�ective guide for the e�cient and e�ective 

provision of public facilities, outlining timing and financing 

schedules of capital and infrastructure projects for a five-year 

planning period. The City Council reviews and updates the Plan 

annually and only approves the first year of the Plan during the 

fiscal year budget process. Midwest Municipal Consultants have 

a team of engineers and financial advisors to assist them in 

putting together a plan that can work for your organization. 

Grant Writing 
Midwest Municipal Consultants ensure e�cient administration and 

operations of grant programs, including maintaining a process to monitor 

for changes in grant terms and conditions that occur after the acceptance of 

a grant; establishing a project plan with timelines and parties responsible for 

implementing the steps of the plan. 

Goal Setting & 
Strategic Planning
It is imperative for every leadership team to meet, 

each or every other year, in a relaxed and positive 

environment to enhance communication, develop 

consensus on issues and opportunities, review 

roles, and build team spirit. This process is 

beneficial in achieving board e�ectiveness by 

developing a future focus, so your organization 

can move forward together. 

Compensation Studies 
An organization needs talented and skilled individuals to build a successful 

City. Because these talented people are highly sought after, an attractive 

pay structure is often the key to bringing, and keeping, the best 

candidates on board. 

Elizabeth A. Hansen ICMA-CM | SHRM-CP 

515.391.9816 • ehansen.mmc@gmail.com

www.midwestmunicipalconsulting.com

1210 NE 29th Street • Ankeny, Iowa 50021

 “Providing focused Growth and Development through Strategic Planning”



March 6-9, 2022 • National League of Cities Congressional Conference

March 16-18, 2022 • Iowa Municipal Managers Institute Spring Conference

April 6-7, 2022 • Iowa Employment Spring Conference

April 20-22, 2022 • Iowa Municipal Finance O�cers Association Spring Conference

June 5-8, 2022 • Government Finance O�cers Association Annual Conference

July 13-15, 2022 • Iowa Municipal Managers Association Summer Conference

September 18-21 2022 • International City/County Managers Association Annual Conference

September 28-30 2022 • Iowa League of Cities Annual Conference

October 19, 2022 • Iowa Employment Fall Conference

October 19-21, 2022 • Iowa Municipal Finance O�cers Association Fall Conference

November 16-19, 2022 • National League of Cities City Summit Conference

515 .391 .98 16  •  EHANSEN.MMC@GMAIL .COM

WWW.MIDWESTMUNICIPALCONSULTING.COM

2022 IOWA’S CITY PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT CALENDAR

CONFERENCE DATES

Call today to discuss 
how Midwest Municipal 
Consulting can help 
your organization grow 
and develop!



1210 NE 29th St.  ~  Ankeny, IA  50021  ~  Office:  515-391-9816 
Email: ehansen.mmc@gmail.com  ~  Website:  www.midwestmunicipalconsulting.com 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

March 4, 2022 
 

Beth Brincks 
City Administrator/City Clerk 
107 South Ford Street 
Anamosa, IA  52205 
 
RE:  City Administrator Recruitment Proposal – Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC 
 
Dear City Administrator, Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council: 
 
This engagement letter will confirm our recent conversations and provide an agreement basis 
for my services in connection with the search of your next City Administrator.  It is my 
understanding that the City desires recruitment assistance, for which I am pleased to offer my 
services.  
 
Finding the right person to carry out the directions of the Mayor and Council is a major 
process.  This is more labor intensive than finding people to fill other positions within the 
city’s workforce.  Cities are staffed to do the routine steps for regular employee selections.  
They are not staffed to do the tasks associated with executive searches.  The decision to use a 
consulting service is a proper use of resources.  Identifying the right person is more than 
finding someone with the credentials.  It is finding the person that will fit best within the 
organization and the community.   
 
I trust the current content and format of the attached proposal is in line with your thinking; if 
not ideal, we can alter accordingly. 
 
Enclosed also is biographic information.  You can see that I am a Certified Professional Human 
Resource Manager (SHRM-CP) and Credentialed City Manager (ICMA) with near twenty years 
of experience with managing human resource matters and conducting executive searches.   
 
Your signature at the bottom of the proposal will confirm your acceptance of my service and 
payment details. Please forward a signed copy to me and I will enter an acceptable meeting 
date on the calendar and begin immediate preparation for your search.   
 
I look forward to working with the City of Anamosa.  If you have any questions regarding this 
proposal, please contact me at 515-391-9816. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Elizabeth A. Hansen,  
ICMA- CM, ICMC, SHRM-CP 
President 
Enc(s) 
 

Executive Recruitment 
• 

Organizational Effectiveness Training 
• 

Goal Setting and Strategic Planning 
• 

Job Descriptions 
• 

Compensation Studies 
• 

Capital Improvement Planning 
 

mailto:ehansen.mmc@gmail.com


  1 
 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
EXECUTIVE SEARCH 

PROPOSAL 
 

 

 
  

Elizabeth A. Hansen, Founder and President 
1210 NE 29th Street, Ankeny IA  50021 

515-391-9816 
 

March 4, 2022 



  2 
 

 

Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC represents municipalities, non-profit organizations, and 
businesses in the Midwest.  Our professional team specializes in short and long-term goal setting 
and community visioning, strategic, action, capital improvement and equipment replacement 
planning, and a variety of human resource needs, including executive professional searches filling 
critical leadership positions.  

Is the mission of your community to provide high quality services that meet the needs of your 
residents?  We bring extensive experience and professionalism and can customize our support to 
meet your individual needs and concerns.  

Our executives and facilitators are certified professionals in Human Resource Management from 
the National Society of Human Resources (SHRM-CP).  They have been community leaders; leading 
searches such as these for decades.  We know that executives play a critical role in how services are 
provided to the public and how local government and non-profit organization resources are 
utilized. We take pride in working with our clients to find the best possible fit for your community 
and organization.  We find highly talented individuals with a commitment to serve the public, and 
our placements will be some of the best and brightest in their fields.   

Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC was founded by Elizabeth Hansen, President and Founder, in 
2016.  A native of the Midwest, Ms. Hansen has over 18 years of experience in local government 
management, including as City Administrator in Elk Point, South Dakota as well as Jefferson, 
Nevada and Windsor Heights, Iowa. Her communities benefited from her leadership and 
proficiency in community visioning and financial planning.  These skills, abilities and experiences 
are vital tools to promote and develop growth in rural and small communities throughout the 
Midwest.  She has a master’s in Public Administration from the University of South Dakota and a 
bachelor’s degree in Paralegal Studies from National American University in Sioux Falls, South 
Dakota. 
 
Hansen was named Manager of the Year in 2014 by the Iowa City/County Management 
Association, and in 2007 she became the first recipient of the organization’s Emerging 
Leader award.  Ms. Hansen is also a Credentialed City Manager from the International 
City/County Manager’s Association (ICMA-CM), Certified Municipal Clerk in the State of 
Iowa and Certified Human Resource Professional from the National Society of Human 
Resource Management (SHRM-CP). 
 
Assisting Midwest Municipal Consulting is Kandi Reindl-Sullivan.  Reindl-Sullivan is  a 
native of Iowa, Ms. Sullivan has over 29 years of experience in local government, recently 
retiring from the City of Des Moines, Iowa as Assistant to the City Manager. Over the years 
at the City of Des Moines, her responsibilities included City Manager’s Office liaison to the 
police and fire departments, staff to the City’s Legislative Subcommittee, staff to the 
Metropolitan Advisory Council (MAC) and was Coordinator for the City’s Special Events 
Team. 

Introduction and Eligibility 



  3 
 

 

Ms. Hansen brings years of experience working closely with elected officials and 
department directors in many city planning settings.  Her search process is based on prior 
experience and on a proven search methodology.  The goal of this process is two-fold.  
First, to maximize your input while minimizing your time investment until we have a 
small, select pool of final candidates.  Second, to provide you with the benefit of my 
expertise as you select a candidate who best matches your needs. 
 

Task  Fee 
Phase I:   
Learn the 
Community’s 
Needs  

We learn the community’s needs through interviews with key city 
employees, elected and/or appointed officials, and any identified 
leaders in the community, such as the School Superintendent, 
chamber, developers and other citizens selected by the Council.  An 
appropriate compensation is determined.  The outcome of all is 
shared with the Mayor and City Council members. 

$1,000 
 

Profile the 
Position and 
Marketing 
Strategy  

Based on the above input, I work with the Mayor and City Council 
members to delineate the skills, knowledge, and abilities a successful 
candidate must possess, along with the important traits, attitudes, 
and values.  I do this by way of several informal meetings with city 
delegates to identify their thoughts on the critical strengths and 
characteristics they seek in a new leader.  These meetings enable us 
to learn the City’s requirements for the position, such as experience, 
education, and training, as well as management and communication 
style.  We then discuss the challenges the City is facing and the goals 
for the next three to five years.  I develop a position profile which 
includes a comprehensive job description, an overview of the 
community, the key opportunities and challenges facing the 
candidate and the selection criteria established for the search. 

$1,800 
 

Phase II: 
Tap the 
Candidate Pool 

We tap the candidate pool in a variety of ways.   
1) We develop and place advertisements in appropriate 

professional publications and newspapers.   
2) We develop and distribute the position profile to likely 

candidates and others who may be interested or helpful.   
3) Our personal contacts with City Managers/Administrators 

and City Clerks throughout the state and region tend to be 
the most fruitful source of top applicants.   

4) We seek out and encourage top-level people to apply for the 
position who may not be looking for employment or who 
may be reluctant to apply directly to the City.   

5) We review my files to find candidates who we know already 
meet your specifications and contact people in local 
governments who may know suitable candidates for the 
position. 

$1,300 

Scope – Proposed Strategy   



  4 
 

 

Screen, 
Evaluate, 
Interview 

Upon receipt of applications, we will screen and pre-quality 
candidate for you.  We do this by reviewing the applications and 
narrowing the candidate pool based on the extent of match with the 
specified criteria.  This narrowed pool is then further reduced 
through written samples, one-on-one meetings, or telephone 
interviews with the candidates.  A written report of backgrounds, 
strengths, accomplishments, writing samples and reference results 
are provided. 

$2,000 

Background 
Checks  

For candidates who pass the screening stage above, we conduct 
complete and thorough background investigations on their 
employment, education, criminal and general background.  We also 
make inquiries to individuals who are working with or have worked 
with the applicant.  After background checks are completed, we 
screen down the top three to five candidates (number of finalists you 
desire). 

$2,000 

Phase III: 
Narrow the 
Field  

Once the finalists have been determined, they are invited to attend 
an on-site evaluation/interview for one or two days.  At this time, 
they are given a tour of the City and meetings with selected 
community leaders, staff, and City officials are arranged.  We will 
provide scheduling and logistics support.  We will also work with 
you to develop appropriate interview questions and travel 
arrangements for the on-site interviews. 

$1,800 

Make Offer  We work with you and your City Attorney to help structure an offer 
that meets the City’s needs.  We may assist the City with the 
development of an employment contract, if necessary. 

$700 

Recent Midwest Municipal Consulting executive search experience includes: 

 

City/Pop Position Contact  Number 
Ottumwa (24,321) City Administrator (2020) Tom Lazio (641) 683-0600 
West Liberty (3,736) City Manager (2020) Lee Geertz (319) 627-2418 
Griswold (1,036) City Manager (2020) Carmen Sorenson (712) 249-2198 
West Liberty (3,736) Police Chief (2021)  Lee Geertz (319) 627-2418 
West Liberty (3,736) City Manager (2021) Lee Geertz (319) 627-2418 
Center Point (2,555) City Administrator (2021) Paula Freeman-Brown (319) 310-0568 
Carroll (10,103) Parks & Recreation Director (2021) Mike Pogge-Weaver (712) 775-7505 
Washington (7,266) City Administrator (2021) Jaron Rosein (319) 321-5365 
Humboldt (4,792) City Administrator (2021) Gloria Christensen (515) 332-3435 
Woodbine (1,488) City Administrator (2021) Kristina Kelly (712) 647-2550 
Garner (4,792) City Administrator (2021) Kelly White (641) 923-2588 
Denison (8,337) City Manager (2022) Terry Crawford (712) 263*3143 

References 



  5 
 

 

Here is a proposed tentative search timeline: 

  

March City Council approved a contract with a consulting firm to hire City Administrator 
April Confidential Interviews with Department Heads, Mayor and City Council and any 

focus groups 

April Update the job description and Prepare a Profile for the Position 
April Council approves job description and profile 
April Prepare advertisements and a list of potential candidates. 

Consultants advertised for the position on various websites. 
Emailing profile. 
Phone calls to potential candidates. 

April Deadline for applications and Screening of Candidates 
May If necessary, Special Council Committee or Board Meeting – Closed Session to 

Update City Council on Process.  Provide list of finalists ranked by consultant for 
review by Council Personnel Committee and any other delegates.  Finalists reduced 
to 3-5. Select candidates for interview and to confirm dates/times of interview. 

May Phone, Skype, or Zoom Interview and/or Written Sample 
May Send a packet of Information to Candidates for Formal Interviews 

May Education Verification, Criminal Background Checks - Finalists  
Call to Candidate References and Coordinate Interviews 

June Formal Interviews.  Additional elements of interview process may include:   
• Tour provided by City. 
• Interviews by Department Heads. 
• Interviews to be conducted by community leaders (from boards, 

chamber, EDC, business, and volunteers. 
• Public open house and formal presentations. 
• Comment cards provided and collected at each event. 
• Finalist does public presentation and final interview with City Council. 
• Comment cards provided to Mayor and Council before deliberation. 

Closed Session to deliberate and direct the consultants to negotiate wage and other 
details of an employment offer (and contract, if necessary). 

June Extend offer of employment.  May include consultant to draft agreement.  City 
Attorney reviewed and amended the agreement for execution. 

June City Council to approve offer of employment (contract) at Council Meeting. 

July City Administrator to start, depending on 30-day or 60-day notice requirement per 
previous contract 

Previous Position Profile - Attached Proposed Recruitment Timeline 



  6 
 

 

The City will benefit by awarding the contract to Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC 
because the President and Founder has over nineteen (19) years of municipal experience in 
the Midwest and mostly in Iowa.  The connections throughout the state of South Dakota, 
Iowa, and some in Nebraska, Minnesota and Illinois is great.  It is helpful Ms. Hansen has 
experience and relationships built while serving on the Iowa League of Cities (ILC) Board 
of Directors, Iowa City Manager’s Association, and many board positions she has served.  
She facilitates sessions for the Iowa Municipal Professional’s Institute offered by Iowa State 
Extension and hosts a booth at the ILC and Iowa Finance Officers Association (IMFOA) 
Conferences, to stay in front of potential candidates.  For all these reasons, Ms. Hansen can 
leverage an extensive network of contacts that most out of state, part-time or semi-retired 
consultants may not. 

• Previous Position Profile 
• Midwest Municipal Consulting Service Infographic 
• Professional Profile 

Midwest Municipal Consulting will conduct the search and provide all of the related services 
outlined above for a flat fee of $10,600 plus expenses, which includes the cost of advertising and 
mileage.  Normally expenses do not exceed $1,500.  The City will pay for the costs associated with 
bringing finalists into the community to interview.   
 
In normally takes 90-120 days to complete a candidate search and fill a position at this level.  Fees 
are payable in three equal payments, with the first one-third payment due at the signing of the 
agreement; one-third due after Phase II and the final payment due at the time the employment 
agreement is offered. 
 
If for some reason the City chooses to re-advertise the position, the City shall pay a flat fee of $5,000, 
plus expenses. 
 
If the above proposal meets with your approval and is accepted, please sign below, and return one 
original to me.  This proposal can be honored for the next 30 days.  Thank you. 
 
________________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Rod Smith, Mayor     Elizabeth A. Hansen, President 
       Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC 

Professional Fee and Payment Policy 

Benefit Statement 

Attachments 



1 
 

 

CITY MANAGER 
Denison, Iowa is the home of 8,373 residents with a diverse 
population located 75 miles from Sioux City, and close to big 
cities like Omaha, NE and Des Moines, IA. Neighboring cities are 
Carroll, Harlan, and Ida Grove to name a few. 
 
Denison’s diversity radiates throughout the city seen in their 
businesses, education, community, and recreation services. The 
city embraces their diverse community with over 20 spoken 
languages and approximately 2300 students in the area.  
 
Denison is home to two satellite universities, Buena Vista and 
Western Iowa Tech Community College, with Buena Vista 
Universities on-site campus being just 50 miles away.  Nearby 
universities include Morningside, Creighton, University of 
Nebraska Omaha in Omaha, Briar Cliff in Sioux City and Iowa 
State in Ames.  
 
More information on the community is available at: 

 
Chamber of Commerce, Economic Development,  

City 

https://denisonia.com/ 

 

School District 

http://www.denison.k12.ia.us/ 

 

The City of 

Denison, Iowa 

seeks a 

proactive and  

experienced 

forward-

thinking  

leader who 

will build 

trust, 

community 

relations and 

the leadership 

team to serve 

as the next … 

https://denisonia.com/
http://www.denison.k12.ia.us/


 

2 
 

Arts and Culture: Denison is home to The 

Donna Reed Heritage Museum,  a museum 

dedicated to the late actress best known for her 

role in “It’s a Wonderful Life”. The heritage 

museum doubles as both a memoriam for the 

actress as well as a performing arts center. The 

Donna Reed Heritage Museum is a must see 

attraction when visiting Denison. On top of a 

performing arts center, Denison also has a 

movie theater, Crawford County Cinema 4, 

which showcases the latest and greatest 

movies. Another museum in Denison, The 

McHenry House, houses numerous artifacts for 

the city including Donna Reed’s Oscar! The 

City also hosts an annual Tri-City BBQ event, 

gathering people near and far for a two-night 

celebration. The event consists of vendors, 

activities for kids, a car show, Iowa Craft beer, 

all for free! 
 

Sports and Leisure: There are countless 
activities and attractions in Denison. With 
numerous city parks, the city’s aquatic center, 
and the Majestic Hills Golf Course, there are 
plenty of activities to do in the summertime. 
Other attractions include Lucky Lanes 
Bowling, Crawford County Speedway and there 
are always sporting events taking place for 
Crawford County Athletic Association.  
 

Education:  Denison has multiple options for 

children to attend school. Public schools 

include Denison Elementary, Denison 

Broadway Elementary, Denison Middle, and 

Denison High School. There are five different 

early childhood options as well as two private 

schools, St. Rose of Lima Catholic School and 

Zion Lutheran School. As mentioned above, 

Denison is home to two satellite universities 

with both Western Iowa Tech Community 

College and Buena Vista University.  

The Community 



 

3 
 

Health Care and Churches:   

The city of Denison provides quality health care services including, but not limited to, dental, 
vision, clinics, chiropractic services, and a hospital. All the services provide the best physicians 
and health care workers. Crawford County Memorial Hospital is a modern facility able to meet 
today’s standards and provide the best quality services to patients. With numerous health care 
services, there are also 15 churches to help celebrate the community’s diversity.  

 

Library:   

The Norelius Community Library is a full-service and a vital part of the Denison community. 

Fiction, non-fiction reading materials as well as periodicals and DVDs are available for patrons 

with borrowing privileges. We also offer faxing, copying, and laminating for a nominal fee, free 

scanning, free WiFi, public access computers. We have several Maker Spaces available for use 

including VHS/DVD Conversion, Sewing Machine and Cricut machines. The children of the 

community can enjoy the Children’s Library, located on the 2nd floor of the library and everything 

in this space is geared toward children up to the 5th grade. We offer programming all year for all 

age groups: Adults, Teens and children.  

 

Parks and Recreation:   

Denison has 16 parks to explore with 2 miles worth of trails. The city parks have open shelters 

available to rent to host birthday parties and other occasions. There are three sports complexes; a 

tennis court complex, Northside Recreation Complex, and a little league complex. Denison 

Aquatic Center provides a lot of fun for families with a six-lane indoor slide, sand volleyball courts, 

diving board, a kids zone, and to top it off, a miniature golf course!  

The Community, continued… 



4 
 

 
Fire:   
The Fire Department consists of 
30 volunteer firemen and a full 
time chief. Denison Fire 
Department doesn’t just provide 
services for their residents, but 
serves more than 10,000 residents 
in a 100+ mile radius!  

 

Police:   

The Denison Police 

Department consists of 13 

full-time officers and 7 

civilian officers. 

 

 

 

Denison was incorporated in 1875 and is the county seat of Crawford County. The city operates 
under a Mayor-Council form of government with a council appointed city manager. The council 
consists of two council members elected at large and one council member from each of three 
wards as established by the Code of Ordinances, elected for overlapping terms of four years. The 
regular City Council Meetings are on the first and third Tuesday of each month at 5:00 p.m. in 
Council Chambers at Denison City Hall. The Mayor is elected for a term of two years with the 
position being part-time. The mayor does not have an office in City Hall.  
 
Denison is a full government service community, including Administration, Library, Code, Fire, 
Police, Parks and Recreation, and Public Works. The city enjoys a stable and diverse staff, 
working together to make Denison a great city with 49 full-time and permanent part-time 
personnel and 50 seasonal personnel.  
 
The city has a Levy rate of 19.05, a Moody’s Bond Rating of A, a general fund of approximately $5 
million, a project budget of near $4 million, and an overall total budget of approximately $19 
million. The city’s finances are strong and stable, promising a bright future ahead. 

Current Priorities 

The City would like to hold a goal setting work session soon after appointment of the next 

City Manager.  The next City Manager will participate in the process and will be expected 

to develop long-term strategies that will help the city address the current projects and 

priorities: 

 

 A Wellness Center. 

 Housing development and programs. 

 Business expansion and retention; emphasize economic development to increase the tax 
base. 

 Annexation - add areas surrounding Denison by expanding corporate limits for housing, 
industrial/commercial business development. 

 Improve the interaction of diverse populations with community events. 

 Create and implement a capital improvement plan and equipment replacement plan. 

 Create and implement a master trail system plan for walking/biking within corporate 
boundaries and surrounding areas. 

 Succession Planning. 

 

Governance and the Organization 

Leadership and Innovation Opportunities 



 

5 
 

The City of Denison seeks a visionary leader to be the next City Manager. The ideal candidate 
will have an ability to see the big picture, be a strategic thinker, and leader with the ability to 
make sound decisions that are in the best interest of the city.   

 

The city manager should have a 
management style that values employee 
involvement and promotes fairness. The 
city manager’s team-building 
characteristics should include the 
understanding and flexibility in allowing 
employees and supervisors the latitude to 
make decisions on how to meet the 
objectives, results in a higher level of job 
satisfaction and performance. The city 
manager’s ability to promote inter-
department and community 
communication and collaboration is 
vitally important to maintain the city’s 
cooperative relationships among 
departments and with local groups and 
organizations.  
 
The City of Denison enjoys financial stability, maintaining the same levy rate for several years. 
It is important to the City that the candidate has budgeting and fiscal management experience 
to maintain the city’s sound financial standing.  Forecasting long-term needs, financial planning 
and awareness of bonding practices and Tax Increment Financing (TIF) is critical.   
 
Every community is working on economic growth and redevelopment.  Denison is no different.   
The city manager will lead the city on economic development efforts and can use these resources 
to stimulate development and redevelopment, especially of vacant by choice commercial and 
residential properties.  
 
The city manager oversees the day-to-day business of the city and is the public relations contact 
person.  This means being present and accessible, approachable, friendly, having an open-door 
policy and offering information on a regular basis to maintain an acceptable level of 
transparency.  Strong presentation and communication skills; both orally and written, will be 
important.   
 
The City has worked hard to build and maintain strong working relationships with community 
partners such as other cities and, the Chamber and Development Council, the community 
school district, and many others, the city manager must understand the importance of 
collaboration and continue to maintain great relations and be creative to seek innovative ways 
to partner with these groups.   

  
  

Desired Capabilities 



 

6 
 

Specific traits identified 

 Leader and visionary; forecasting needs 

 Performance evaluation, staff 

development, team building 

 Strategic and Comprehensive Planning 

 Infrastructure repair/replacement and 

Capital Improvement Planning 

 Approachable, friendly, an Ambassador 

 Grant writer and familiar with TIF 

 Accepts responsibility and can make 

sound decisions 

 Strong communication skills and presenter  

 Long-term financial planning and 

understand fiscal administration of budgets 

 Lead economic development initiatives 

 Champions a customer service environment 

at all levels within the organization 

 Experience managing human resource 

matters 

 Foster  relationships with community 

partners, regional entities and other cities

A Bachelor’s Degree majoring in public administration, business management, law, political science, 

accounting, finance, economics, or related field and a minimum of five (5) years of increasingly 

responsible experience supervising and managing municipal government operations or comparable 

organizations.  An equivalent combination of ten (10) years related education/experience may be 

considered. 

The salary range is $110,000 to $130,000 annually, depending on experience, IPERS retirement 
benefits, life and short-term disability, medical and dental insurance, and Holiday, Paid Time 
Off, including, vacation, medical and administrative leave benefits. An annual vehicle allowance  
is provided or mileage reimbursement is available.  A cellular phone is provided. Residency 
within the City Limits or within fifteen (15) minutes is required within six months of employment, 
unless an extension is necessary and agreed upon by both parties. 

Submit your cover letter, resume, salary history and five work related references by noon CST on 
March 25, 2022 to Midwest Municipal Consulting, LLC. at Ehansen.mmc@gmail.com.  See full 
job description at www.denisonia.com or contact Elizabeth Hansen by calling 515-391-9816. 

Applications will be accepted until noon CST     March 25 

Screening/Written and/or Phone Interviews     April 4 

Selection of Finalists and Background Checks Begin    April 5 

Interviews         April 22-23 

City Council may Consider New     May 3 

     Manager’s Appointment    

 

Education and Experience 

How to Apply 

Tentative Timeline 

Compensation and Benefits 

mailto:Ehansen.mmc@gmail.com
http://www.denisonia.com/


       
 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 

 

Proposal 

 

March 22, 2022 
 

To: Honorable Mayor & City Council, Anamosa, Iowa 

 

 

Brent Hinson 

Hinson Consulting, LLC 

 
 

Re: City Administrator Position Assistance 

 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

 

We are writing to offer our assistance to the City of Anamosa in filling the vacant City 

Administrator position.  Our team is unmatched for its deep experience in municipal 

government in Iowa, its resulting Iowa and Midwestern network, and its specific 

knowledge of Anamosa and its needs. 

 

If selected, we will employ a team with over 95 years of collective Iowa local government 

experience that has collectively completed over 35 city manager/administrator searches 

in Iowa since 2013.  In addition, two of our three consultants serve as full-time 

appointed officials in Iowa cities.  We believe this unique positioning allows us to 

leverage an extensive network of contacts in a way that most full-time search 

consultants cannot.  Selecting the appropriate person as City Administrator is one of the 

most important decisions a Council will make, and we have developed a comprehensive 

process to recruit, screen, and evaluate candidates, providing the best chance possible 

of finding the perfect fit. 

 

 

 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       2 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Hinson Consulting, LLC Proposal: Table of Contents 

 

Our Understanding of the City Administrator Position & Organizational Goals 3 

Specifications for Proposal  

     Firm Contact Information 3 

     Firm Overview 3 

     Consultant Biographies 4 

     Background Factors/Challenges  4-5 

     Understanding the Strategy: Interim City Administrator 5-6 

     Recruitment Timetable 6 

     Client References 7 

     Proposed Scope of Services & Fees 7-9 

     Permanent City Administrator Search Option 9-10 

Appendix: Client Listing 11 

  

 

 

 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       3 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Our Understanding of the City Administrator Position & Organizational Goals 

Due to our team’s deep experience on the front lines of municipal government in Iowa, 

we are acutely aware of the challenges facing rural communities like Anamosa.   We 

understand that to be successful Anamosa must simultaneously be budget-conscious 

but forward-thinking, and optimistic yet realistic.  It must engage continuously with 

important community partners, and make the most of opportunities.  It must battle 

nationwide trends of rural depopulation and provide an outstanding quality of life to 

retain and grow the community. 

 

In the face of these challenges and headwinds, it is essential that Anamosa recruit and 

retain a skilled and committed professional to lead its organizational efforts and to 

properly advise the Mayor and Council on policy matters. Our aforementioned 95 

combined years of local government experience includes 66 years of experience in 

administrator/manager roles.  We understand the combination of broad knowledge, 

listening ability, leadership, energy, passion, financial & negotiating savvy, character, and 

many other traits that are necessary to be successful in this role. 

 

Specifications for Proposal 

Firm Contact Information: 

Brent Hinson, Principal 

Hinson Consulting, LLC 

1234 Moonstone Court 

Mason City, Iowa 50401 

(641) 373-2535 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com  

 

Firm Overview:  Hinson Consulting, LLC is an Iowa limited-liability corporation 

established in 2014.  The firm specializes in City Administrator/Manager searches, but 

also performs compensation studies, employment background checks, and financial 

analysis for local governments in Iowa. 

 

Hinson Consulting, LLC is a single-member LLC owned by Brent Hinson.  It proposes to 

serve as the contracting firm for the proposed services, and will engage as sub-

consultants Callahan Municipal Consultants, LLC (Iowa single-member LLC owned by 

Patrick Callahan) and Mark A. Jackson Consulting, LLC (Iowa single-member LLC owned 

by Mark Jackson). 

 

 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       4 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Consultant Biographies: 

Consultant Brent Hinson has worked in city government for 18 years, having served as 

Finance Director/City Clerk in Iowa Falls, Iowa; City Administrator in Garner, Iowa; City 

Administrator in Washington, Iowa; and since August 2021, in his current position of 

Deputy City Administrator/ Finance Director with the City of Mason City, Iowa.  Brent is 

an ICMA Credentialed Manager.  He has owned and operated his own consulting firm, 

Hinson Consulting, LLC since 2014. He is a past Iowa League of Cities Board member 

and speaker at League and ICMA conferences. 
 

Consultant Patrick Callahan has 47 years of experience in city management and 

executive search in Iowa.  He served the communities of Fort Madison, West Point, 

Maquoketa, and Anamosa in municipal leadership positions, and worked as a municipal 

consultant for the University of Iowa Institute of Public Affairs, the Brimeyer Group, and 

Snyder & Associates before starting his own firm, Callahan Municipal Consultants, in 

2013.  Since 2013, Callahan Municipal Consultants has successfully completed more than 

25 administrator/manager searches in Iowa.  Pat was inducted into the Iowa League of 

Cities Hall of Fame in 2001. 
 

Consultant Mark A. Jackson has worked in city government for 30 years, first as the 

Village Manager in Homer, Michigan, and since 1993, as the City Administrator in Story 

City, Iowa.  Mark is an ICMA Credentialed Manager.  He is an adjunct instructor for Iowa 

State University.  He also has provided consulting services upon request by cities for the 

past 15 years.  He is a past Iowa League of Cities Board member. 

 

Background Factors/Challenges: 

 The last two City Administrators have lasted two years or less in the position. 

 There has been turnover in many other staff positions over the past few years. 

 Is the Council cohesive and does it provide a consistent sense of direction to the 

Administrator and support for his/her decisions? 

 Market factors- far fewer applicants than in the past due to Boomer retirements 

& fewer young people willing to move for their careers, among other factors, and 

more CA positions around state due to increase in complexity of city government, 

and shift away from the model of the part-time Mayor that “does it all”. 

 Good pay is a pre-requisite to landing a good CA in this market, but not a 

guarantee of success. 

 
 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       5 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Due to the challenges listed above, we recommend the City of Anamosa first consider 

the hiring of an Interim City Administrator rather than proceeding directly to the search 

for a permanent position. 

 

Understanding the Strategy: Interim City Administrator 

For an Interim City Administrator position, we would generally be looking at two types 

of candidates: 1) Retired City Administrators wishing to continue to “give back” over a 

limited timeframe; and 2) “Managers in Transition” that may have been let go from their 

previous position, but may bring great skills and desire to prove themselves, as long as 

they show a realization of what may have gone wrong in their previous community and 

a desire to not repeat it. 

 

The advantage to the first type of interim manager is that they can “call a spade, a 

spade” and work to correct any issues within the organization and among the elected 

officials without fear of losing their position.  Hopefully, that type of manager would be 

able to position the City better for a search for a permanent administrator that could 

perhaps commence in 3-6 months.  The advantage to the second type of interim 

manager is that as long as any character concerns can be put to rest up front, the City 

may end up with a permanent manager that is not only highly skilled and experienced, 

but indebted to the organization for helping them rebuild their career.  In the case of 

the second type, we would propose the City and the Interim enter into a six-month 

employment agreement, with the intent of transitioning to permanent employment with 

good performance and City Council approval, either at the end of the agreement or at 

any point during it should the City Council see fit.  From the perspective of the overall 

good of the organization, another advantage of either type is that you would be able to 

fill the position much more quickly than a conventional search and “keep the lights on” 

at City Hall.  We would seek the second scenario as preferable to the first, but would be 

open to any good interim administrator candidates that could assist in moving the 

community and organization forward. 

 

There are potential pitfalls with hiring an Interim City Administrator- there is a limited 

field of candidates, and they may be available today, but may find a different role next 

week and become unavailable.  Therefore, we believe that moving with due speed and 

with a strong sense of direction is important.  It is also important, especially in the case 

of the second type of interim manager that we discussed above, to understand that they 

may wish to continue to apply to permanent vacancies elsewhere in the state and may 

be selected for one of those vacancies, as happened in another Eastern Iowa community 

recently. 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       6 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Interim compensation can vary a bit depending on the arrangement.  Most often, it is a 

contract non-employee arrangement, so the City does not have the cost of benefits but 

would tend to pay a higher hourly rate.  For convenience, we have attached a recent 

salary survey.  If we were conducting a search for a permanent administrator, we would 

recommend a hiring range of perhaps $105,000- $115,000, which translates to $50.48- 

$55.28/hr.  For a contract non-employee arrangement, we would recommend the 

Council be ready to pay up to $75/hr.   

 

Timetable:  As stated above, we are flexible in our approach and process, but would 

anticipate the following timetable at this point in time: 

   

A.  Phase I – Interim Hiring Process 

 

1.  Initial Council Meeting to start the process Consultant/City 

Council 

March 28 

2. Confidential Interviews with Mayor & Council 

Members 

Consultant/City 

Council 

Friday,  

April 1 

3.   Interviews of Interim City Administrator 

Candidates (via Zoom) 

Consultant/City 

Council 

April 4 

4.   Council Approval of Appointment of Interim 

City Administrator 

City Council April 11 

5.  Interim City Administrator Start Date - By May 2 

 

B.  Phase II – Team-Building & Evaluation 
 

6. City Council Goal-Setting Consultant/City 

Council 

By June 15 

7. Facilitated 3-Month Evaluation of Interim CA Consultant/City 

Council 

August 8 

8. Negotiation of Permanent Employment 

Agreement 

Consultant TBD 

9. Council Approval of Permanent Employment 

Agreement 

Consultant/City 

Council 

TBD 

 

The exact dates of each step in the process will be selected after this proposal has been 

approved and the City has provided additional information regarding the schedules of 

the City officials involved in the process. 

 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       7 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Client References:  Specific to this proposal, we offer the following client references 

from past City Administrator/Manager searches: 

 

1. City of Polk City- Jason Morse, Mayor, 515-208-3996 

 

2. City of Orange City- Deb DeHaan, Mayor, 712-541-9016 

 

3. City of Decorah- Wanda Hemesath, Retired Clerk/Treasurer,  

563-379-1362 

 

While we offer these references as comparable to Anamosa, please also see the 

appendix to this proposal, which lists all of our searches completed in recent years. 

 

Proposed Scope of Services & Fees: 

We propose the following scope of services: 
 

1. Assist the Council in developing a pool of applicants and conducting interviews for 

the position of Interim City Administrator.  

 

2. Negotiation of an employment agreement with the selected candidate for Interim 

CA. 

 

3. Attendance, in person or virtually, for all City Council meetings as needed 

throughout the process. 

 

4. Conducting a City Council goal-setting process within 1- 1½  months of the Interim 

CA’s start date to ensure that all parties are on the same page and working toward 

the same objectives. 

 

5. Facilitating a 3-month evaluation process for the Interim CA to make sure that all 

necessary items are being addressed and that all parties are satisfied with the 

arrangement. 

 

6. Negotiation of a permanent employment agreement with the individual, at a 

mutually agreeable time. 

 

7. Providing mentoring assistance and guidance to the individual selected as needed. 

 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       8 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Fee Proposal: 

Task Lead Role Fee 

1. Administration of Process Consultants/Council $800 

2. Confidential Interviews-City officials  Consultant $1,200 

3.  Contacts & Coordination with Potential 

Candidates  

Consultant $500 

4.  Background Screening of Candidates & 

Reference Checks 

Consultants/Council $2,000 

5.  Interviews of Candidates Consultants/Council $1,500 

6. Negotiations with Selected Candidate- 

Interim Agreement 

Consultant $500 

7. Goal-Setting Process Consultant/ Council  $1,500 

8. 3-Month Evaluation of Interim CA Consultant/ Council $750 

9. Negotiations for Permanent Agreement Consultant $500 

SUB-TOTAL – Consulting Fee  $9,250 

Expenses – Mileage, copies, & lodging  $1,250 

Grand Total – Not to Exceed  $10,500 

 

We would anticipate billing for monthly progress payments proportionate to the 

amount of work completed each period, through the completion of the search.  We 

would only bill for work actually completed and would work with the City in good faith 

on any changes to scope needed during the process. 

 

Based on this scope of service, would have the following expectations of City staff and 

officials: 

 

 Respond to various information requests during the process. 

 Provide input throughout the process. 

 Various coordination for interviews, goal-setting, and evaluation processes. 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       9 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

 Legal review of proposed employment contract (by City Attorney). 

 

Permanent Search Option  

In the case that an Interim City Administrator is selected that is a retired manager or 

otherwise not interested in the permanent position, we would be happy to assist in the 

recruitment of a permanent administrator at a time to be determined by mutual 

agreement with the City Council.  In that case, we would propose to delay the goal-

setting process and 3-month evaluation process until the permanent City Administrator 

could take office. 

 

Task Lead Role Fee 

1.  Preparation of Position Profile Consultant $ 1,200 

2.  Council Approval of Profile Council $0 

3.  Preparation of List of Potential Candidates  Consultant $   500 

4.  Printing or emailing of Profiles Consultant $   150 

5.  Preparation of Advertisements Consultant $   200 

6.  Placement of Advertisements Consultant $   200 

7.  Phone Calls to Potential Candidates Consultant $   350 

8.  Screening of Candidates Consultants/Council $1,800 

9.  Selection of Candidates for Zoom 

Interviews - Council Meeting 

Council $    500 

10.  Zoom Interviews of 4-7 Semi-Finalists Consultants/Council $1,250 

11.   Selection of Candidates for Formal 

Interviews 

Council -0- 

12.  Send Packets of Information to      

Candidates for Interviews 

Consultant $300 

13.  Educational Verification, Credit Checks,  & 

Criminal       

       Background Checks & Report 

Consultant $750 

14. Calls on Candidate References Consultant $1,500 

15. Coordination of  Finalist Interviews & Calls 

to Candidates 

Consultant $1,000 



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       10 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Task Lead Role Fee 

16. Actual Formal Interviews – Two Days Consultant/Council $2,200 

17. Negotiations with Selected Candidate Consultant $   500 

18. Formal Approval of Offer of Employment Council $0 

SUB-TOTAL – Consulting Fee  $12,400 

Expenses – Mileage, copies, & lodging  $  1,200 

Grand Total – Not to Exceed  $13,600 

 

 

We sincerely thank you for considering our proposal, and look forward to working with 

you. 

 

Brent, Pat, and Mark 

 



Hinson Consulting, LLC
Revision to Anamosa CA Proposal of 3/22/22
March 25, 2022

Base Fee Reimbursable Total
Permanent Search Option Listed in Proposal 12,400.00$  1,200.00$         13,600.00$  
  Add: Administration of Process 800.00$        -$                   800.00$        
  Add: Confidential Interviews- City Officials 1,200.00$    150.00$            1,350.00$    

Base Proposal- Permanent Search Only 14,400.00$  1,350.00$         15,750.00$  

Optional (Recommended) Services
   Add: Goal-Setting Process 1,500.00$    300.00$            1,800.00$    
  Add: 3-month Evaluation of Permanent CA 750.00$        150.00$            900.00$        

Optional (Recommended) Services 2,250.00$    450.00$            2,700.00$    

Total Including Optional Services 16,650.00$  1,800.00$         18,450.00$  



Anamosa City Administrator Assistance Proposal, March 2022                                                                                       11 

 
Hinson Consulting, LLC 

hinsonconsultingllc@gmail.com 
 
 

Appendix: Client Listing 

Our consultants have assisted with the following representative city administrator/ 

manager searches in Iowa in recent years: 

 

Client Year Contact 

Garner, Iowa 2011/2019 Denny Drabek, City Council, 641-923-3483 

Fairfield, Iowa 2014/2017 Ed Malloy, Former Mayor, 641-233-1080 

Tiffin, Iowa 2015 Mike Ryan, Former Council, 319-545-2203 

Forest City, Iowa 2016 Barney Ruiter, Mayor, 641-585-3311 

Tipton, Iowa 2017 Bryan Carney, Mayor, 563-886-4542 

Central City, Iowa 2017 Don Gray, Former Mayor, 319-521-7276 

Mason City, Iowa 2018 Perry Buffington, HR Director, 641-424-7130  

Carlisle, Iowa 2018 Drew Merrifield, Mayor, 515-229-5800 

Keokuk, Iowa 2018 Tom Richardson, Mayor, 319-524-5020 ext. 107 

Sheldon, Iowa 2018 Katricia Meendering, Former Mayor, 712-324-4651 

Webster City, Iowa 2019 John Hawkins, Mayor, 515-832-9141 

Riverside, Iowa 2019 Allen Schneider, Mayor, 319-330-2102 

Polk City, Iowa 2019 Jason Morse, Mayor, 515-208-3996 

Huxley, Iowa 2019 Jolene Lettow, City Clerk, 515-597-2561 ext 201  

Orange City, Iowa 2019 Deb DeHaan, Mayor, 712-541-9016 

Burlington, Iowa 2020 Stephanie Stuecker, Finance Director, 319-753-8178 

Decorah, Iowa 2021 Wanda Hemesath, Retired Clerk/Treasurer,  

563-379-1362 

Marion, Iowa 2021 Kirsten Fisher, HR Director, 319-743-6318 

Maquoketa, Iowa 2021 Judy Carr, Deputy City Clerk, 563-652-2484 

 



Iowa City/County Management Association

December 2021 Salary Survey*, Conducted by Iowa League of Cities

City/County Population

Number of Full-

Time Employees

Employm

ent 

Years at Current 

Position

Years in 

Profession

Highest

Level of Education Obtained

ICMA Credentialed 

Manager

Base

Salary

Rock Valley 4,059 21 No 21 21 Bachelors Degree No $97,312

Chariton 4,100 18 Yes 2.5 23 Masters Degree No $94,500

Jefferson 4,200 33 Yes 14 22 Bachelors Degree No $109,000

Forest City 4,285 45 Yes 1 21

Associates Degree (2-Year 

Degree) No $78,000

Hampton 4,337 25 Yes 18 18 Bachelors Degree No $106,347

Huxley 4,434 21 Yes 2 22 Masters Degree No $108,150

Dyersville 4,477 22 Yes 18 25 Masters Degree Yes $116,732

Camanche 4,520 24 Yes 5 5 Masters Degree No $89,125

Mount Vernon 4,527 27 Yes 6 21 Bachelors Degree Yes $112,500

Windsor Heights 4,667 31 Yes 1 27 Bachelors Degree No $122,400

Harlan 4,893 29 Yes 5 5 Bachelors Degree No $105,955

Vinton 4,938 40 Yes 7 22 Masters Degree Yes $119,856

Manchester 5,065 34 Yes 16 21 Masters Degree No $108,945

Glenwood 5,073 27 No 5 9 High School or GED Yes $74,163

Winterset 5,353 36 Yes 1 1 Masters Degree No $93,019

Clarinda 5,369 28 Yes 15 17 Bachelors Degree No $110,115

Osceola 5,415 31 Yes 10 10 Masters Degree No $98,000

Algona 5,487 48 Yes 2 2 Masters Degree $110,000

* Truncated by Hinson Consulting, LLC to reduce categories listed and show only cities with comparable population to Anamosa



Iowa City/County Management Association

December 2021 Salary Survey*, Conducted by Iowa League of Cities

City/County Population

Number of Full-

Time Employees

Employm

ent 

Years at Current 

Position

Years in 

Profession

Highest

Level of Education Obtained

ICMA Credentialed 

Manager

Base

Salary

Sheldon 5,512 31 Yes 3 19 Masters Degree No $113,903

DeWitt 5,514 31 Yes 19 21 Masters Degree Yes $110,099

Polk City 5,543 25 Yes 2 10 Masters Degree Yes $129,000

Red Oak 5,596 48 Yes 20 30 High School or GED No $97,975

Estherville 5,904 60 Yes 12 23 Bachelors Degree No $119,330

Asbury 5,943 20 No 17 30 Bachelors Degree No $98,500

Independence 6,064 41 Yes 7 29 Masters Degree Yes $113,100

Adel 6,153 30 Yes 6.75 8.5 Masters Degree No $118,169

Nevada 6,925 50 Yes 1.5 3 Masters Degree No $112,840

Average of 27 

Comparables 5,124 32 9 17 $106,186

Anamosa 5,450 29

Low $74,163

High $129,000

Median $109,000

* Truncated by Hinson Consulting, LLC to reduce categories listed and show only cities with comparable population to Anamosa



 
 

  

Anamosa, Iowa 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR EXECUTIVE SEARCH 

PROPOSAL 

March, 2022 

www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Top 5 Reasons to Partner with Next Move Group for this Search 

1. OUR CLIENTS CONSTANTLY TELL US THEY LOVE HOW EASY AND CONVENIENT OUR VIDEO INTRODUCTION 
PROCESS FOR THEM. 
We record 2 to 3-minute video introductions with all the candidates who express interest so you can watch in 
the comfort of your home or office to preview these people before you spend a penny bringing them to your 
community.  These are designed to be easy and convenient for you.  We ask candidates 3 questions, 1) Tell us 
about yourself; 2) Why do you want this job, 3) Describe your qualifications for this job. 
 
You then get to watch these on your iPad, iPhone, or computer while in the comfort of your own home or office 
at a convenient time and place for you. 
 

How the video introductions will be delivered to you: 
 

 
 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Top 5 Reasons to Partner with Next Move Group for this Search, continued….. 

2. MOMENTUM HELPING SMALL TO MID-SIZED COMMUNITIES NATIONWIDE.  We have helped hundreds of small 
communities nationwide fill various positions from municipal positions, to port directors, to chamber directors, 
to economic development directors.  

 
Sampling of Executive Searches We Recently Completed or Secured:  

• West Fargo, North Dakota 

• Galveston County, Texas 

• West Plains, Missouri 

• Pinellas County, Florida 

• Riverport of Paducah, Kentucky 

• Jefferson County, Illinois 

• Marshalltown, Iowa, Area Chamber 

• Carroll County, Iowa, Econ Dev/Chamber 

• Lafourche Parish, Louisiana 

• Etowah County, Alabama 

• Emporia, Kansas, Regional Economic 
Development 

• World Trade Center of New Orleans 

• Kennebec, Maine, RDA 

• East Central Indiana, RDA 

• Summit County, Ohio 

• Leavenworth County, Kansas, Economic Development 

• North Central Kansas Regional Planning Commission 

• Dickinson County, Kansas 

• Jefferson City, Missouri, Economic Development 

• Riverport of Paducah, Kentucky 

• Owensboro, Kentucky, Economic Development 

• Dyersburg, Tennessee, Chamber 

• Irving, Texas, Economic Development Partnership 

• Shreveport, Louisiana, NEXT 

• Cheyenne LEADS, Wyoming 

• Tri-Cities, Washington State, Economic Development 

• Oshkosh, Wisconsin, Economic Development  

• St. Charles County, Missouri, Economic Development 

• Florida’s Great Northwest 

• Tuscaloosa County, Alabama, IDA  

• Putnam County, Florida, Chamber 

• Banks County, Georgia 

• Kershaw County, South Carolina 

• Plus, DOZENS more… 
 

 
 

 

 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Top 5 Reasons to Partner with Next Move Group for this Search, continued….. 

3. WE REDUCE YOUR RISKS MORE THAN OUR COMPETITORS.  HOW? 
We see communities make a huge mistake whether doing a search on their own or using one of our 
competitors.  The mistake is not doing background checks on candidates BEFORE you interview them in person. 

 

• We conduct credit and criminal background checks on everyone you will interview BEFORE you interview 

them.  Our competitors typically conduct these checks only on the candidate you wish to name as your 
finalist. 

o How does this reduce your risk? 
▪ If we find a candidate has an issue in their background, let’s use a DUI for an example, we 

want to know this before you interview them. 

• A) you can decide to eliminate them if you find the issue to be a deal killer 

• or B) we can ask the candidate about it directly in the interview 
▪ Either way, you are aware of this issue before members of your search committee meet the 

candidate and “fall in love with them.” 

• If you wait and learn an issue after you chose a candidate as your finalist, you run 
the risk of being embarrassed if you find an issue as your community leaders will 
have already made up they want a certain candidate, then you have to explain to 
them why you eliminated this person. 
 

 
Don’t take an unnecessary risk, run background checks on candidates before you interview them. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Top 5 Reasons to Partner with Next Move Group for this Search, continued….. 

4. WE ARE THE MOST AGGRESSIVE DIRECT NETWORKING FIRM IN THIS EXECUTIVE SEARCH SPACE.   Because we 
built our business and reputation first helping small towns, we learned how to aggressively recruit for positions 
based on direct networking to good city administrators we know.  Now, our reputation has grown to the extent 
that we do searches for worldwide known organizations such as the World Trade Center of New Orleans, but the 
recruiting principles we put in place are what we learned helping the smallest of the small towns. 
 
Steps in our Aggressive Director Networking Recruiting Approach: 

1) Build a more attractive job profile than our competitors 
o Professionals now care just as much about the community they live in as the actual job, we 

leave no stone unturned in building a job profile which sells your community to prospective 
candidates all while describing the job. 

 
 

Steps in our Aggressive Director Networking Recruiting Approach, continued: 
2) Email the job profile to 10,000 city and county administrators & municipal employees across America 

▪ We email our attractive job profile to these 10,000 professionals 3 times and have 
analytics which shows us which ones are interacting with the job profile. 

• We then have a recruiter on our team who calls each person who interacts with 
the job profile email to gauge their interest and recruit them into the mix. 

 
 
Recent performance of one of our job advertisements which was opened more than 3,000 times: 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Top 5 Reasons to Partner with Next Move Group for this Search, continued….. 

4. WE ARE THE MOST AGGRESSIVE DIRECT NETWORKING FIRM IN THIS SPACE, continued...    
o Our recruiter calls a minimum of 200 A-list city/county administrators and 

government/nonprofit leaders who may or may not want your job describing the job to them.  If 
they tell us they are not interested we ask them to refer us to someone in their network they 
are impressed with, this helps us find passive candidates who would not apply if we did not find 
them, seek them out, recruit them, and call them to ask them to apply. 

o You may wonder why would we do such hard work as 200 personal calls?  Well to be honest this 
grows our business.  Not only do we find candidates for you, as we make these calls people will 
tell us about other searches we pursue. 

▪ Also, because we also do site selection there is virtually no city administrator in America 
who will not take our call.  When we call them, we could either have a manufacturing 
project for them, or have a good paying job we are representing, why wouldn’t they 
take our call? 

 
Why do we take such an aggressive approach to recruiting for your position?  
According to LinkedIn, 79% of all candidates worldwide for any search are 
“passive” candidates.  “Passive” candidates might have interest in your 
position, but they are not currently seeking a new job.  In order to find 
passive candidates, we have to approach them, communicate with them, and 
recruit them to apply.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Top 5 Reasons to Partner with Next Move Group for this Search, continued….. 

5. RESPECTED NATIONWIDE.  Our brand extends nationwide. 
 

Our Podcast Channel 

www.nextmovepodcast.com, Chad Chancellor hosts shows each Thursday 

Some of our recent podcast guests: 

 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/
http://www.nextmovepodcast.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Our Professional Speaking Engagements: 

Our expertise in helping small to mid-sized communities create economic growth has gotten recognition to the point we 

now are routinely asked to speak at various, here is an 

example of some of our recent speaking engagements 

and topics: 

o Guest speaker, Kansas City Power and 
Light, Topic: All-Stars 

o Guest speaker, Mid-America EDC, 
Chicago, Topic: What to Expect When 
You’re Advancing your Career 

o Guest speaker, West Virginia Legislative 
Conference, Topic: Creating Jobs in Rural 
Towns 

o Board Training Speaker: Brookings, South 
Dakota 

o Guest Speaker, North Dakota Main Street 
Association, Topic: Elected Officials Training 

o Guest speaker, Tennessee Association of Human Resource 
Agencies, Topic: Economic Development 

o Guest lecturer, Community Development Institute, 
University of Central Arkansas, Topic: Site Selection 

o Guest lecturer, University of Southern Mississippi’s 
Economic Development Masters Class, Topic: Building a 
Career 

o Guest speaker, One 
East Kentucky Annual 
Meeting, Topic: Keynote 
Address 
o Guest speaker, 
Wyoming Economic 
Development 
Conference, Topic: How 
Small Towns Can Land 
Small to Mid-Sized 
Industries  

 
Testimonial on our speaking engagements: 

“Next Move Group’s session rated number 1 of 
30 sessions 

rated from attendees at our annual 
conference.” 

-Matt Tackett, Kentucky Association for 
Economic Development 

 

 

  

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
We Have Serviced Clients From All The States In Red Since 2014: 

 

Goldman Sachs Honor: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Testimonials on Our Executive Searches In Their Own Words… 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Other Key Steps in Our Process: 

1. We coordinate all aspect of the in-person interviews and like to interview people in 3 settings: boardroom, meal, 
and one-on-one tour. 

 

2. We negotiate the salary and benefits and hire the best fit. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Our Entire 26-Step Proprietary Process in its Entirety (Note, some communities choose to skip the first 3 steps): 

1. Schedule interview with search committee to understand the position. 

2. Meet with search committee to understand what success looks like in year 1, year 3, year 20 and also what are 

the bad parts of this job. 

3. Share with the search committee the skills and experiences we believe will be needed to do the job, identify the 

salary/benefits we think will need to be offered to get a candidate with the skills to do the job, and discuss 

goals/performance metrics.  Build candidate profile. 

4. Draft the job profile to send to the search committee for edits. 

5. Once the job profile is approved, post it on our website, post it on LinkedIn, and Twitter. 

6. Have board members share the job profile from us on their LinkedIns to multiply our connections to include not 

only our connections but all those of the board members. 

7. Advertise the job on ICMA and the Iowa City/County Management Association as well as other regional 

city/county management and government association websites. 

8. Email the job profile to all the individuals in our database. 

9. Resend the email to those who did not open the email in Step 7 after 4 days pass. 

10. Call 200 city administrator super connectors and call all those professionals who open our email more than 5 

times. 

11. Repeat step 7 the week we close the application process. 

12. Repeat step 8 the week we close the application process. 

13. Repeat step 9 the week we close the application process. 

14. Video interview all applicants in 2 to 3-minute, quick interviews. 

15. Schedule meeting with the search committee to review applicants. 

16. Print resumes and supporting documents to share with the search committee for each applicant so committee 

can review and watch the videos.  Recommend our top 5-10 candidates from the pool. 

17. Meet with search committee to discuss applicants and choose the candidates to interview in person. 

18. Complete background checks and personality profiling on all candidates which we will interview in person. 

19. Coordinate and schedule the in-person interview. 

20. Print sample questions, resumes, personality profiles, and background checks to give to the search committee in 

advance of the in-person interviews. 

21. Conduct in-person interviews.  We like to interview 3 ways: in a formal board room setting, in a casual meal 

setting, and via a 1-on-1 tour.  These 3 different settings test the candidates in multiple ways. 

22. Begin negotiations with the preferred candidate. 

23. Draft contract for preferred candidate. 

24. Drug test preferred candidate. 

25. Hire the candidate and draft press release. 

26. If the candidate and our client cannot come to terms, immediately repeat steps 21-24 with our backup 

candidate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Pricing 

 
$21,000 + travel reimbursement 

 
$7,000 upon the signing of this contract kicking off the project. 
 
PLUS: 
 
$7,000 when Provider presents video interviews of prospective candidates to Client. 
 
PLUS: 
 
$7,000 upon hiring the position from Provider’s pool of candidates. 
 
The only other foreseen costs are Client agrees to reimburse potential candidates for the pre-approved travel costs of 
them to come to its community to interview for the in-person interview portion of the process and Client agrees to pay 
pre-approved travel costs of Client. 
 

 

 
 
 

Proof of Insurance 
 

Next Move Group carries the following insurance policies to protect us and our clients: 

• $1 million Errors & Omissions liability policy 

• $1 million cyber liability policy (covers against if somehow a candidate’s personal information was stolen off our 
servers) 

• $500,000 workers comp policy 

• $2 million general liability policy 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
Bios of Key Individuals for Your Project 

Alex Metzger (Co-Founder)- handles the day-to-day administrative duties of your project and will 

serve as your primary project manager based out of St. Louis. 

 

Bio: 

Alex Metzger, originally from Paducah, Kentucky, now based in St. Louis, comes from a family 

tree of successful entrepreneurs, with his family having owned multiple meat packing plants 

from the 1950s-1990s. 
 

Metzger is responsible for the day-to-day management activities of the company.  Within the last 

year Metzger has managed projects for Next Move Group clients from Washington State to West 

Virginia. 

 

 

 

 

Brittany McCoy (Vice President)- calls over 200 super connectors recruiting for your 

position plus every professional which opens your job profile at least 3 times based on our 

internal analytics. 

Bio: 

Brittany McCoy started her journey in the field of hospitality and tourism, following a love 

for people and for working with the public. Noticing a trend in the lack of developmental 

direction and opportunity in smaller communities, McCoy began looking for a more 

impactful way to reach those residents and to be able to teach them the importance of 

professional, consistent growth and an understanding of the business world. This led her to pursue her master's degree 

in economic development at The University of Southern Mississippi. 

Allyson Knapp (Operations Manager)- based in St. Louis, handled administrative duties 

of the project (setting up schedules, copies, etc.) and records our video interviews. 

Bio: 

Allyson Knapp previously worked as Office Manager for RW Allen Construction before 

joining the Next Move Group team in St. Louis and is a native of Northeast Ohio. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/


Anamosa, Iowa    City Administrator Executive Search Proposal www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
 

 

Caroline Few (Web Developer)- handles getting the job profile posted on our website and 

other websites for you. 

 

Bio: 

Based in Paducah, Kentucky, Few has a degree in Non-Profit Management. Caroline has a 

passion for web development and digital media.  She does web development, online 

marketing, and social media management to Next Move Group. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Contact 
Alex Metzger 

Co-Founder, Next Move Group 
314-421-9110 

alex@thenextmovegroup.com 
www.thenextmovegroup.com 

 
St. Louis Office 

 
 

 

http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/
mailto:alex@thenextmovegroup.com
http://www.thenextmovegroup.com/




Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022- 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING AND SETTING SALARY FOR PARK AND REC 
DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council regularly approves the hiring of new staff; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Park and Rec Administrative Assistant position is currently vacant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Park and Rec Director conducted interviews and is recommending along with the 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board that Chris Looney be hired. 
 
 WHEREAS, such recommendation is now forwarded onto the City Council for their review and 
consideration. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF ANAMOSA, IOWA, that 
the following hire be approved with an effective date of March 28, 2022: 
  

 Position Employee Name Hourly Rate 
Park and Rec Department 
Administrative Assistant  

Chris Looney $18.00 

 
Councilmember __________ introduced the foregoing Resolution No. 2022- and moved for its 
adoption.  Councilmember __________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and the 
following indicates the result of the vote. 
  

COUNCILMEMBER AYES  NAYS ABSENT ABSTAIN 
         
CRUMP     
SMITH                   
TUETKEN     
ZUMBACH     
STOUT     
GOMBERT     

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of March, 2022. 
 

          
_____________________   

                                                                      Rod Smith, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
            
________________________________ 
Beth Brincks, City Clerk 
 
 
 



























Anan,osa Fire Department
Application f'or Membership 

(PLEASE ?RlNT) 

Date of Application· _O=-c_l .... /_0�?�1_1.-�l.=--------

Position(s) Applied For 

Referral Source: 0 Adv�rtisernent 0 Friend O Relative Other 

Address te>o 5 Mc.AIA�/\KA. ]£ NJAp,osA -rA 5ZZa5 
__,___Num-ber----=-_ Street---L--'-'_ ----'-'-'--'---. '-"-_.__ ___ City�.���--�S�l:ai�e---Zlp-C_ode __ -----

-----'----�'---

Does she/he support Y5)Ur �pp!ying for the volun�eer fire dept? 

Does she/he understand you will need to attend extensive training? 

Have you ever filed an application here before? 

. Have .you ever been a firefighter before? 

.□ Ye; 

D Yes 

.0 Yes 

0 Yes 

D No 

□ No

� No 

� No· 

If yes, what department? Served under Chief? ---�---�--�-- -------�--

Reason for leaving that department? --------------'-------------

Are you a certified Fire Fighter? 

If yes; What level 

Do you have a valid Iowa Drivers Licen;;e? 

0 Yes � No 

� Yes O No 

Iowa Drivers Ucen� # _---------.c- c ____________ _ Have You been 

convicted of a moving traffic violation in the last 3 years? � Yes O No 

If ye�. t:_xplain A TLulA87 

CJN 



Er1ployerRoC?liR.s c.o.vc;,gGrc JobTrtle vJ�l- LA�o@�R..

Address 2.28 "� to i<O �,1,MJb"o*,'A S'Ui:35 Supeiv}_SOf'.'jSJ<.2'r BA�.v-cy

Dat_e Hired OS/015/-z,c Work Hours /..f:J H� vJ6l3it.Ly 

!s your present employer agreeable to release you for emergency calls? IZ\ Yes O No 

· Please list your past employers going back 7 years

1 Sc.oo-r � �

4 

5 

6 

7. 

ence, if other than Anamosa, going back 7 years. 

y 

2 

3 {) I} w 7 
· 4

5 

6 

7 

Give name, address and phone number of three references not related to you. 
1 

, r r - -o

2 1\
 

3 I

 Summarize special skills and qualifications that )'Ou may have that would be an asset to our dept. 

j 

AGREEMENT 

l certify that answers given herein are true and complete to the besf of my knowiedge. I authorize investigation
of all statements within this application for membership as may be necessary in arriving at a decision for
membership status. In the event of membership status, I undB=tand that fa!,;;e or mle!eading information given
in my applic;ation or��..tetview may result in discharge. I understand, also, that I am required to abide by all 
rules and regu1 · ns of this service. 

_oi 01 zz...



















































































3/28/2022 11:42:13 AM Page 1 of 7

Expense Approval Report
City of Anamosa, IA By Vendor Name

Payment Dates 3/16/2022 - 3/28/2022

AmountDescription (Item)Post DatePayable NumberVendor Name Account Number

Vendor: 004233 - 941 TAX EFT PAYMENT

1,670.62MEDICARE TAX03/18/2022INV0000463941 TAX EFT PAYMENT 001-000-2206

7,143.10SOCIAL SECURITY TAX03/18/2022INV0000464941 TAX EFT PAYMENT 001-000-2202

4,490.63FEDERAL TAX03/18/2022INV0000465941 TAX EFT PAYMENT 001-000-2200

44.92MEDICARE TAX03/22/2022INV0000478941 TAX EFT PAYMENT 001-000-2206

192.06SOCIAL SECURITY TAX03/22/2022INV0000479941 TAX EFT PAYMENT 001-000-2202

146.19FEDERAL TAX03/22/2022INV0000480941 TAX EFT PAYMENT 001-000-2200

Vendor 004233 - 941 TAX EFT PAYMENT Total: 13,687.52

Vendor: 004658 - A&L ROLLOFF, INC

3,743.60DEBRIS REMOVAL - NEW POLICE…03/28/202231122A&L ROLLOFF, INC 351-111-6555

Vendor 004658 - A&L ROLLOFF, INC Total: 3,743.60

Vendor: 005697 - ACME TOOLS

1,255.99SAW03/28/202218121076ACME TOOLS 600-810-6504

Vendor 005697 - ACME TOOLS Total: 1,255.99

Vendor: 006141 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

104.95OFFICE SUPPLIES03/28/2022176V-9YM9-JTL6AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 001-622-6535

735.98BLOWER CABINET FAN - CONE03/28/20221HX4-PH7X-K3N9AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 610-815-6722

1,499.96BLOWER CABINET FANS03/28/20221GWG-VYN4-M6LYAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 610-815-6555

Vendor 006141 - AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Total: 2,340.89

Vendor: 005770 - AMAZON

128.71DVDs03/01/2022979755633786AMAZON 041-410-6501

Vendor 005770 - AMAZON Total: 128.71

Vendor: 000177 - ANAMOSA BOWLING CENTER

91.00PIZZA - FATHER/DAUGHTER DA…02/12/202227854ANAMOSA BOWLING CENTER 043-430-6490

Vendor 000177 - ANAMOSA BOWLING CENTER Total: 91.00

Vendor: 000185 - AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES

480.00RED TRUCK TIRES03/28/2022071535AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES 043-430-6550

Vendor 000185 - AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES Total: 480.00

Vendor: 006441 - BADGE&WALLET.COM

262.50MEDAL OF VALOR03/28/2022442588BADGE&WALLET.COM 001-110-6553

Vendor 006441 - BADGE&WALLET.COM Total: 262.50

Vendor: 000188 - BAKER & TAYLOR

31.07BOOKS03/21/20222036514477BAKER & TAYLOR 041-410-6501

479.51BOOKS03/21/20222036537455BAKER & TAYLOR 041-410-6501

21.34BOOKS03/21/20222036563723BAKER & TAYLOR 041-410-6501

251.80BOOKS03/21/20222036564590BAKER & TAYLOR 041-410-6501

Vendor 000188 - BAKER & TAYLOR Total: 783.72

Vendor: 005731 - BANOWETZ LUMBER COMPANY INC

101.01LUMBER03/28/202224296BANOWETZ LUMBER COMPANY… 110-210-6512

99.24LUMBER, DRYWALL SCREWS03/28/202224307BANOWETZ LUMBER COMPANY… 110-210-6512

Vendor 005731 - BANOWETZ LUMBER COMPANY INC Total: 200.25

Vendor: 004421 - BROWN SUPPLY CO., INC.

685.00SNOW PLOW GUARDS03/28/2022118011BROWN SUPPLY CO., INC. 110-211-6470

100.00MARKING FLAGS/PAINT03/28/2022118132BROWN SUPPLY CO., INC. 110-211-6543

Vendor 004421 - BROWN SUPPLY CO., INC. Total: 785.00

Vendor: 004209 - C.J. COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

50.00DOT CLEARING HOUSE - RAND…03/28/2022190689C.J. COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 001-210-6490

20.00DOT CLEARING HOUSE - RAND…03/28/2022190689C.J. COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 600-810-6489

20.00DOT CLEARING HOUSE - RAND…03/28/2022190689C.J. COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 610-815-6489

Vendor 004209 - C.J. COOPER & ASSOCIATES, INC. Total: 90.00



Expense Approval Report     Payment Dates: 3/16/2022 - 3/28/2022

3/28/2022 11:42:13 AM Page 2 of 7

AmountDescription (Item)Post DatePayable NumberVendor Name Account Number

Vendor: 006431 - CARQUEST OF MONTICELLO

170.94CUTTING TIP03/28/2022257142CARQUEST OF MONTICELLO 110-211-6530

-83.56RETURNS03/28/2022CM0000036CARQUEST OF MONTICELLO 110-211-6530

Vendor 006431 - CARQUEST OF MONTICELLO Total: 87.38

Vendor: 000395 - CENTURYLINK

73.26LCC MTHLY PHONE02/25/2022022522CENTURYLINK 043-430-6373

124.62MTHLY PHONE SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000473CENTURYLINK 001-110-6373

272.10MTHLY PHONE SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000473CENTURYLINK 001-622-6373

57.76MTHLY PHONE SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000473CENTURYLINK 015-150-6373

156.85MTHLY PHONE SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000473CENTURYLINK 041-410-6373

66.04MTHLY PHONE SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000473CENTURYLINK 110-211-6373

62.64MTHLY PHONE SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000473CENTURYLINK 600-810-6373

229.53MTHLY PHONE SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000473CENTURYLINK 610-815-6373

Vendor 000395 - CENTURYLINK Total: 1,042.80

Vendor: 000008 - CITY OF ANAMOSA

164.20FLEX - MEDICAL03/18/2022INV0000460CITY OF ANAMOSA 001-000-2204

Vendor 000008 - CITY OF ANAMOSA Total: 164.20

Vendor: 000771 - DANS OVERHEAD DOORS

337.71DOOR REPAIRS - WASH BAY03/28/2022532327DANS OVERHEAD DOORS 110-211-6523

514.87DOOR ROLLER REPLACEMENT03/28/2022532528DANS OVERHEAD DOORS 610-815-6553

Vendor 000771 - DANS OVERHEAD DOORS Total: 852.58

Vendor: 006401 - DANS TIRES AND MORE

2,901.66NEW TIRES03/28/20225925DANS TIRES AND MORE 110-211-6470

Vendor 006401 - DANS TIRES AND MORE Total: 2,901.66

Vendor: 004585 - EDWARDS SANITATION

43.50TRASH REMOVAL03/21/202290606EDWARDS SANITATION 041-410-6475

Vendor 004585 - EDWARDS SANITATION Total: 43.50

Vendor: 006279 - EMPLOYEE GROUP SERVICES LTD

396.45GROUP INSURANCE ADMIN FEE03/28/2022032022EMPLOYEE GROUP SERVICES LTD 001-210-6155

5.35GROUP INSURANCE ADMIN FEE03/28/2022032022EMPLOYEE GROUP SERVICES LTD 600-810-6155

Vendor 006279 - EMPLOYEE GROUP SERVICES LTD Total: 401.80

Vendor: 006161 - GRANT WOOD ART GALLERY

2,400.002ND HALF FY22 HOTEL/MOTEL …03/28/2022032022GRANT WOOD ART GALLERY 001-610-6479

Vendor 006161 - GRANT WOOD ART GALLERY Total: 2,400.00

Vendor: 000539 - GRAYBILL COMMUNICATIONS

42.00QRTLY MONITORING FEE03/21/202229052GRAYBILL COMMUNICATIONS 041-410-6475

Vendor 000539 - GRAYBILL COMMUNICATIONS Total: 42.00

Vendor: 001101 - HEIMAN FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC.

1,226.10GAS MONITOR CALIBRATION U…03/28/20220905664-INHEIMAN FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. 015-150-6470

Vendor 001101 - HEIMAN FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. Total: 1,226.10

Vendor: 004989 - HENDERSON PRODUCTS

255.19SPINNER ASSY03/28/2022351738HENDERSON PRODUCTS 110-211-6474

-230.73RETURN03/28/2022353006HENDERSON PRODUCTS 110-211-6474

Vendor 004989 - HENDERSON PRODUCTS Total: 24.46

Vendor: 005184 - INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY SOLU

144.00ONLINE BACKUP SERVICE03/28/202227504INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY… 001-110-6490

Vendor 005184 - INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNOLOGY SOLU Total: 144.00

Vendor: 005158 - IOWA DEPT OF JUSTICE

161.35FORFEITURES03/28/2022SPSS005161IOWA DEPT OF JUSTICE 001-110-6553

Vendor 005158 - IOWA DEPT OF JUSTICE Total: 161.35

Vendor: 000075 - IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES

506.60SIGNS03/28/202231230IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES 110-210-6512

161.96UNIFORM PANTS03/28/2022370650IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES 610-815-6181

14.00BUSINESS CARDS03/28/202240481IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES 001-110-6504

103.35SIGNS03/28/202231549-1IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES 110-210-6512

Vendor 000075 - IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES Total: 785.91



Expense Approval Report     Payment Dates: 3/16/2022 - 3/28/2022

3/28/2022 11:42:13 AM Page 3 of 7

AmountDescription (Item)Post DatePayable NumberVendor Name Account Number

Vendor: 000281 - IPERS COLLECTIONS

6,127.83IPERS03/18/2022INV0000461IPERS COLLECTIONS 001-000-2203

2,871.01IPERS03/18/2022INV0000462IPERS COLLECTIONS 001-000-2203

243.63IPERS03/22/2022INV0000477IPERS COLLECTIONS 001-000-2203

Vendor 000281 - IPERS COLLECTIONS Total: 9,242.47

Vendor: 000387 - JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL

33.87KEROSENE03/28/20224097619JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6553

7.49SAFETY ABSORBENT03/28/20224097620JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6553

53.97SOCKET SET03/28/20224098186JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 600-810-6455

14.47DEGREASER03/28/20224098209JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6553

2.79PUTTY KNIFE03/28/20224098234JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 001-110-6530

67.40GEAR LUBE03/28/20224098491JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6474

2.08MIDWEST BULK03/28/20224098637JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6474

55.80PAINT AND TAPE03/28/20224099471JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6474

50.99UNIFORM JACKET03/28/20224099649JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6181

49.97SCRAPER - FLOOR MATS03/28/20224099650JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6553

7.98HARDWARE03/28/20224100035JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6470

536.00HARDWARE - BATTERIES03/28/20224100293JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6470

49.72HARDWARE - BATTERIES03/28/20224100293JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 610-815-6540

219.00BATTERY GREASE GUN03/28/20224100348JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 610-815-6470

9.99AIR FILTER03/28/20224101654JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6475

4.94HARDWARE03/28/20224101889JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6474

60.57KEROSENE03/28/20224102138JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6551

86.44PAINT - MATS - CLEANER03/28/20224102434JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6553

175.99HARDWARE03/28/20224104718JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 110-211-6543

Vendor 000387 - JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL Total: 1,489.46

Vendor: 004413 - JONES COUNTY SENIOR DINING

5,100.00FY 22 CONTRIBUTION03/28/2022032022JONES COUNTY SENIOR DINING 001-610-6479

Vendor 004413 - JONES COUNTY SENIOR DINING Total: 5,100.00

Vendor: 000295 - JONES COUNTY TOURISM

6,250.002ND HALF FY2203/28/2022032022JONES COUNTY TOURISM 001-610-6479

Vendor 000295 - JONES COUNTY TOURISM Total: 6,250.00

Vendor: 005678 - KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY

867.33JCERT03/28/2022184520KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY 001-110-6537

Vendor 005678 - KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY Total: 867.33

Vendor: 004737 - KROMMINGA MOTORS

123.13MOVER SKID LOADER03/28/202264700MKROMMINGA MOTORS 001-450-6504

Vendor 004737 - KROMMINGA MOTORS Total: 123.13

Vendor: 006042 - LEAF

96.00MTHLY COPIER LEASE03/21/202212984306LEAF 041-410-6471

Vendor 006042 - LEAF Total: 96.00

Vendor: 006123 - LYNCH DALLAS, P.C.

1,914.00GENERAL MATTERS03/28/2022195455LYNCH DALLAS, P.C. 001-640-6455

53.50NUISANCE/ENFORCEMENT03/28/2022195456LYNCH DALLAS, P.C. 001-110-6411

467.41POLICE MATTERS - PROSECUTI…03/28/2022195457LYNCH DALLAS, P.C. 001-110-6411

Vendor 006123 - LYNCH DALLAS, P.C. Total: 2,434.91

Vendor: 006159 - MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT

1,420.65JETTER REPAIRS03/28/2022W03216MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT 610-815-6471

Vendor 006159 - MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT Total: 1,420.65

Vendor: 005346 - MAQUOKETA VALLEY ELECTRIC COOP

139.85INTERNET SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000474MAQUOKETA VALLEY ELECTRIC … 600-810-6535

46.70ELECTRIC - INDUSTRIAL PARK LI…03/17/2022INV0000475MAQUOKETA VALLEY ELECTRIC … 122-210-6372

Vendor 005346 - MAQUOKETA VALLEY ELECTRIC COOP Total: 186.55

Vendor: 004769 - MEDIACOM

79.49INTERNET SERVICE03/14/2022030422MEDIACOM 043-430-6373

304.90MTHLY INTERNET SERVICE03/12/202203122022MEDIACOM 001-622-6454



Expense Approval Report     Payment Dates: 3/16/2022 - 3/28/2022

3/28/2022 11:42:13 AM Page 4 of 7

AmountDescription (Item)Post DatePayable NumberVendor Name Account Number

79.49INTERNET SERVICE03/17/2022INV0000476MEDIACOM 043-430-6373

Vendor 004769 - MEDIACOM Total: 463.88

Vendor: 005903 - MIDWEST PATCH

869.50PATCH03/28/20223185MIDWEST PATCH 110-211-6543

Vendor 005903 - MIDWEST PATCH Total: 869.50

Vendor: 005982 - MIDWEST TAPE

89.76DIGITAL MATERIALS03/21/2022501758419MIDWEST TAPE 122-410-6725

Vendor 005982 - MIDWEST TAPE Total: 89.76

Vendor: 003950 - MISSISSIPPI VALLEY PUMP, INC.

7,071.75PIT PUMP REPAIR03/28/202214067MISSISSIPPI VALLEY PUMP, INC. 610-815-6783

Vendor 003950 - MISSISSIPPI VALLEY PUMP, INC. Total: 7,071.75

Vendor: 000357 - PETTY CASH

33.04PIZZA FOR TEENS03/21/20221462592PETTY CASH 041-410-6537

Vendor 000357 - PETTY CASH Total: 33.04

Vendor: 005835 - QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC

1,793.25MTHLY TESTING03/28/20222203052QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC 610-815-6479

845.00SLUDGE TESTING03/28/20222203068QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC 610-815-6479

Vendor 005835 - QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC Total: 2,638.25

Vendor: 005741 - RECREATIONAL MOTOR SPORTS

191.22SHIPPING - TESTING03/28/202257090RECREATIONAL MOTOR SPORTS 610-815-6431

18.92SHIPPING - TESTING03/28/202257105RECREATIONAL MOTOR SPORTS 600-810-6431

216.63SHIPPING - TESTING03/28/202257627RECREATIONAL MOTOR SPORTS 610-815-6431

29.73SHIPPING03/28/202257801RECREATIONAL MOTOR SPORTS 110-211-6553

Vendor 005741 - RECREATIONAL MOTOR SPORTS Total: 456.50

Vendor: 006223 - ROGERS ROCK AND SAND

1,403.32MANSAND03/28/20222149ROGERS ROCK AND SAND 110-211-6544

Vendor 006223 - ROGERS ROCK AND SAND Total: 1,403.32

Vendor: 000991 - SCHERRMAN'S IMPLEMENT

532.85SKID LOADER FILTERS03/28/2022IM62546SCHERRMAN'S IMPLEMENT 610-815-6470

Vendor 000991 - SCHERRMAN'S IMPLEMENT Total: 532.85

Vendor: 006173 - SCHMITZ JANITORIAL SUPPLY

132.00TOWELS/GLOVES03/28/20229047SCHMITZ JANITORIAL SUPPLY 110-211-6553

Vendor 006173 - SCHMITZ JANITORIAL SUPPLY Total: 132.00

Vendor: 000401 - SCHNEITER WEERS INSURANCE

410.00EXCAVATOR - DODGE CHARGER03/28/20221011SCHNEITER WEERS INSURANCE 001-110-6408

293.00EXCAVATOR - DODGE CHARGER03/28/20221011SCHNEITER WEERS INSURANCE 001-210-6408

3,500.00CYBER03/28/20221014SCHNEITER WEERS INSURANCE 001-699-6409

Vendor 000401 - SCHNEITER WEERS INSURANCE Total: 4,203.00

Vendor: 000377 - SHAFFER PLBG & HTG

474.88LOBBY RESTROOM03/28/202296ASHAFFER PLBG & HTG 046-460-6475

Vendor 000377 - SHAFFER PLBG & HTG Total: 474.88

Vendor: 005046 - STAAB/PHIL

300.00IT SUPPORT03/25/2022SO-000026STAAB/PHIL 001-622-6480

Vendor 005046 - STAAB/PHIL Total: 300.00

Vendor: 000536 - SUPERIOR APPLIANCE

669.00LCC DRYER & DISPOSAL03/28/2022114828SUPERIOR APPLIANCE 046-460-6541

Vendor 000536 - SUPERIOR APPLIANCE Total: 669.00

Vendor: 006434 - TEAM SERVICES

411.77FIRE STATION TESTING SERVICE03/28/20221809988-0TEAM SERVICES 341-151-6490

Vendor 006434 - TEAM SERVICES Total: 411.77

Vendor: 004448 - THE SIGN SHOP

450.00VEHICLE LETTERING03/28/20225411THE SIGN SHOP 001-110-6710

Vendor 004448 - THE SIGN SHOP Total: 450.00



Expense Approval Report     Payment Dates: 3/16/2022 - 3/28/2022

3/28/2022 11:42:13 AM Page 5 of 7

AmountDescription (Item)Post DatePayable NumberVendor Name Account Number

Vendor: 004831 - TOYNE, INC

132.33TRUCK DOOR HINGE03/28/2022IN0014160TOYNE, INC 015-150-6470

Vendor 004831 - TOYNE, INC Total: 132.33

Vendor: 004654 - TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP

10.10MTHLY LONG DISTANCE03/14/202215264419-8586TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP 001-110-6373

67.83MTHLY LONG DISTANCE03/14/202215264419-8586TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP 001-622-6373

1.23MTHLY LONG DISTANCE03/14/202215264419-8586TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP 015-150-6373

6.73MTHLY LONG DISTANCE03/14/202215264419-8586TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP 043-430-6373

1.23MTHLY LONG DISTANCE03/14/202215264419-8586TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP 044-440-6373

2.46MTHLY LONG DISTANCE03/14/202215264419-8586TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP 110-211-6373

2.46MTHLY LONG DISTANCE03/14/202215264419-8586TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP 600-810-6373

1.23MTHLY LONG DISTANCE03/14/202215264419-8586TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP 610-815-6373

Vendor 004654 - TRANSWORLD NETWORK, C0RP Total: 93.27

Vendor: 000393 - TREASURER STATE OF IOWA

2,134.40STATE TAX03/18/2022INV0000466TREASURER STATE OF IOWA 001-000-2201

4,894.26WET TAX03/28/2022022022TREASURER STATE OF IOWA 600-810-6491

1,060.47LOT TAX - FEB03/28/2022022022-LOTTREASURER STATE OF IOWA 610-815-6491

180.88LOT TAX - FEB03/28/2022022022-LOTTREASURER STATE OF IOWA 610-815-6493

53.00STATE TAX03/22/2022INV0000481TREASURER STATE OF IOWA 001-000-2201

Vendor 000393 - TREASURER STATE OF IOWA Total: 8,323.01

Vendor: 004002 - U.S. CELLULAR

65.87MTHLY CELL PHONES03/22/20220496454034U.S. CELLULAR 110-211-6373

156.21MTHLY CELL PHONES03/22/20220496454034U.S. CELLULAR 600-810-6373

156.21MTHLY CELL PHONES03/22/20220496454034U.S. CELLULAR 610-815-6373

Vendor 004002 - U.S. CELLULAR Total: 378.29

Vendor: 000359 - US POSTMASTER

309.78POSTAGE - UTILITY BILLS03/15/202203152022US POSTMASTER 600-810-6508

309.78POSTAGE - UTILITY BILLS03/15/202203152022US POSTMASTER 610-815-6508

Vendor 000359 - US POSTMASTER Total: 619.56

Vendor: 004565 - USA BLUE BOOK

333.25STUDY BOOKS03/28/2022896789USA BLUE BOOK 610-815-6447

Vendor 004565 - USA BLUE BOOK Total: 333.25

Vendor: 005703 - VISA

-63.48CREDIT- LATE FEE REVERSAL03/21/2022CM0000035VISA 041-410-6553

344.75TEDDY BEAR SUPPLIES03/21/202228808VISA 041-410-6537

234.81DEEP FREEZE RENEWAL03/21/202224469152VISA 041-410-6480

Vendor 005703 - VISA Total: 516.08

Vendor: 000398 - WALMART COMMUNITY CARD

22.36SUPPLIES12/13/2021039697858WALMART COMMUNITY CARD 001-110-6535

36.22TRIVIA PRIZES03/21/20227084WALMART COMMUNITY CARD 041-410-6502

9.75SOAP, ENVELOPES03/21/20228914WALMART COMMUNITY CARD 041-410-6540

12.61PLATES, GLUE STICKS03/21/20228915WALMART COMMUNITY CARD 041-410-6537

14.15SNACKS03/21/20229828WALMART COMMUNITY CARD 041-410-6537

Vendor 000398 - WALMART COMMUNITY CARD Total: 95.09

Vendor: 000144 - WAYNE HALL CHRYSLER

49.00OIL CHANGE03/28/202226409WAYNE HALL CHRYSLER 001-110-6474

149.27INSTALL ALARM03/28/202226410WAYNE HALL CHRYSLER 015-150-6474

Vendor 000144 - WAYNE HALL CHRYSLER Total: 198.27

Vendor: 005652 - WENDL/STEVE

240.00TECH/COMPUTER MAINT03/21/20223WENDL/STEVE 041-410-6480

Vendor 005652 - WENDL/STEVE Total: 240.00

Vendor: 006442 - WHKS

8,670.00WWTP - DESIGN DEV03/28/202245185WHKS 610-815-6489

Vendor 006442 - WHKS Total: 8,670.00

Grand Total: 101,136.07



Expense Approval Report     Payment Dates: 3/16/2022 - 3/28/2022

3/28/2022 11:42:13 AM Page 6 of 7

Report Summary

Fund Summary

 Payment AmountFund Expense Amount

001 - GENERAL FUND 26,757.5949,396.91

015 - FIRE SERVICE 58.991,566.69

041 - LIBRARY FUND 2,112.632,112.63

043 - PARKS & RECREATION 250.48809.97

044 - AQUA COURT 1.231.23

046 - LAWRENCE COMMUNITY CENTER FUND 0.001,143.88

110 - ROAD USE TAX 134.378,679.31

122 - LOCAL OPTION TAX 65% 136.46136.46

341 - FIRE STATION ADDITION 0.00411.77

351 - POLICE STATION RENOVATION 0.003,743.60

600 - WATER FUND 5,570.556,919.43

610 - WASTEWATER FUND 1,938.1026,214.19

36,960.40Grand Total: 101,136.07

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

001-000-2200 FIT HOLDING 4,636.824,636.82

001-000-2201 SIT HOLDING 2,187.402,187.40

001-000-2202 FICA HOLDING 7,335.167,335.16

001-000-2203 IPERS HOLDING 9,242.479,242.47

001-000-2204 PEDC HOLDING 164.20164.20

001-000-2206 MEDICARE HOLDING 1,715.541,715.54

001-110-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 134.72134.72

001-110-6408 LIABILITY INSURANCE 0.00410.00

001-110-6411 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, … 0.00520.91

001-110-6474 MAINTENANCE, VEHICLE 0.0049.00

001-110-6490 SOFTWARE MAINT CONT… 0.00144.00

001-110-6504 EQUIPMENT, SMALL 0.0014.00

001-110-6530 SUPPLIES, OPERATIONS 0.002.79

001-110-6535 SUPPLIES, OFFICE 0.0022.36

001-110-6537 JCERT 0.00867.33

001-110-6553 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENS… 0.00423.85

001-110-6710 EQUIPMENT, TRUCK/AUTO 0.00450.00

001-210-6155 SELF FUNDED HEALTH INS 396.45396.45

001-210-6408 INSURANCE EXPENSE 0.00293.00

001-210-6490 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.0050.00

001-450-6504 EQUIPMENT, SMALL 0.00123.13

001-610-6479 CONTRBUTIONS TO OUTS… 0.0013,750.00

001-622-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 339.93339.93

001-622-6454 MAINT. CONTRACT PAGE… 304.90304.90

001-622-6480 MAINT. CONTRACT COM… 300.00300.00

001-622-6535 SUPPLIES/NONCAP EQUIP… 0.00104.95

001-640-6455 CONTRACTS, GEN. CITY A… 0.001,914.00

001-699-6409 CRIME & FIDELITY INSUR… 0.003,500.00

015-150-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 58.9958.99

015-150-6470 MAINTENANCE, EQUIPM… 0.001,358.43

015-150-6474 MAINTENANCE, VEHICLE 0.00149.27

041-410-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 156.85156.85

041-410-6471 MAINTENANCE, COPIER 96.0096.00

041-410-6475 MAINTENANCE, BLDGS &… 85.5085.50

041-410-6480 MAINT. CONTRACT COM… 474.81474.81

041-410-6501 BOOKS AND PERIODOCALS 912.43912.43

041-410-6502 ADULT PROGRAM SUPPLI… 36.2236.22

041-410-6537 SUPPLIES,CHILDRENS PR… 404.55404.55

041-410-6540 SUPPLIES, BLDGS. & GRO… 9.759.75

041-410-6553 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENS… -63.48-63.48

043-430-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 159.48238.97



Expense Approval Report     Payment Dates: 3/16/2022 - 3/28/2022

3/28/2022 11:42:13 AM Page 7 of 7

Account Summary

 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name Expense Amount

043-430-6490 EVENT EXPENSES 91.0091.00

043-430-6550 VEHICLE EXPENSES 0.00480.00

044-440-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 1.231.23

046-460-6475 MAINTENANCE, BLDGS &… 0.00474.88

046-460-6541 SUPPLIES, JANITORIAL MA… 0.00669.00

110-210-6512 TRAFFIC SIGNS AND MAT… 0.00810.20

110-211-6181 ALLOWANCE, UNIFORM 0.0050.99

110-211-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 134.37134.37

110-211-6470 MAINTENANCE, EQUIPM… 0.004,130.64

110-211-6474 MAINTENANCE, VEHICLE 0.00154.68

110-211-6475 MAINTENANCE, BLDGS &… 0.009.99

110-211-6523 GROUNDS & BLDG. MAIN… 0.00337.71

110-211-6530 SUPPLIES, OPERATIONS 0.0087.38

110-211-6543 SUPPLIES, STREET MAINT… 0.001,145.49

110-211-6544 SUPPLIES, SNOW & ICE R… 0.001,403.32

110-211-6551 VEHICLE FUEL EXPENSES 0.0060.57

110-211-6553 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES 0.00353.97

122-210-6372 ELECTRIC UTILITIES, ST LI… 46.7046.70

122-410-6725 EQUIPMENT 89.7689.76

341-151-6490 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00411.77

351-111-6555 CONSTRUCTION 0.003,743.60

600-810-6155 SELF FUNDED HEALTH INS 5.355.35

600-810-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 221.31221.31

600-810-6431 SHIPPING 0.0018.92

600-810-6455 MAINTENANCE, EQUIPM… 0.0053.97

600-810-6489 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.0020.00

600-810-6491 SALES TAXES PAID 4,894.264,894.26

600-810-6504 EQUIPMENT, SMALL 0.001,255.99

600-810-6508 SUPPLIES, POSTAGE 309.78309.78

600-810-6535 SUPPLIES, OFFICE 139.85139.85

610-815-6181 ALLOWANCE, UNIFORM 0.00161.96

610-815-6373 UTILITIES, TELEPHONE 386.97386.97

610-815-6431 SHIPPING 0.00407.85

610-815-6447 TRAINING EXPENSES 0.00333.25

610-815-6470 MAINTENANCE, EQUIPM… 0.00751.85

610-815-6471 JETTER MAINTENANCE 0.001,420.65

610-815-6479 PROF. SERVICES - TESTING 0.002,638.25

610-815-6489 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.008,690.00

610-815-6491 SALES TAXES PAID 1,060.471,060.47

610-815-6493 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX… 180.88180.88

610-815-6508 SUPPLIES, POSTAGE 309.78309.78

610-815-6540 SUPPLIES, BLDGS. & GRO… 0.0049.72

610-815-6553 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENS… 0.00514.87

610-815-6555 WASTEWATER TREATME… 0.001,499.96

610-815-6722 EQUIPMENT, OPERATIONS 0.00735.98

610-815-6783 WASTEWATER TREATME… 0.007,071.75

Grand Total: 36,960.40101,136.07

Project Account Summary

 Payment AmountProject Account Key Expense Amount

**None** 36,960.40101,136.07

Grand Total: 36,960.40101,136.07


	Agenda
	4.1 - 03.14.22 Minutes
	7.1 - DTR Change Order No. 22 G701-2017 - Final - 022(1)
	7.2 - MEMO_2022-03-28_EngReport
	7.2-1 - Snyder  151 Grade Separation Contract
	7.2-1 - Snyder  151 Grade Separation Amanedment.pdf
	7.2-2 - Resolution 2022-19 Authorizing Acceptance of Real Property
	7.2-3 - Resolution 2022-20 Authorizing Easement Agreements
	7.3 - HR Green AnamosaProjectStatus-032122
	7.3-1 - AMD#2_HRG_AmendmentProfessionalServicesAgreement_03182022 Sycamore Street
	7.3-2 - Engineering Agreement for Sidewalk 3rd Street HR Green
	7.3-3 - PSA_HRG_SidewalkProgram_220501
	7.3-4 - sos_Sewer_Replacement_Anamosa
	7.4 - Resolution 2022- APPOINTING INTERIM CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND SETTING INTERIM SALARY.pdf
	7.5 - Resolution 2022- APPOINTING INTERIM POLICE LUITENANT AND SETTING INTERIM SALARY.pdf
	7.6 - Midwest Municipal Consulting
	7.6 - Hinson Consulting Anamosa CA Proposal 3-22
	7.6 - Next Move Anamosa City Admin Search (1)
	8.1-1 - Library Statuary Project
	8.2 - Resolution 2022- Hiring and Setting Salary for Park Admin Assistant
	8.3 - Feild Groomer Quotes
	8.4 - FireFighter Appication
	8.5 - Original Agreement - Fire Station Addition
	8.5 - Shive-Hattery Amendment#02
	8.6 - Pay Application 3 - Well #6 - BP2
	8.7 - Expense Approval Report 3.28.22



